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Mysore Sales International Limited
MSIL HOUSE, 36 CUNNINGHAM ROAD,
BENGALURU - 560 052
CIN: U85110KA1966SGC001612

NOTICE
	 NOTICE is hereby given that the Fifty-fifth 

Annual General Meeting of the Members of 
Mysore Sales International Limited will be 
held on Wednesday, December 22, 2021 at  
1.30 p.m. at the Registered office, MSIL House, 
No.36, Cunningham Road, Bengaluru- 560 052 
to transact the following business at shorter 
notice:-

	 ORDINARY BUSINESS:

	 Item No.1 - Adoption of financial statements: 
To consider and adopt the financial statements 
of the Company for the year ended March 31, 
2021, (including the consolidated financial 
statements) and reports of the Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon together with 
the comments received from Auditor General 
of India under Section 143(6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

	 Item No.2- To declare a dividend on equity 
shares: To declare a dividend of Rs. 7.50/- per 
equity share for the financial year ended March 
31, 2021. 

	 Item No.3 - To consider fixation of remuneration 
for the year ending March 31, 2022 payable to 
Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller 

& Auditor General of India (C&AGI) and if thought 
fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the 
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: -

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions 
of section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
Comptroller and Auditor General of India, has 
appointed M/s Abarna & Ananthan, (BA0245) 
Chartered Accountants, Bengaluru as the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the 
financial year 2021-2022, be and is hereby noted 
the appointment of the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company and authorized the Board of Directors 
of the Company to hold the office from the 
conclusion of Annual General Meeting (AGM) 
till the conclusion of next AGM and authorized 
the Board of Directors of the Company to fix the 
remuneration of the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company.”

	 By order of the Board 
	 For Mysore Sales International Limited
	 Sd/-
	 Sridevi B.N.
 	 Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru           
Date: 17.12.2021
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NOTES:

1.	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the 
Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a 
proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and 
the proxy need not be a member of the Company. 
The annexed proxy form should be deposited at 
the Registered Office of the Company not less 
than 48 hours before the commencement of the 
AGM.

2.	 Corporate members intending to send their 
authorized representatives to attend the meeting 
are requested to send a certified copy of the 
Board Resolution of the Company, authorizing 
their representative to attend and vote on their 
behalf at the meeting.

3.	 The Company being a Government Company, 
the Comptroller & Auditor General of India has 
appointed the Statutory Auditors of the Company 
for the year 2021-22 under Section 139 (5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

4.	 The Register of Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel and their shareholding, maintained 
under Section 170 of the Companies Act 2013, 
will be available for inspection by the members at 
the AGM.

5.	 Consent of all shareholders obtained for shorter 
notice.

6.	 Members / proxies / authorized representatives 
should bring the duly filled attendance slip 
enclosed herewith to attend the meeting.

		  By order of the Board 
	   For Mysore Sales International Limited
	 Sd/-
	 Sridevi B.N.
	 Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru           
Date: 17.12.2021
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members,
We are delighted to present the report on our business and 
operations for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021.
1. Financial Highlights
During the year under review, performance of your 
company was as under:

(Rs. in lakhs)
PARITCULARS 2020-21 2019-20

Turnover 276386.97 227065.31
Profit/Loss before interest, 
depreciation & taxes 

8297.41 5627.71

Interest 1.30 0.33
Depreciation 970.47 838.52
Depreciation - ROU 755.21 656.88 
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 6570.43 4131.98
Provision for taxation 
-  Current
-  Earlier years
-  Deferred

1991.30
26.55

(648.92)

1065.48
31.31

524.04
Profit/(Loss) after Tax                        5201.50 2511.15
Other comprehensive 
Income / (Loss)

244.28 114.69

Net profit for the year 5445.78 2625.84
Previous year’s balance 
in Profit & Loss Account

19027.22 16401.38

Balance carried to 
Balance sheet

24473.00 19027.22

The sales performance of the Company’s various 
Divisions is presented below:

(Rs. in lakhs)

DIVISION 2020-21 2019-20
1. Beverages 238613.29 190744.30
2. Chit Funds 26859.49 25305.10
3. Paper 6926.43 6866.42
4. Consumer Products  622.03 470.47
5. Industrial Products 2353.74 1146.49
6. Tours & Travels 104.30 1116.71
7. Imported Sand - 221.52
8. Pharmacy 907.69 1194.30

TOTAL 276386.97 227065.31

The Company is a Government of Karnataka 
undertaking, 53% of its equity shares are held by the 
Governor of Karnataka and 47% of equity shares are 
held by KSIIDC and its nominees. 

2. 	 State of Company’s Affairs and Future Outlook

(i)	 Beverage Division: Government of Karnataka 
entrusted MSIL with the responsibility of opening 
463 CL-11(C) liquor retail outlets in the year 
2009. In addition to this, the Government had 
sanctioned another 900 CL-11(C) liquor retail 
outlets during the year 2016 to be opened in 
all Assembly Constituencies. Accordingly, the 
Division has taken all the necessary measures 
to open the sanctioned liquor retail outlets 
across Karnataka in coordination with the Excise 
Department.

	 A total of 434 licenses under 463 quota and 
505 licenses under 900 quota have been 
received as on 31st March 2021. In total, 886 
outlets are under operation which are spread 
all over Karnataka. MSIL liquor retail outlets 
are now spread all across the state especially 
in rural areas and have received overwhelming 
response from the public for sale of quality liquor 
at MRP in sealed bottles. 

	 Subsequently, the Beverages Division has 
achieved a turnover of Rs. 238613.29 Lakhs 
against the budgeted turnover of Rs. 203060.00 
lakhs in the financial year 2020-21 as compared 
to previous year’s turnover of Rs. 190744.30 
lakhs. The Division would continue to put its 
best efforts to open the remaining outlets under 
463 and 900 quota at the earliest possible time.

(ii) 	 Chit Funds Division: The Division has achieved 
a turnover of Rs. 26859.49 lakhs as against 
previous year achievement of Rs. 25305.10 
lakhs. The turnover is significantly increasing 
year on year indicating a positive sign growth to 
develop Chit funds Business. 

	 The Division is continuously making profit since 
last thirteen years and for every hundred rupees 
earning, sixty seven percent is going towards 
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Fixed Expenses, Variable Expenses and taxes. 
Balance thirty three percent is accounted 
towards net profit of the Division. 

	 To improve the efficiency of the Division focus 
is very important. Accordingly our vision is as 
follows:-

	 To implement user friendly Software, to expand 
the business by opening new branches, 
increase our manpower, to set a target of 2000 
crores in the next few years, to extensively & 
effectively use digital marketing, social media 
to create awareness and advertise amongst 
the general public and to set MSIL chits as a 
household name across Karnataka. 

(iii)	 Paper Division:  Paper Division has achieved 
a turnover of Rs. 6926.43 lakhs during the year 
under review as against the Budgeted Turnover 
of Rs. 6152.50 lakhs by achieving 112 %. 
The turnover of Note Books (Vidya & Lekhak) 
during the financial year 2020-21 is Rs. 2055.28 
lakhs (1606.61 MT’s) as against the budgeted 
turnover Rs. 2902.50 lakhs.

	 Non-representation of product in the market due 
to acute shortage of manpower has made our 
task even tougher. Customized note books have 
become a trend of late with many institutions 
preferring to buy from the manufacturers 
directly.

	 The division apart from focusing on the note 
books and stationery, introduced computer 
stationery with security features under the 
brand name Lekhak to tap new pastures during 
the financial year 2017-18, and they have been 
successfully contributing to major share of the 
turnover during the ensuing years also.

	 To achieve the targets, the division inevitably 
needs the service of young and energetic field 
forces to recapture and strengthen the “Vidya 
& Lekhak” market. The division continues to 
depend on Government orders for their major 
share of turnover which needs to be addressed 
by redefining the sales strategies to suit the 
present trend in the market.

(iv) 	 Consumer Products Division: The Division 
has achieved a turnover of Rs. 622.03 Lakhs             
during the year under review as against 
previous year turnover of Rs. 470.47 lakhs. In 
order to revive the business, the Division is in 
the process of strengthening its product line 
to tie-up with leading manufacturers and also 
exploring launching of new products to other 
regions. The division is implementing new 
products in the brand name of MSIL such as 
Sanitary Napkin Incinerator Machine, Sanitary 
Napkin Vending Machine, Water Purifier and 
many other products.

	 The division is planning to add more products in 
the coming days to achieve better turnover in the 
coming years in Delhi and Mumbai branches.

(v) 	 Industrial Products Division: The division 
is involved in marketing of Solar Products, 
Furniture and Packaged Drinking Water and 
achieved a turnover of Rs. 2353.74 lakhs during 
the financial year 2020-21 as against previous 
year turnover of Rs. 1146.49 lakhs. The 
Division is planning to diversify the activities 
by strengthening the product line in the current 
year. There are also plans to revive wire and 
cable business apart from adding new products 
having good market potential, with this Industrial 
Products Division is expected to augment its 
turnover in the coming years.  

(vi) 	 Tours and Travels Division: As an IATA 
Accredited Travel Agency (IATA No.:1435229). 
During the year 2020-21 the main activity of 
the Division has continued to be booking of 
Air Tickets to Government officials and Govt 
Departments. The division has achieved 
turnover of Rs.104.30 Lakhs up to 31st March 
2021 as against Rs. 200.00 Lakhs budget 
during the previous year.

	 Further to the above, due to pandemic Covid-19 
which has maximum impact on Tour and Travel 
Division as well tourism Industry. Hence, we 
have requested to Chief Secretary Govt of 
Karnataka to purchase an air ticket through 
MSIL for their Official Air Travel needs. Also, 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Govt of Karnataka passed a circular to purchase 
air ticket and package tours through MSIL for 
the official travel needs which will boost up the 
activity of the T&T division and will increase the 
sales of the division.   

	 Please note the company has not initiated sales 
promotion activities to increase the turnover 
of Tours & Travels Division and to create the 
awareness of its existence throughout the state 
due to the above said reason. 

(vii) 	 Hire Purchase Division: Since the operation 
of the Hire Purchase Division was discontinued 
during July 2008, the Division is exclusively 
focusing on recovery of overdues from the 
hirers.  In the current financial year an amount 
of Rs. 6.75 lakhs have been recovered. The 
outstanding dues as on 31 March, 2021 is 
Rs. 303.75 lakhs as against Rs.310.50 lakhs. 
Though the provision is made for the entire 
dues, the division is making all the efforts to 
recover the outstanding dues.

(viii) 	 Pharma Division:  The Pharma Division has 
achieved a turnover of Rs. 907.69 lakh during 
the financial year 2020-21 as against previous 
year achievement of Rs.1194.30 lakh.  

	 Pharma Division has opened total 87 Pradhan 
Mantri Bharatiya Janaushadhi Kendra (PMBJK) 
at Government Taluk / District Hospital across 
Karnataka as on March 31, 2021. At present, 
Pharma Division has developed independent 
software and not depending on BPPI software, 
and the same is being implemented. 

(ix) 	 Imported Sand: This is to inform that, in the 
business of Import and Trading of Natural 
River Sand, the company has achieved a total 
turnover of Rs. 381.66 lakhs for the year 2017-18 
to 2019-20 for having sold a quantity of 14,759 
MTs. While on the above, due to covid pandemic 
crisis, the interstate movement of imported sand 
from Krishnapatnam Port Company Ltd, (A.P) 
to Bangalore was restricted during the year 
2020-21. Further, the sale forecast of imported 
sand could not materialize due to economic 

slowdown in the construction industry. Hence, 
the authorized C&F distribution agent and dealer 
could not remit any payment and lift the sand 
from the port during 2020-21. However, it is 
envisaged that the sale of imported sand would 
resume from Oct 2021 with advance remittance.

3.	 Change in the Nature of Business, If any: 
There is no change in the nature of business of 
the Company.   

4.	 Dividend
	 During the Financial year 2020-2021, the 

Company has proposed to declare @ 7.5% 
dividend on paid up capital payable to 
Government of Karnataka and KSIIDC for a sum 
of Rs. 320.50 lakhs if approved by the members 
in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

5.	 Reserves 
	 The reserve of the Company for the financial 

year 2020-21 and the previous year are as 
follows:

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
General Reserve 19125.69 18400.26
Surplus in Statement of Profit 
and Loss

5445.78 2625.84

6. 	 Share Capital

	 There is no change in the Share Capital of the 
Company.   

7.	 Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

	 During the financial year 2020-21, the following 
changes in the composition of the Board of 
Directors of the Company had taken place as per 
the directions of the Government of Karnataka.

Sl. 
No.

Name of the 
Director

Date of 
Appointment

Date of 
Cessation

1 Shri. Gaurav Gupta, IAS 05-09-2019 27-07-2020
2 Shri. H Halappa 27-07-2020 -
3 Shri. H. P. Prakash, IFS 23.08.2019 31.03.2021
4 Shri. Vikash Kumar Vikash, IPS 31.03.2021 -
5 Shri. Ganga Ram Baderiya, IAS 14.06.2019 25.09.2020
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6 Shri. M. S. Srikar, IAS 25.09.2020 19.02.2021
7 Shri. Ram Prasath Manohar, 

IAS
19.02.2021 -

8 Smt. Gunjan Krishna, IAS 28-08-2018 -
9 Shri. Pavan Kumar 

Malapathi, IAS
15-12-2018 04.07.2020

10 Shri. Chandrashekar  
Nayak. L

04.07.2020 -

11 Shri. R. Ramesh. 06.03.2018 -
12 Shri. Yashvantha, IAS 26-03-2019 12.05.2020
13 Dr. Lokesh M, IAS 12.05.2020 03.11.2020
14 Shri Venkatesh Naidu 02.12.2020 -
15 Shri. C Channadevaru 19.10.2019 -
16 Shri. K M Ravindra 12.03.2020 -
17 Shri. Shivaji Shivaray Dollin 12.03.2020 -
18 Shri. Andappa Javali 22.05.2020 -
19 Shri. Totappa Nagappa 

Nidagundi
21.05.2020 -

20 Dr. R D Satish 22.05.2020 -
21 Shri. Ningappa 21.05.2020 -

The Board placed on its record with deep sense of 
gratitude for the excellent contribution made by  Shri. 
Guarav Gupta, IAS, Chairman, Shri. H. P. Prakash, 
IFS, Managing Director, Shri Ganga Ram Baderiya, 
IAS, Shri. M. S. Srikar, IAS, Shri Pavan Kumar 
Malapathi, IAS, Shri. Yashvantha, IAS and Dr. Lokesh. 
M, IAS, Directors, during their tenure on the Board of 
Directors of the Company.

Directors on the date of report are as follows:

Name of the Director
1. Shri. H Halappa   - Chairman
2. Shri. Vikash Kumar Vikash, IPS                  - Managing Director
3. Dr. J. Ravishankar, IAS   - Independent Director
4. Smt. Gunjan Krishna, IAS   - Director
5. Shri. Ram Prasath Manohar, IAS   - Director
6. Shri. Chandrashekar Nayak L, IAS   - Director
7. Shri Venkatesh Naidu N   - Independent Director
8. Shri. R Ramesh   - Independent Director
9. Shri. C Channadevaru   - Director
10. Shri. Andappa Javali   - Director

11. Shri. R D Satish   - Director
12. Shri. K M Ravindra   - Director
13. Shri. Shivaji Shivaray Dollin   - Director
14. Shri. Thotappa Nagappa 
Nidagundi

  - Director

15. Shri. Ningappa   - Director

During the financial year 2020-21, the following are 
the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as per 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013:

Sl. 
No.

Name of the Key 
Managerial Personnel

Date of 
Appointment

Date of 
Cessation

1 Shri. H. P. Prakash, IFS – 
Managing Director

23.08.2019 31.03.2021

2 Shri. Vikash Kumar 
Vikash, IPS-Managing 
Director

31.03.2021 -

3 Shri Subramanya, Chief 
Financial Officer 

20.08.2018 31.07.2021

4 Shri Ramakanth Hebbali 21.09.2021 -
5 Smt Sridevi B.N, 

Company Secretary
18.9.2013 -

Composition of Audit Committee of the Board:

As on March 31, 2021
1. Shri. Ram Prasath Manohar, IAS Chairman
2. Shri. Chandrashekar Nayak. L, IAS Member
3. Shri. R Ramesh Member
4. Shri Venkatesh Naidu Member

As on the date of report
1. Shri. Ram Prasath Manohar, IAS Chairman
2. Dr. J. Ravishankar, IAS Member
3. Shri. Chandrashekar Nayak L, IAS Member
4. Shri. R Ramesh   Member
5. Shri Venkatesh Naidu N Member

Composition of CSR Committee of the Board: 

As on March 31, 2021
1 Vikash Kumar Vikash, IPS, MSIL Chairman
2 Shri. R. Ramesh Member
3 Shri C Channadevaru Member
4. Dr. R. D. Satish Member

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
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8.Meetings

	 Based on the requisition received from the 
divisional heads subject to the approval of the 
Managing Director and agenda subjects as 
statutorily required, the Company Secretary 
draft the agenda for each meeting along with 
explanatory notes, in consultation / consensus 
with the Managing Director, and distribute the 
same in advance to the Board of Directors. Five 
Board Meetings, Three Audit Sub-Committee 
Meetings and One Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee Meeting were held during the year 
ended March 31, 2020 on the following dates:

Sl. 
No.

Board Meeting 
held on

Sl. 
No.

Audit Sub-
Committee 

Meeting held on
1 June 22, 2020 1 June 05, 2020
2 October 19, 2020 2 November 17, 2020 
3 November 19, 2020 3 March 08, 2021
4 December 24, 2020
5 March 09, 2021

	

Sl. 
No.

Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee Meeting held on

1 February 16, 2021

	 Due to the exceptional circumstances caused 
by the COVID-19 Pandemic and consequent 
relaxations granted by MCA, the intervening 
gap between the Board Meetings during the first 
quarter was within 180 days and the intervening 
gap between the subsequent Board Meetings 
was within the period prescribed under the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Board Meeting attendance of directors during 
financial year 2020-2021

Sl. 
No. Name of the Director

No. of Board 
Meetings held

Held Attended
1. Shri. Gaurav Gupta, IAS 1 1
2. Shri. H Halappa 4 3

3. Shri. H. P. Prakash, IFS 5 5
4. Shri. Vikash Kumar Vikash, IPS - -
5. Shri. Ganga Ram Baderiya, IAS 1 1
6. Shri. M. S. Srikar, IAS 3 2
7. Shri. Ram Prasath Manohar, IAS 1 1
8. Smt. Gunjan Krishna, IAS 5 3
9. Shri. Pavan Kumar Malapathi, IAS 1 1

10. Shri. Chandrashekar Nayak. L 4 3
11. Shri. R. Ramesh. 5 1
12 Shri. Yashvantha, IAS - -
13 Dr. Lokesh M, IAS 2 1
14 Shri Venkatesh Naidu 3 3
15 Shri. C Channadevaru 5 5
16 Shri. K M Ravindra 5 5
17 Shri. Shivaji Shivaray Dollin 5 4
18 Shri. Andappa Javali 5 4
19 Shri. Totappa Nagappa Nidagundi 5 3
20 Dr. R D Satish 5 5
21 Shri. Ningappa 5 3

1.	 Shri. Gaurav Gupta, IAS, Chairman ceased to be 
a Chairman with effect from July 27, 2020.

2.	 Shri. H Halappa was appointed as Chairman on 
July 27, 2020.

3.	 Shri H P Prakash, IFS, ceased to be a Managing 
Director with effect from March 31, 2021. 

4.	 Shri. Vikash Kumar Vikash, IPS was appointed as 
Managing Director on March 31, 2021. 

5.	 Shri. Ganga Ram Baderiya ceased to be a 
Director on September 25, 2020. 

6.	 Shri. M. S. Srikar, IAS was appointed as Director 
on September 25, 2020 and ceased to be a 
Director with effect from February 19, 2021.

7.	 Shri. Ram Prasath Manohar, IAS was appointed 	
	as Director on February 19, 2021. 

8.	 Shri. Pavan Kumar Malapathi, IAS, ceased to be 
a Director with effect from July 04, 2020.

9.	 Shri. Chandrashekar Nayak. L was appointed as 
Director on July 04, 2020.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
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10.	 Shri. Yashvantha, IAS, ceased to be a Director 
with effect from May 12, 2020.

11.	 Dr. Lokesh M, IAS was appointed as Director on 
May 12, 2020 and ceased to be a Director with 
effect from November 03, 2020.

12.	 Shri Venkatesh Naidu was appointed as Director 
on December 02, 2020.

13.	 Shri. Andappa Javali was appointed as Director 
on May 22, 2020.

14.	 Shri. Totappa Nagappa Nidagundi was appointed 
as Director on May 21, 2020.

15.	 Dr. R D Satish was appointed as Director on May 
22, 2020.

16.	 Shri. Ningappa was appointed as Director on 
May 21, 2020..

9.  Details of Subsidiary Companies
As on March 31, 2021, the Company has two 
subsidiaries.
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) a 
Company having one or more subsidiaries, it shall, 
in addition to standalone financial statements, a 
Company has to prepare a consolidated financial 
statement of the Company and all the subsidiaries, 
associate companies including joint ventures in same 
form and manner as that of its own and it shall be laid 
before the Annual General Meeting of the Company 
along with standalone financial statements. 
The Company has prepared consolidated financial 
statements for the financial year ended March 31, 
2021.
In accordance with sub-section (3) of section 129 of 
the Act, the statement containing the salient feature of 
the financial statement of a company’s subsidiaries is 
in Form AOC-1 is given in Annexure-II.

10.  Auditors: 

As the Company is a Government Company under 
section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Comptroller and Auditor General of India under 
section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 appoints 
the statutory auditors to audit the annual accounts. 

The C&AGI has appointed M/s Abarna & Ananthan, 
(BA0245) Chartered Accountants, Bengaluru, as 
Statutory Auditors for the year 2020-21. The statutory 
auditors appointed by C&AGI will hold office till the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

The office of the Comptroller and Auditor General 
of India, New Delhi, conveyed that M/s Abarna 
& Ananthan, (BA0245) Chartered Accountants, 
Bangalore had been appointed as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company for the year 2021-2022.

11.  Auditors’ Report:

There are qualifications in the Auditors’ Report. The 
replies to the qualifications of the Statutory Auditors’ 
report by the Management are appended to this report.

12.   Secretarial Audit Report 

In terms of Section 204 of the Act and Rules made 
there under Shri. S. Viswanathan, Practicing Company 
Secretary as Secretarial Auditor have submitted their 
report for the year ended March 31, 2021. The report 
of the Secretarial Auditors is enclosed as Annexure 
IV to this report. The report is self-explanatory and 
do not call for any further comments.

13. Internal Audit & Controls
The Company continues to appoint Internal Auditors. 
The scope and extent of Internal Audit encompasses 
audit and review of transactions. The Internal Auditors 
furnish their report to the company, along with the 
comments of the company, which shall be placed 
before the Audit Committee on an ongoing basis to 
improve efficiency in operations.

14. Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls with 
reference to Financial Statements
The Company has in place adequate Internal Financial 
Controls with reference to Financial Statements. 
During the year under review such controls were 
tested and no significant reportable material weakness 
in the operations was observed.  

15. Vigil mechanisms of the Compnay
The provisions regard Vigil Mechanisms are not 
applicable to the Company.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

16. Risk Management Policy

The Company has identified the risk factors of all the 
operating divisions and mitigation for each risk. 

17. Extract of Annual Return:

As required pursuant to section 92(3) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an 
extract of annual return in MGT 9 as a part of this 
Annual Report as Annexure I.

18. Material changes and commitments, if any, 
affecting the financial position of the company 
which have occurred between the end of the 
financial year of the company to which the financial 
statements relate and the date of the report

There are no such material changes occurred 
subsequent to the close of the financial year of the 
Company to which the balance sheet relates and 
the date of the report like settlement of tax liabilities, 
operation of patent rights, depreciation in market 
value of investments, institution of cases by or against 
the company, sale or purchase of capital assets or 
destruction of any assets etc.

19. Details of significant and material orders 
passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and company’s 
operations in future

There are no such orders passed, to which impacting 
the going concern status and company’s operations in 
future.

20. Deposits

During the year under review, the Company has not 
accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V of the 
Companies Act, 2013, from the public.

21. Related Party Transactions:

During the year under review, there were no contract 
or arrangements entered into by the Company in 
accordance with provisions of section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

22. Obligation of Company under the Sexual 
Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition And Redressal) Act, 2013

In order to prevent sexual harassment of women 
at work place a new act The Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013 has been notified on 9th 
December, 2013. Under the said Act every company 
is required to set up an Internal Complaints Committee 
to look into complaints relating to sexual harassment at 
work place of any women employee. 

Company has adopted a policy for prevention of 
Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace and has 
set up Committee for implementation of said policy. 
During the year, the Company has not received any 
complaint of harassment.

23. Conservation of energy, technology absorption 
and foreign exchange earnings and outgo

The details of conservation of energy, technology 
absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo are 
as follows:

a) 	 Conservation of energy

	 The Company being mainly a trading concern, is 
consuming power for the purpose of office use 
only. Installed the 15 Kwp on Grid Roof top Solar 
power plant at Registered Office of the Company, 
to conserve and minimize the usage of power by.

(b) 	 Technology absorption

	 The Company being a trading Company, has not 
availed any technology from any one at any time.

(c) 	 Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo

	 Foreign Exchange earned:Nil(Previous year - Nil) 

	 Foreign Exchange outgo: Nil(Previous year-Nil) 

24. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)  

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a 
company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs 
to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for 
the immediately preceding three financial years on 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities. The 
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areas for CSR activities are promoting education and 
healthcare. A CSR Committee has been formed by 
the Company as per the Act. The funds were spent on 
these activities which are specified in Schedule VII of 
the Companies Act, 2013. The Details about the CSR 
initiatives taken during the year referred to in Section 
135(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, in the prescribed 
format is enclosed as Annexure III to this report.

25. Human Resources 

Your Company treats its “human resources” as one of 
its most important assets. 

Your Company continued to give thrust for training 
and development of the employees. During the year 
2020-21 to improve the employee’s performance, the 
company had imparted 25 employees (Executives/ 
Officer and Employee) to training programme.  In 
future, the Company has planned for more Training 
Programmes. 

During 2020-21 (up to March 31, 2021) There are 123 
employees in your Company (Executives/ Officer 49 & 
Staff 74) of which, one officer is on deputation at PWD.
26. Project / Estate Department

Your Company has already ventured into office-
cum-warehousing infrastructure sector and the 
warehousing complex and office space at Mysore 
are earning revenue.  The warehousing complex at 
Baikampady, Mangalore has been let out and earning 
revenue.  The Company has taken up construction of 
warehouse on land measuring one acre allotted by 
KIADB at Kapoor Industrial Area.  The construction 
work is in progress.  During March 2020, the work has 
suddenly stopped due to COVID-19 pandemic and the 
Contractor has requested to extend the completion 
period.  This warehouse will be utilized for housing the 
paper godown operations and remaining space will be 
rented out to generate additional revenue. The Project 
Division is planning to construct the office / commercial 
complex and warehouse at Amargol, Navanagar, 
Hubli. The detailed Project (DPR) Report is in process.

27. Directors’ Responsibility Statement
To the best of their knowledge and belief and according 
to the information and explanation obtained by them, 
your Directors make the following statement in terms 

of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, shall state that-
(a) 	 in the preparation of the annual accounts for 

the financial year ended March 31, 2021, the 
applicable accounting standards had been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures;

(b) 	 the directors had selected such accounting 
policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the company at March 31, 
2021 and of the profit and loss of the company for 
that period;

(c) 	 the directors had taken proper and sufficient care 
for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

(d) 	 the directors had prepared the annual accounts 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, on a 
going concern basis; and

(f) 	 the directors had devised proper systems to 
ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were 
adequate and operating effectively.

28. Transfer of Amounts to Investor Education and 
Protection Fund

Your Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or 
unclaimed for a period of seven years. Therefore, there 
were no funds which were required to be transferred to 
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). 
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Annexure I
FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2021

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & 
Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1. CIN U85110KA1966SGC001612
2. Registration Date 17.3.1966
3. Name of the Company MYSORE SALES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
4. Category/Sub-category of the Company Company limited by shares / State Government 

Company
5. Address of the Registered office  & contact details “MSIL House”, No.36, Cunningham Road, 

Bengaluru-560 052.
 080-22264021-26

6. Whether listed company Unlisted
7. Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar & 

Transfer Agent, if any.
Not applicable

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 10 % or 
more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated)

Sl. 
No.

Name and Description of main 
products / services

NIC Code of the 
Product/service

%  to total turnover of the 
Company

1 Beverages 47221 86.33%
2 Chit Funds 64990 9.71%

	

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

Sl. 
No Name Address of the 

Company CIN / GLN
Holding / 

Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of 
shares 

held

Applicable 
Section

1. Karnataka State Industrial 
and Infrastructure 

Development Corporation 
Limited

Khanija Bhavan 
49, 4th Floor, Race 

Course Road
Bengaluru - 1

U93000KA1964
ULL001532

Associate 
Company

47% Section 
2(6)

2. Marketing Communication 
and Advertising Limited

No.42, MCA House, 
Millers Road, 

Bengaluru - 52

U51101KA1972
PLC002242

Subsidiary 100% Section 
2(87)

3. Mysore Chrome Tanning 
Company Limited

C/o MSIL, No. 36 
Cunningham Road

Bengaluru - 1

U85110KA1940
SGC000261

Subsidiary 95.10% Section 
2(87)

4. Food Karnataka Limited No.17, Richmond 
Road, Bengaluru - 25

U01513KA2003
PLC031873

Associate 50% Section 
2(6)
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VI. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN 
(Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
Category-wise Share Holding

Category of 
Shareholders

 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year [As on 01-April-2021 / end of the year 

(31.03.2021)]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 
[As on 31-March-2021]

% Change
during

the year
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 
Shares

A. Promoters          
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF - - - - - - -
b) Central Govt - - - - - - -
c) State Govt(s) 2255817 2255817 53% N.A. 2255817 2255817 53%
d) Bodies Corp. 2017660 2017660 47% N.A. 2017660 2017660 47%
e) Banks / FI - - - - - - -
f) Any other - - - - - - -
Total 
shareholding of 
Promoter (A)

2017660 2017660 100% N.A. 4273477 4273477 100%

B. Public 
Shareholding
1. Institutions - - - - - - -
a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - -
b) Banks / FI - - - - - - -
c) Central Govt - - - - - - -
d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - -
e) Venture Capital 
Funds

- - - - - - -

f) Insurance 
Companies

- - - - - - -

g) FIIs - - - - - - -
 h) Foreign Venture 
Capital Funds

- - - - - - -

i) Others (specify) - - - - - - -
Sub-total (B)(1):- - - - - - - -
2. Non-
Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian - - - - - - -
ii) Overseas - - - - - - -
b) Individuals - - - - - - -
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i) Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital up to 
Rs. 1 lakh

- - - - - - -

ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital in 
excess of Rs 1 
lakh

- - - - - -

c) Others (specify) - - - - - -
Non Resident 
Indians

- - - - - -

Overseas 
Corporate Bodies

- - - - - -

Foreign Nationals - - - - - -
Clearing Members - - - - - -
Trusts - - - - - -
Foreign Bodies 
- D R

- - - - - -

Sub-total (B)(2):- - - - - - -
Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

- - - - - -

C. Shares held 
by Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs

- - - - - -

Grand Total 
(A+B+C)

2017660 2017660 100% N.A. 4273477 4273477 100% NO
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B) Shareholding of Promoter-

Sl.
No.
 

Shareholder’s Name
 

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year

Shareholding at the end of the year % 
change 

in
Share 

holding 
during 

the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

1 Governor of 
Karnataka

2255817 53% - 2255817 53% -

2 KSIIDC
Following 6
Individuals
are holding
shares on
behalf of
KSIIDC
1) MD, KSIIDC
2) MD, MSIL
3) N R N Simha
4) Y Sreenivasappa
5) N K Parashuram

2017570

40
10
20
10
10

47% - 2017570

40
10
20
10
10

47% -

C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl.
No.

Particulars

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company
At the beginning of the year

No Changes

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Promoters Shareholding during 
the year specifying the reasons for 
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment 
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year
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D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: 
     (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): Nil

E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl.
No.

Shareholding of each Directors and 
each Key Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the 
beginning
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company
At the beginning of the year –

1. Managing Director, KSIIDC 40 0.001% 40 0.001%
2 Managing Director, MSIL/ Key 

Managerial Personnel
10 0.0005% 10 0.0005%

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Promoters Shareholding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / 
bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year –
There is no change in the shareholdings

No. change

V. INDEBTEDNESS - Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for 
payment.

(Rs. in lakhs)
 	

Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 
financial year

    

i) Principal Amount - - - -
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) - - - -
Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year
* Addition
* Reduction
Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the 
financial year
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii) - - - -
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

(Rs. in lakhs)

Sl
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total 
Amount

  MD ---- ---- ---  
1 Gross salary      

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) 
of the Income-tax Act, 1961

40.39 40.39

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- 
tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option
3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission

-  as % of profit
-  others, specify…

5 Others, please specify
 Total (A) 40.39 40.39
 Ceiling as per the Act

 (Rs. in lakhs)
B. Remuneration to other directors

Sl
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount

1 Independent Directors: Shri R Ramesh
Dr. Lokesh M
Shri Venkatesh Naidu

6000
4000

15000
2 Other Non-Executive Directors Shri Chennadevaru

Shri Totappa Nagappa Nidagundi
Shri Andappa Javali
Shri Shivaji Shivaray Dollina
Shri Ningappa
Shri K M Ravnindra
Dr. R D Satish 

21000
12000
15000
15000

9000
18000
21000

Fee for attending board committee meetings 
–  Rs.2,000/- per Meeting

Shri Gaurav Gupta, IAS                                             
Shri Ganga Ram Baderiya, IAS                            
Shri Pavan Kumar Malapathi, IAS                       
Shri M S Srikar, IAS                                      
Shri Chandrashekar Nayak L, IAS                                           
Smt. Gunjan Krishna, IAS
Dr. Ram Prasath Manohar, IAS             

2000
4000
2000
6000
8000
6000
4000
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 Commission  
Others, please specify    
Total (1)    

2 Fee for attending board 
committee meetings

 

Commission    
Others, please specify    

 Total (2)    
 Total (B)=(1+2)     
 Total Managerial Remuneration
 Overall Ceiling as per the Act    

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
(Rs. in lakhs)

Sl
No. Particulars of Remuneration 

Key Managerial Personnel
CEO CS CFO Total

1 Gross salary   18.71  23.84  
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) 
of the Income-tax Act, 1961

 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961  
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961

 

2 Stock Option  
3 Sweat Equity  
4 Commission  
 -  as % of profit  
  others, specify…  
5 Others, please specify  
 Total   18.71  23.84

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type

Section 
of the 

Companies 
Act

Brief 
Description

Details of 
Penalty / 

Punishment/ 
Compounding 
fees imposed

Authority 
[RD / 
NCLT/ 

COURT] 

Appeal 
made, if 

any (give 
Details)

A. COMPANY                                                                       Nil
Penalty      
Punishment      
Compounding      
B. DIRECTORS                                                                   Nil
Penalty      
Punishment      
Compounding      
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C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT                                         Nil
Penalty      
Punishment      
Compounding      

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 212 (8) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 RELATING TO SUBSIDIARY 
COMPANY
In accordance with the General Circular No: 2/2011 dated 8 February, 2011, issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs, Government of India, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and other documents of 
the subsidiary are not being attached with the Annual Accounts of the Company. The annual Accounts of the 
subsidiary company and related information will be made available to the shareholders of the Company and its 
subsidiary company on request and will also be kept open for inspection by the shareholders at the Registered 
Office of the Company and the subsidiary.

Name of Subsidiary Company M/s  Marketing 
Communication & 
Advertising Ltd.

Issued & Subscribed Capital Rs. 357.25
Reserves Rs. 15993.34
Total Assets Rs. 24146.71
Total Liabilities Rs.7796.12
Investments -
Turnover Rs.23600.83
Profit/(Loss)before Tax Rs. 878.92
Provision for Tax Rs. 250.05
Profit/(Loss) After Tax Rs. 628.87
Proposed Dividend -

Rs. in lakhs

Name of Subsidiary Company M/s  Mysore 
Chrome Tanning 
Company Limited

Issued & Subscribed Capital Rs.75,74
Reserves Rs. (841.13) 
Total Assets Rs. 65.26
Total Liabilities Rs.906.39
Investments -
Turnover -
Profit/(Loss)before Tax Rs. 3.54
Provision for Tax Rs. 0.95
Profit/(Loss) After Tax Rs. 2.59
Proposed Dividend Nil
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Annexure – III
Annual Report on CSR Activities

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013]
The Company constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR) Pursuant to section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The disclosures 
as required under the CSR policy/rules are provided herein below:
1.	 The Company’s CSR Policy is available on http://www.msilonline.com/CSRPOLICYOFMSIL.pdf   
	 The areas for CSR activities are promoting education and healthcare. The funds were spent on these 

activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.
2.	 The Composition of the CSR Committee:

1 Vikash Kumar Vikash, IPS – Chairman 
2 Shri R Ramesh - Member
3 Shri C Channadevaru – Member
4 Dr R D Sathish - Member

3.	 Average profit before tax of the company for last three financial years:
	 Rs. in lakhs

Details Financial year 
2019-20

Financial Year 
2018-19

Financial 
Year 2017-18

Profit as per Sec.198 of Companies Act, 2013 4246.68 3237.82 1486.84
Average Net Profits 2990.46

4.	 Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above)

5.	 Details of CSR spent during the financial year
	 a)	 Total amount to be spent for the financial year – Rs. 59.81 lakhs.
	 b)	 Amount unspent, if any – Nil
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	 c)	 Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Sl.
No.

CSR project 
or activity 
identified

Sector in which 
the project is 

covered

Projects or 
programs   (1) 

Local Area or other 
(2) Specify the 

State and district 
where projects 

or programs was 
undertaken

Amount 
outlay 

(budget) 
project or 
programs 

wise

Amount on 
the projects 
or programs 
Sub Heads:

(1) Direct 
Expenditure 
on projects 
or programs

(2) 
Overheads:

Cumulative 
expenditure 

up to the 
reporting 

period

Amount 
spent:

Direct or 
through 

implanting 
agency

1 Providing 
lift facility in 
Government 
Sub- Division 
Hospital – 
Sagara

Promoting health 
care including 
preventinve 
health care

Sagara-Karnataka Rs.22 Lakhs Rs.22 Lakhs Rs.22 
Lakhs

Through 
Nirmithi 
Kendra

2 Construction 
of Compound 
for Janata 
Vidyalaya 
Kullave

Promoting 
education, 
including special 
education

Baruru, Sirsi, 
Uttara Kannada 
District - Karnataka

Rs.3 Lakhs Rs.3 Lakhs Rs.3 Lakhs Through 
Shala
bhivrudhi 
Committee

3 Construction 
of Staff Room, 
Wash Room 
and Additional 
Room in 
Sarkari 
Padavi 
Poorva 
College, 
Sagara

Promoting 
education, 
including special 
education

Sagara-Karnataka Rs.35 Lakhs Rs.35 Lakhs Rs.35 
Lakhs

Through 
Nirmithi 
Kendra

4 Construction 
of new 
classroom, 
smart class, 
well equipped 
library and 
Balodyana in 
Sarkari Hiriya 
Prathamika 
Shaale

Promoting 
education, 
including special 
education

Padavagoddu – 
Karnataka 

Rs.20 Lakhs Rs.20 Lakhs Rs.20 
Lakhs

Through 
Nirmithi 
Kendra
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5 Library 
Development 
for Mangalore 
One School

Promoting 
education, 
including special 
education

Mangalore – 
Karnataka 

Rs.3 Lakhs Rs.3 Lakhs Rs.3 Lakhs Direct

6 Installation of 
well-equipped 
Cath Lab in 
TSS Shripad 
Hegde 
Kadave 
Institute 
of Medical 
Sciences 

Promoting health 
care including 
preventinve 
health care

Sirsi - Karnataka Rs.3 Lakhs Rs.3 Lakhs Rs.3 Lakhs Through 
Seva 

Samithi – 
Sirsi

7 Purchase 
of furniture 
to Shri 
Siddaganga 
Anda Makkala 
Shaale, 
Siddaganga 
Mutt

Promoting 
education, 
including special 
education

Tumkur, Karnataka Rs.3 Lakhs Rs.3 Lakhs Rs.3 Lakhs Direct

8 Renovation of 
Sarkari Hiriya 
Prathamika 
Paata Shaale 
Building, 

Promoting 
education, 
including special 
education

Ravandur, 
Piriyapatna Taluk, 
Mysore- Karnataka 

Rs.3 Lakhs Rs.3 Lakhs Rs.3 Lakhs Direct

6.	 In case the company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of the last three financial 
years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board 
report:	

	 	 The Company has spent fully.
7.	 The implantation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the 

Company.
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Annexure - IV
FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For The Financial Year Ended 31st March 2020
[Pursuant To Section 2014(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To 
The Members,
MYSORE SALES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Bangalore-560 052

I/We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 
to good corporate practices by MYSORE SALES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (U85110KA1966SGC001612) 
having its Registered Office at, MSIL House, 36, Cunningham Road, Bangalore 560052 (hereinafter called the 
Company). 

The Company is a “Government Company” and is mainly engaged in trading activities for Beverages, Paper, 
Consumer Products, Industrial Products, Imported Sand and Pharma Products, besides Chit Fund Business and 
Tours and Travels. As per the Articles of Association, the Company is also required to comply with the directions 
and guidelines issued by Government of Karnataka from time to time. As per Notification NO G.S.R. ,463(E) 
dated 5th June 2015 by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government Companies are exempted from complying 
with some of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me/us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conduct/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my/our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I/We hereby report that in my/our opinion, the 
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2021, complied with the 
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I/we have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2021, according to the provisions of:

a) 	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder; 

b) 	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

c) 	 The Karnataka Chit Fund Act, 1982 (We were informed that for Chit Fund Business, the Company is not 
required to be classified as a Non Banking Finance Company) 

d) 	 Karnataka Excise Act, 1968 

e) 	 Karnataka Shops and Commercial Establishment Act, 1961 

f) 	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outflow 
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g) 	 The Karnataka Tax on Professions, Trades, Callings and Employment Act, 1976 

h) 	 Industrial and Labour Laws as applicable to the Company.

I/we have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

a. 	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

b. 	 I/we further report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and a Women Director as required 
under the proviso to Section 149 (1) and Notification No G.S.R. ,463(E) dated 5th June 2015 by Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, Government of India. 

c. 	 The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review 
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

d. 	 Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at 
the meeting. 

e. 	 Majority/Unanimous decision is carried through and there has been no instance of any dissent by any 
Members. 

I/we further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable other laws, rules, regulations 
and guidelines. 

I/we further report that during the audit period, the Company:
i.	 Has not issued any Public/Right/Preferential shares / debentures/sweat equity, etc. 
ii.	 Was not required to Redeem /buy back securities. 
iii.	 No Major decisions were taken by the members in pursuance to Section 180 of the Companies Act, 

2013 
iv.	 Has not undertaken Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, etc. 
v.	 Has not entered into Foreign technical collaborations 

In general, it was observed that the Company, being a Government Company and subject to CAG Audit, is 
maintaining all the required records properly and have established systems and procedures for complying with 
various applicable laws.

	 For S Viswanathan
	 Company Secretaries
	 Sd/-
	 S. Viswanathan
Date: September 14, 2021	 Company Secretaries
Place: Bengaluru	 C P No 5284
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ANNEXURE “A”

To,
The Members,
MYSORE SALES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Dear Sir,

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of Secretarial Records. The verification was done on test basis 
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in the secretarial records. We believe that the processes and 
practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of any of the financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the Company including the records pertaining to Goods and Service Taxes, Income Tax, 
Customs and other related enactments applicable to the Company.

4.	 Where ever required, the Company has represented about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 
and happening of events etc as applicable from time to time. The compliance under the industry specific 
laws were examined based on the list of applicable laws provided by the company.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards are 
the responsibility of Management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test 
basis.

6.	 The secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

	 For S Viswanathan
	 Company Secretaries
	 Sd/-
	 S. Viswanathan
Date: September 14, 2021	 Company Secretaries
Place: Bengaluru	 C P No 5284
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TEN YEARS PERFORMANCE
FINANCIAL HIGLIGHTS OF PREVIOUS TEN FINANCIAL YEARS

(Rs. in lakhs)

Partuculars 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21
Net Worth 
(Share Capital, 
Reserve)

18412.05 20637.85 23701.53 26814.97 30051.70 33190.30 33503.15 34392.26 39996.46 45228.55

Paid-up Capital 366.23 366.23 2017.66 2017.66 2017.66 2017.66 4273.48 4273.48 4273.48 4273.48
Share 
Application 
Money

3907.25 3907.25 2255.82 2255.82 2255.82 2255.82 - - - -

Reserves & 
Surplus

14138.57 16364.37 19428.05 22541.49 25778.22 31172.64 29229.68 301208.48 35722.99 40955.07

Borrowings from 
Banks

- - - - - - - - - -

Net Fixed Assets 4071.36 4097.95 4221.84 5624.66 5626.25 6225.01 6974.83 7966.36 9590.61 9707.76
Turnover 71749.54 97828.66 120066.30 146039.32 151490.80 161407.69 178875.91 204763.86 227065.31 276386.99
Profit before Tax 3160.37 3528.05 4660.26 6052.27 5400.50 5699.87 1486.84 3237.82 4246.68 6814.71
Dividend - 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% - 5% 5% 7.5%
Net Earning after 
tax
per share (in Rs)

755.35 625.69 162.96 166.36 178.71 181.68 12.68 46.30 61.45 127.43

Net Worth per
Share (in Rs)

3960.57 4568.33 1062.90 1217.21 1377.63 1644.99 783.98 830.28 935.92 1058.35
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SUMMARISED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT OF PREVIOUS TEN FINANCIAL YEARS
(Rs. in lakhs)

Partuculars 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21
Turnover 71749.54 97828.66 120066.30 146039.32 151490.80 161407.69 178875.91 204763.86 227065.31 276386.97
Gross Income 8204.97 10751.19 12325.68 14919.86 15490.81 16453.84 17952.46 20742.63 22446.00 27099.20
Selling & 
Administrative
Expenses

6105.53 6646.46 6965.11 8923.90 9636.88 10433.61 15990.08 16723.59 16658.51 18557.50

Interest 28.78 51.58 30.76 48.68 145.35 2.44 0.90 33.52 0.33 1.30
Depreciation 229.07 245.46 280.77 291.01 255.39 285.21 341.85 721.80 1495.40 1725.69
Provision/
Write off

328.48 302.75 399.05 47.72 91.36 50.60 132.79 25.90 45.08 -

TOTAL 6691.86 7246.25 7675.69 9311.31 10128.98 10771.86 16465.62 17504.81 18199.32 20284.49
Profit before tax 1513.11 3504.94 4649.99 5608.55 5361.83 5681.98 1486.84 3237.82 4246.68 6814.71
Provision for 
taxation

1080.78 1313.16 1372.76 2252.67 1923.22 1978.80 939.77 1153.69 1096.79 2017.85

Deferred Tax 
Credit

(686.75) (76.58) (20.96) (0.62) (167.21) 37.48 5.22 105.33 524.04 (685.92)

Profit after tax 1119.08 2268.36 3298.19 3356.50 3605.82 3665.70 541.85 1978.80 2625.84 5445.78
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SUMMARISED BALANCE SHEET OF PREVIOUS TEN FINANCIAL YEARS
(Rs. in lakhs)

Partuculars 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21
OWN FUNDS
Share Capital 366.23 366.23 2017.66 2017.66 2017.66 2017.66 4273.48 4273.48 4273.48 4273.48
Share 
Application 
Money

3907.25 3907.25 2255.82 2255.82 2255.82 2255.82 - - - -

Reserves & 
Surplus

14138.57 16364.37 19428.05 22541.49 25778.22 31172.64 29229.68 301208.48 35722.99 40955.07

TOTAL 18412.05 20637.85 23701.53 26814.97 30051.70 35446.12 33503.16 305481.96 39996.47 45228.55
LOAN FUNDS -
Short-Term Loan 77.42 53.88 53.88 53.88 53.88 53.88 53.88 53.88 53.88 53.88
Funds 
Employed

77.42 53.88 53.88 53.88 53.88 53.88 53.88 53.88 53.88 53.88

Deferred Tax 
Liability (Net)

- - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL 18489.47 20691.73 23755.41 26868.85 30105.58 35500.00 33557.04 305535.84 40050.35 45282.43
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed Assets 4071.36 4097.95 4221.84 5624.66 5626.25 6225.01 6974.83 7966.36 9590.61 9707.76
Investments 1336.06 1336.06 1336.06 1336.06 1336.51 3361.36 2900.13 2998.03 3178.12 3406.18
Deferred Tax 
Asset (Net)

748.46 825.04 846.00 846.62 1013.83 976.35 971.13 865.80 341.77 990.69

Working Capital 12333.59 14432.68 17351.51 19061.51 22128.99 24937.28 22710.95 293705.65 26939.85 31177.80
T O T A L 18489.47 20691.73 23755.41 26868.85 30105.58 35500.00 33557.04 305535.84 40050.35 45282.43
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ACCOUNTS (STANDALONE)
FOR  THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH 2021

Mysore Sales 
International Limited
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To 
The Members of 
Mysore Sales International Limited

Report on the Audit of the  Standalone Ind AS Financial 
Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind 
AS financial statements of Mysore Sales International 
Limited (“the Company”), which conprise the Balance 
Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss, including the Statement of Other Comprehensive 
Income, Statements of Cash Flows and Statement of 
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes 
to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, except 
for the effects of the matters described under the 
“Basis for Qualified Opinion” section of our report 
the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements 
give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and profit 
including other comprehensive income, its cash flows 
and changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

We have issued an Audit Report dated 21 September 
2021 (“the original report”) at Bangalore on the financial 
statements as adopted by Board of Directors on even 
date. Pursuant to the observation of Comptroller and 
Auditor General of India under section 143(6)(a) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we have revised the said Audit 
Report. 

This revised Audit Report has no impact on the reported 
figures in the financial statements of the Company 
except for point(d) under para basis for qualified 
opinion. This Audit Report supersedes the original 
report, which has been suitably revised to consider 
observations of Comptroller and Auditor General of 
India.

Basis for Qualified Opinion:

a.	 Balance confirmation of trade receivables, trade 
payables, other payables & advance are not 
received from third parties. These balances 
are subject to confirmations and consequent 
adjustments, if required. In absence of balance 
confirmations, financial impact on standalone 
financial statements is not ascertainable.

b.	 In the absence of (i) proper records being 
maintained/updated and produced to us for the 
inventory of traded goods viz. imported river 
sand and pharmaceutical products; (ii) periodical 
physical verification and reconciliation exercise 
(including roll forward or roll back) being carried out 
by the management; (iii) obtaining confirmation of 
stock of imported river sand as on Balance Sheet 
date, from the port authorities where these stocks 
are stored; and (iv) confirmation on the quantity 
of the closing stock, we are unable to comment 
on the correctness of the quantity and/or value 
of closing inventory of imported river sand and 
pharmaceutical products amounting to Rs. 1372 
lakhs and Rs 170.68 lakhs respectively included 
under Closing Stock as of 31 March 2021.

	 Inventories have been write-down to the net 
realisable value and the resultant loss of Rs 
727.71 Lakhs has been recognized in books of 
account. However the details of the write-down 
of Rs 500 lakhs in respect of sand (PY: Nil), Rs 
169.48 lakhs for paper products (PY: Rs 87.09 
lakhs) and Rs 58.23 lakhs (PY : Nil) in respect of 
pharmaceutical products has not been disclosed 
under Note no 9-Inventories to the Financial 
Statements.

c.	 The Company has accrued for rental Income of 
Rs 206.85 lakhs from Karnataka Bhavan, Mumbai 
and has also made an equivalent provision during 
the year ending March 2021. However, the details 
of the provision made is not disclosed under Note 
no 4 Investment Property.

d.	 The Company has not accounted for rental 
Income of Rs 441.14 lakhs from few tenants 
for the period up to 31 March 2020.  Had the 

REVISED INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Company accounted the rental income (pre-tax) 
in the respective years, the other equity of the 
company would have increased by an amount of 
Rs 441.14 lakhs and other financial assets of the 
Company would have increased by Rs 441.14 
lakhs. However, the Company has accounted the 
same in the current year and has not corrected 
the error by retrospectively restating the 
comparative amounts for prior periods presented 
in which the error occurred or by restating the 
opening statement of financial position, where 
the error occurred before the earliest prior period 
presented, as required by Indian Accounting 
Standard 8 -Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors (Ind AS 8),which 
is a non-compliance with Ind AS 8.

e.	 Under Note No 41 (i), contingent liabilities related 
to Guarantees / Counter Guarantees given by 
the Company to Banks, the date of cancellation 
of the Bank Guarantees given to the Income Tax 
department being 2 July 2021 is not specified.  

f.	 In respect of pharma division, an amount of 
Rs. 12.48 lakhs, being the amount receivables 
towards cash sales, is reported under “Cash 
in Hand” in Note 11 to the financial statement. 
However, we were unable to obtain adequate 
and appropriate audit evidence except for the 
management’s certificate confirming the cash 
holding. 

g.	 The amounts disclosed under Note no 41 (vi) 
related to tax demand under contingent liabilities 
and commitment are incorrect. The correct 
amounts are given in the table below:

Assessment year Amount 
(in Rs. Lakhs)

2010-11 222.27
2015-16  15.87
2016-17 147.82
2017-18  91.16
TOTAL 477.12

h.	 The lease liability payments in the Cash Flow 
Statement are classified as “cash used in 
operating activities” instead of reporting under 
“cash used in financing activities” which is a 

non-compliance with accounting policy of the 
Company. 

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of 
the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 
our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements under the provisions 
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence, we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
qualified opinion.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 42 of the accompanying 
standalone financial statements, which describes the 
management’s evaluation of impact of uncertainties 
related to COVID-19 and its consequential effects 
on the operations of the Company. Our opinion is not 
modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements 
and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for 
the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Management Discussion 
and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures 
to the Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and 
Shareholder’s Information but does not include the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon.
In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
such other information is materially inconsistent 
with the standalone financial statements, or our 
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knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Responsibilities of Management for Standalone 
Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 
for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these standalone 
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the financial position, financial performance 
including other comprehensive income, cash flows 
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind 
AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for 
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for 
overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material 
misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls. 

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management. 

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

•
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If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure 
and content of the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the standalone Ind AS financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
standalone financial statements that, individually or 
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic 
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating 
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of 
any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) 
of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we 
give in the “Annexure-A” a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 
Order, to the extent applicable.

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we 

report that:

(a)	 We have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)	 Except for the possible effects of the matter 
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
paragraph above, in our opinion proper books 
of account as required by law have been kept 
by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books;

(c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the 
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books 
of account;

(d)	 Except for the possible effects of the 
matter described in the Basis for Qualified 
Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, 
the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial 
statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the 
Act read with relevant rule issued thereunder.

(e)	 The matters described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion section above, in our 
opinion, may not have an adverse effect on 
the functioning of the Company.

(f)	 In terms of Notification no. G.S.R. 463 
(E) dated 05-06-2015 issued by Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs, the Provisions of 
Section 164(2) of the Act, 2013 in respect of 
disqualification of directors are not applicable 
to the Company.

(g)	 We have also audited the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the 
Company as at 31 March 2021 in conjunction 
with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date and our report as per 
“Annexure B” expressed a qualified opinion;

(h)	 Since the provisions of Section 197 of the 
Act does not apply to the Company, reporting 
requirements under Section 197(16) of the 
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Act is not applicable.

(i)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us:

i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position in 
its financial statements –Refer Note 41 to the 
financial statements.

ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses.

iii.	 There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company.

3.	 As required under Section 143(5) of the Act, 
which is applicable to the Company, findings on 

the directions issued by Comptroller and Auditor 
General of India is annexed (Refer-“Annexure-C”).

		  For Abarna & Ananthan
	 Chartered Accountants
	 Firm Registration No: 000003S
	 Sd/-
	 (Abarna Bhaskar)
	 Partner 
	 Membership No: 025145
	 UDIN: 21025145AAAACQ7100
Place: Bengaluru	
Date: 03-12-2021
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The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ 
Report to the members of the Company on the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year 
ended 31 March 2021, we report that:

1.	 (a)	 The Company has maintained the data on  
	 fixed assets electronically.

(b)	 The Company did not provide the report for 
having conducted the physical verification of 
fixed assets during the year. In the absence 
of a physical verification report, we are 
unable to comment on discrepancy if any, 
identified during such physical verification.

(c)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and based on the examination 
of the conveyance deeds provided to us, we 
report that, the title deeds, comprising the 
immovable properties of land and buildings 
which are freehold, are held in the name 
of the Company as at the balance sheet 
date. In respect of immovable properties in 
the nature of land that have been taken on 
lease and disclosed as property, plant and 
equipment in the financial statements, the 
lease agreements are in the name of the 
Company. The title deeds in respect of the 
following properties were not made available 
to us for our verification.

Name of 
Property

Location of 
Property

Nature of 
Property

MSIL House-Cunningham 
Road

Cunningham 
Road, 

Bangalore

Free 
Hold

Bangalore Air Cargo 
Complex  Survey no 53, 1 
acre 32 guntas at Konena 
Agrahara , Varthur

Bangalore Lease
hold

2.	 2.	 According to the information and 
explanations given to us, Inventory held by the 
Company and other stocks lying with contractors 
and other parties has been physically verified by 
the Management at reasonable intervals during 

the year and that no material discrepancies 
have been noticed on such verification except 
for imported river sand and pharmaceutical 
products. However, in absence of adequate 
evidence of physical verification of the inventory, 
we are unable to comment on the adequacy and 
frequency of such verification and correctness 
of the procedure of physical verification of 
inventories followed by the management.

	 In absence of a formal report for the physical 
verification of inventories conducted by the 
management, we are also unable to comment 
on the discrepancies between physical stock 
and stock as per books of account, if any and 
adjustment thereof in the books of accounts in 
respect these stock items.

3.	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not granted any 
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, 
firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties 
covered in the Register maintained under section 
189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of 
paragraph 3 (iii) (a) (b) and (c) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company.

4.	 In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not given any loan or made any investments or 
given any guarantee or security to which the 
provisions of the sections 185 and 186 of the Act 
are applicable.

5.	 The Company has not accepted deposits during 
the year and does not have any unclaimed 
deposits as at 31 March 2021 and therefore, the 
provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

6.	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company is not required 
to maintain Cost Records pursuant to the 
Companies (Cost records and Audit) Rules, 
2014, as amended and prescribed by the Central 
Government under section 148(1) of the Act. 

“ANNEXURE – A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT



41

7.	 (a)	 The Company has generally been regular in  
	 depositing undisputed statutory dues,  
	 including Provident Fund, Employees State  
	 Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service  
	 Tax, Custom Duty, Cess and other material  
	 statutory dues applicable to it with the  
	 appropriate authorities, though there has  
	 been a slight delay in a few cases.

(b)	 There were no undisputed amounts payable 
in respect of Provident Fund, Employees 
State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and 
Service Tax, Custom Duty, Cess and other 
material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 
March 2021 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable 
except below.

Name of the 
Statute

Nature 
of 

Dues

Amount
(Rs in 
Lakhs)

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates

The Building and Other 
Construction Workers’
Welfare Cess Act, 1996

Workers’ 
welfare 
cess

0.69 2013-14

The Building and Other 
Construction Workers’
Welfare Cess Act, 1996

Workers’ 
welfare 
cess

0.23 2014-15

(c)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us, there are no dues of Income tax, 
Service tax, Goods and Services Tax, Value 
added tax / Sales tax and Cess which have 
not been deposited with the appropriate 
authorities on account of any dispute except 
for the below. 

SI.
No.

Name of the 
Statute

Nature of dues Period to which 
amount relates

Amt. Rs.
in Lakhs.

Forum where
Dispute is pending

1 Finance Act, 
1994

Service Tax 2005-06 and 
2006-07

48.00 Customs, Excise and Service 
Tax Appellate Tribunal

2 Finance Act, 
1994

Service Tax 2002-03 and 
2003-04

26.00 Customs, Excise and Service 
Tax Appellate Tribunal

3 Finance Act, 
1994

Service Tax 2002-03 and 
2003-04

37.00 Customs, Excise and Service 
Tax Appellate Tribunal

4 Finance Act, 
1994

Service Tax 2007-08 and 
2008-09

36.00 Customs, Excise and Service 
Tax Appellate Tribunal

5 Finance Act, 
1994

Service Tax 2013-14 to 2014-
15

48.00 Customs, Excise and Service 
Tax Appellate Tribunal

6 Finance Act, 
1994

Service Tax 2015-16 72.00 Customs, Excise and Service 
Tax Appellate Tribunal

7 Finance Act, 
1994

Service Tax 2016-17 23.00 Customs, Excise and Service 
Tax Appellate Tribunal

8 Income Tax Act, 
1961

Tax collection at source 1995-96 to 
2000-01

2005.00 Supreme Court

Tax collection at source 2001-02 to 
2003-04

1017.00 High Court, Bengaluru

Tax collection at source 1994-95 to 
1999-2000

3067.00 Supreme Court

9 Income Tax Act, 
1961

Disallowance under 
Income Tax Act

AY 2010-11 222.27 Commissioner of Income Tax 
(Appeals)

10 Income Tax Act, 
1961

Disallowance under 
Income Tax Act

AY 2014-15 -- Income Tax Appellate 
Tribunal, Bengaluru
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11 Income Tax Act, 
1961

Disallowance under 
Income Tax Act

AY 2015-16 15.87 Commissioner of Income Tax 
(Appeals)

12 Income Tax Act, 
1961

Disallowance under 
Income Tax Act

AY 2016-17 147.82 Commissioner of Income Tax 
(Appeals)

13 Income Tax 
Act, 1961

Disallowance under 
Income Tax Act

AY 2017-18 91.16 Commissioner of Income 
Tax (Appeals)

8.	 The Company has not taken any loans or 
borrowings from financial institutions, banks and 
government or has not issued any debentures. 
Hence, reporting under clause 3 (viii) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company.

9.	 The Company has not raised any money by way of 
initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) and term loans during the year. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not 
applicable.

10.	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no material fraud by the Company or 
on the Company by its officers or employees has 
been noticed or reported during the year. 

11.	 In terms of Notification no. G.S.R. 463(E) dt. 
05-06-2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs, the provisions of section 197 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 relating to managerial 
remuneration are not applicable to the Company.

12. 	 The Company is not a Nidhi company and 
therefore the provisions of Clause 3 (xii) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

13.	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, transactions with the 
related parties are in compliance with sections 
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and 

details of such transactions have been disclosed 
in the standalone Ind AS financial statements as 
required by the applicable accounting standards.

14.	 The Company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or fully 
or partly convertible debentures during the year 
and hence reporting under clause 3 (xiv) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

15.	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not 
entered into non cash transactions with directors 
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

16.	 The Company is not required to be registered 
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act 1934

	 For Abarna & Ananthan
	 Chartered Accountants
	 Firm Registration No: 000003S
	 Sd/-
	 (Abarna Bhaskar)
	 Partner 
	 Membership No: 025145
	 UDIN: 21025145AAAACQ7100
Place: Bengaluru	
Date:03.12.2021
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“ANNEXURE – B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of Mysore Sales International 
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in 
conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards 
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the 
Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial 

controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and 
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that: -

1.	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
Company; 

2.	 provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally 
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accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the Company are being 
made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and

3.	 provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance 
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on our audit, the following material 
weakness have been identified as at 31 March 2021

a)	 The Company did not have an appropriate 
internal control system for obtaining external 
balance confirmation on a periodic basis. This 
could potentially result in inaccurate assets and 
liabilities being disclosed in the books of accounts 
and may have an impact on financial results of 
the Company.

b)	 The title deeds of few immovable properties are 
not available with the Company. 

c)	 The company did not have an appropriate internal 
control system related to maintenance of its fixed 
assets. The physical verification of the fixed 
assets is not carried out periodically. Hence non 
availability of assets if any, were not identified. The 

absence of program of verification of fixed asset 
will potentially result in incorrect depreciation 
provision and assessment of impairment.

d)	 The Company did not have an integrated ERP 
system encompassing all its operations, as the 
accounting of beverage, chit and paper divisions 
are made in a standalone soft ware.  The trail 
balance from these softwares are consolidated 
with the trail balances of the other divisions in 
tally. To this extent, there is a manual intervention 
in the flow of data. 

e)	 The accounting software used by the chit division 
is neither supported by the vendor  nor company 
has requisite technically skilled staff to mitigate 
the risk of  technical issues if any, arises in future.  

f)	 The revenue in respect of the completed tours 
is not recognized as and when it accrues by the 
company in the Tours and Travel Division. This 
will result in under statement of income in books 
of account. 

g)	 The procedure adopted for purchase of various 
property plant and equipment is not in compliance 
with the general purchase procedure for purchase 
above Rs.5.00 lakh. This could potentially result 
in irregularities in acquisition of property plant and 
equipment.

h)	 The company did not have appropriate internal 
control system towards periodic reconciliation of 
grants received from government agency and for 
submission of grants for the new pharma outlets 
opened. This will result in inaccurate disclosure of 
grant receivable in the books of accounts.

i)	 The company did not have an adequate system 
for physical verification, valuation of stock, and 
identification of non-moving/slow moving stock. 
Hence the diminution in value of stock is not dealt 
with. This could potentially result in overstatement 
of inventory in books of accounts.

j)	 The Company has not provided the Form 
X1(Receipts and expenditure account and 
Statement showing the assets and liabilities of 
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the individual Chit groups) filed with the Registrar, 
as required under Rule 20 (2) of Chit Funds 
(Karnataka) Rules, 1983.

k)	 The process in respect of approval of major repair 
and renovation work undertaken by the Company 
is not uniformly complied with the Delegation of 
Authority (DOA) approved by the Board.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial 
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that a material misstatement of the company’s annual 
or interim financial statements will not be prevented or 
detected on a timely basis.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of 
the material weakness described above on the 
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, 
the Company has maintained, in all material respects, 
adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting were operating effectively as of 
31 March 2021, based on the internal control over 

financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weakness identified 
and reported above in determining the nature, timing, 
and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 31 
March 2021 standalone financial statements of the 
company and the material weakness has affected our 
opinion on the standalone financial statements of the 
company and we have issued a qualified opinion on 
the standalone financial statements.

	 For Abarna & Ananthan
	 Chartered Accountants
	 Firm Registration No: 000003S
	 Sd/-
	 (Abarna Bhaskar)
	 Partner 
	 Membership No: 025145
	 UDIN: 21025145AAAACQ7100
Place: Bengaluru	
Date:03.12.2021
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“ANNEXURE – C” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Report under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the directions issued by 
the Comptroller and Auditor General of India

Sl. 
No.

Directions Compliance

1 Whether the company has system in place to 
process all the accounting transactions through 
IT system?  If yes, the implications of processing 
of accounting transactions outside IT system 
on the integrity of the accounts along with the 
financial implications, if any, may be stated.

Yes. The Company has a system in place to process 
all the accounting transactions through IT system. The 
reporting system used by the Company is Tally ERP.
However different accounting software that are not 
integrated to the Tally ERP (Tally) are being used by 
various departments.  The data flow from the stand-
alone software to the main accounting and reporting 
system ie Tally is not seamless. The departments 
extract the Trial Balance from their software and share 
it with the Accounts Department. These Trail balances 
are input in Tally manually. The basic data resides with 
the user department.
In the Chit operations the operations of 2 branches are 
maintained manually. The trial balance of the above 
branches are consolidated with the trial balance of the 
other branches manually.   

2 Whether there is any restructuring of an existing 
loan or cases of waiver/write off to debts/loans/
interest etc. made by a lender to the company 
due to the company’s inability to repay the 
loan?  If yes, the financial impact may be stated. 
Whether such case are properly accounted for? 
(In case, lender is a Government Company, 
then this direction is also applicable for statutory 
auditor of lender company). 

No loan is taken by the entity.

3 Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc) received/
receivable for specific schemes from Central/
State agencies were properly accounted for/
utilized as per its term and conditions?  List the 
cases of deviation.

There are no deviations. Funds are received for the 
newly opened Pharmacy outlets towards fittings, 
computer etc. The Company incurs the expenditure 
initially and then lodge the claims with the Central 
agency – BPPI. An amount of Rs 66.06 lakhs reported 
under the Government grant receivable is subject to 
reconciliation.

Additional Company Specific Directions:

(a) Whether the auditor has verified all the items with 
regards to Cash and Bank balances enclosed at 
Annexure-I. In case of specific non-compliances, 
whether the same has been reported?

Refer Annexure-I. No specific non-compliances were 
observed during the course of the audit.
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(b) Whether the Company has any unexplained 
balances and accounts operated under 
suspense head.

No. We have not noticed such instances during the 
course of the audit

(c) Whether the Company has an effective 
system for recovery of dues in respect of its 
sales activities and the dues outstanding and 
recoveries there against have been properly 
recorded in the books of accounts?

(a) 95.04% of Sales is on cash basis (Beverages 
Division). 
(b) The Company has an effective system of recovery 
of its dues in respect of the Chit activities.
(c) The recovery from the Debtors in Paper division 
is not done within the credit period stipulated in 
the Invoice in most of the cases. Out of the total 
recoverable of Rs. 3,449.92 lakhs (Gross), Rs. 808.83 
lakhs are outstanding for more than 6 months.
Based upon the audit procedures performed for the 
purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the 
financial statements and according to the information 
and explanations given by the management the 
debtors have been properly recorded in the books 
of accounts. However, balance confirmation has not 
been obtained from the debtors.

(d) Whether the Company has effective system 
for physical verification, valuation of stock, 
treatment of non-moving items and accounting 
the effect of shortage/ excess noticed during 
physical verification.

The system followed for physical verification, 
valuation of stock, treatment of non-moving items 
is not effective. Non moving items are not identified 
and the resultant diminution in value is not accounted 
properly. 
Eg: In the Sand Division, there has been no movement 
in the stock for the last 16 months. Out of the total 
stock imported of 1,03,872 MT in 2017-18 only 14,759 
MTs representing 14.21% of the total purchases has 
been sold till date. The Company does not have a 
procedure providing impairment for non-moving, 
slow moving items. However, the management has 
decided to provide for an impairment of Rs 5 crores 
on an adhoc basis. 
Valuation of stock is not reflected properly in the 
system except in Beverages Division, since stock is 
not accounted through stock register.

	 For Abarna & Ananthan
	 Chartered Accountants
	 Firm Registration No: 000003S
	 Sd/-
	 (Abarna Bhaskar)
	 Partner 
	 Membership No: 025145
	 UDIN: 21025145AAAACQ7100
Place: Bengaluru	
Date:03.12.2021
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MYSORE SALES INTERNATIONAL LTDBENGALURU
Replies to Qualification in statutory auditor’s report for the year 2020-2021
(Refer Basis for qualified opinion - audit report page No 1& 2)

Audit Query Company’s Reply
Balance confirmation of trade , trade payable , other payables 
& advance are not received from third parties. These balances 
are subject to confirmations and consequent adjustments, it 
required. In absence of balance confirmations, financial impact 
on standalone financials statement is not ascertainable.
a. (1) In the absence of (i) proper records being maintained/
updated and produced to us for the inventory of traded goods 
viz. imported river sand and pharmaceutical products: (ii) 
periodical physical verification and reconciliation exercise 
( including roll forwarder roll back) being carried out by the 
management; (iii) obtaining confirmation of stock of imported 
river sand as on Balance Sheet date, from the port authorities 
where these stocks are stored; and (iv) confirmation on the 
quantity of the closing stock,we are unable to comment on the 
correctness of the quantity and/or value of closing inventory of 
imported river sand and pharmaceutical products amounting 
to Rs. 1872 lakhs andRs. 228.91 lakhs respectively included 
under Closing Stocks as of 31st March 2021.
(2) Inventories have been written down to the net realisable 
value and the resultant loss of Rs. 727.71 has been recognized 
in the books of account. However, the details of the written 
down of Rs. 500 lakhs in respect of sand ( PY Nil), Rs. 82.39 
lakhs for paper products ( PY Rs. 87.09 lakhs) and Rs. 58.23 
lakhs ( PY Nil) in respect of pharmaceutical products has not 
been disclosed under Note No. 9 Inventories to the Financial 
Statements- Provision for Non-moving stock.

The Company has sent the balance 
confirmation as on 31st March 2021 in the 
accounts of Sundry creditors, sundry debtors, 
and business associates including joint 
ventures and advances /deposits for which 
we have received the confirmation partly.
The internal auditors were unable to carry out 
the auditing of Pharmacy outlets as on 31st 
March 2021 due to lockdown on account of 
COVID 19 and  also, the software provided 
by BPPI is unable to generate actual closing 
stock including expiry stock details.  The 
division is in the process of developing new 
software and the issue will be set right during 
the current financial year (2021-22).

With regard to sand the division has sold 
only 10,000 MT during the year 2019-20 
out of total quantity of 99119.41 MT . The 
authorized surveyors at Krishnapatnam Port 
M/s Equinox Marinetek Services India Private 
Limited  have conducted volumetric survey to 
ascertain the physical stock of sand during 
June 2021 and confirmed that the current 
stocks is 90,283 MTs ( approximately +-5%) 
available at the port.

b. The Company has accrued for rental Income of Rs. 206.85 
lakhs from Karnataka Bhavan, Mumbai and has also made an 
equivalent provision during the year ending March 2021. The 
details of the provision made are not disclosed under Not No. 
4 Investment Property.

This is only a disclosure observation and the 
same will be suitably addressed in the next 
year.

c. The Company has not accounted for rental Income of rs. 
441.14 lakhs from few tenants for the period up to 31st March 
2020. However, the company has accounted the same in the 
current year and has not corrected. Had the company accounted 
the rental income ( pre-tax) in the respective years, the other 
equity of the Company would have increased by Rs. 441.14 
lakhs and other financial assets of the Company would have 
increased by Rs. 441.14 lakhs. However, the Company has 
not corrected error by retrospectively restating the comparative 
amount for prior periods presented in which the error occurred or 
by restating the opening statement of financial position, where 
the error occurred before the earliest prior period presented 
as required by Indian Accounting Standard 8 – Accounting 
policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors ( Ind AS 
8), which is in our opinion non-compliance with Ind AS 8.

This is only a disclosure observation and the 
same will be suitably addressed in the next 
year.
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d. Under Note No. 41(i), Contingent liabilities related to 
Guarantees/ Counter Guarantees given by the Company to 
Banks, the data of cancellation of Bank Guarantee given to the 
Income Tax departments being 2nd July 2021 is not reported.

e. In respect of Pharma division, an amount of Rs. 12.48 lakhs, 
being the cash sales, is accounted under “ Cash in Hand” in 
Note 11 to the financial statement. However, we were unable 
to obtain adequate and appropriate audit evidence about the 
accuracy of the cash in hand except management’s certificate 
confirming the cash holding.

f. The disclosure made under Note no. 41 (vi) related to 
tax demand under contingent liabilities and commitment is 
incorrect. The correct disclosure is given in the table blow

AY                                   Amount-
(lakhs)

Status

2010-11  222.27 Appeal is pending before CIT(A)
IT department has filed an appeal
against the CIT order in relating to

allowance of Leave salary  - Appeal
is pending before CIT (A)

2015-16 15.87

This will be corrected in the next financial 
year.

We will ensure that the cash collected during 
the month of March is accounted correctly.

This is only a disclosure observation and the 
same will be suitably addressed in the next 
year.

g. The lease liability paymentsin the Cash Flow are classified 
as “cash used in operating activities” instead of reporting 
under “cash used in financing activities” which is a non-
compliance with accounting policy of the Company.

This is only a disclosure observation and the 
same will be suitably addressed in the next 
year.
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 
143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MYSORE 
SALES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED, BANGALORE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

The preparation of financial statements of Mysore Sales International Limited, Bengaluru  for 

the year ended 31st March 2021 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed 

under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the Company.  The 

Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139(5) of 

the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act 

based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 

143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Revised Audit Report dated  

3 December  2021 which superseades their earlier Audit Report dated 21 September 2021.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit of the 

financial statements of Mysore Sales International Limited, Bengaluru  for the year ended 31st March 2021 

under section 143(6)(a) of the Act.  This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access 

to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and 

company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

In view of the revision made in the Statutory Auditor’s Report, to give effect to some of my audit 

observations raised during supplementary audit, I have no further comments to offer upon or supplement to the 

statutory auditor’s report under section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

	 For and on behalf of the 
	 Comptroller & Auditor General of India
	 Sd/-
	 (ANUP FRANCIS DUNGDUNG)
	 ACCOUNTANT GENERAL
	 KARNATAKA, BENGALURU

BENGALURU
Date:07.12.2021
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MYSORE SALES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2021	
(ALL AMOUNTS IN RS LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

Sl.
No.

Particulars Note 
No.

 As at 
 31 March 2021 

 As at 
 31 March 2020 

 I ASSETS Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2  3,882.25  3,550.11 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3  425.86  161.16 
(c) Investment property 4  4,085.33  4,205.20 
(d) Other intangible assets 5  2.38  6.37 
(e) Right-of-use assets 5A  1,311.94  1,667.76 
(f) Financial assets
(i) Investments 6  3,406.18  3,173.13 
(ii) Other financial assets 7  -    10.19 
(g) Deferred tax assets (net) 29  990.69  341.77 
(h) Other non-current assets 8  738.96  707.61 
Total non-current assets  14,843.59  13,823.30 

Current assets
(a) Inventories 9  12,655.09  9,065.52 
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 10  4,554.61  3,543.63 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11  6,775.15  8,024.81 
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 12  17,923.29  16,091.21 
(iv) Other financial assets 7  21,033.85  20,135.29 
(c) Other current assets 8  3,966.08  4,268.15 
(d) Assets held for sale 30  5.00  5.00 

Total current assets  66,913.07  61,133.61 
Total assets  81,756.66  74,956.91 
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As per our Report of Even date 	

For Abarna & Ananthan  	
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm registration number: 000003S

Sd/-
(Abarna Bhaskar)

	 PARTNER	
Membership No : 025145

Place: Bengaluru	
Date:21.09.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mysore Sales International Limited

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	 Vikash Kumar Vikash	 H Halappa	
	 Managing Director	 Chairman	
	  DIN : 08122455	 DIN No: 02321290

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	  Ramakanth Hebballi 	 Sridevi B N	
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary 

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 13  4,273.48  4,273.48 
(b) Other equity 14  40,955.07  35,722.97 
Total equity  45,228.55  39,996.45 

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
     (i) Other Financial Liabilities 15  2,091.90  2,241.77 
(b) Provisions 16  1,510.74  1,384.80 
(c) Other non-current liabilities 17  3,640.84  3,640.84 
Total non-current liabilities  7,243.48  7,267.41 

Current liabilities 18
(a) Financial liabilities
     (i) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises -  19.58
(b) Total outstanding dues other than (i) (a) above  10,297.61  11,631.09
     (ii) Other financial liabilities 15  18,278.09  15,460.59
(b) Other current liabilities 17  395.94  386.32
(c) Provisions 16  312.99  195.47
Total current liabilities  29,284.63  27,693.05
Total Equity and Liabilities  81,756.66  74,956.91

Significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of 
the financial statements

1.2
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MYSORE SALES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021
(ALL AMOUNTS IN RS LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

Particulars Note Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Continuing operations

Revenue from operations 19  2,51,061.03  2,02,128.23 

Other income 20  3,104.77  2,113.29 

Total income  2,54,165.80  2,04,241.52 

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 21  1,230.44  1,300.68 

Purchase of traded goods 22  2,29,030.66  1,80,681.89 

Changes in inventories of finished goods and traded goods 23  (3,378.15)  (407.24)

Employee benefits expense 24  2,410.70  2,158.77 

Finance costs 25  161.65  228.24 

Depreciations and amortization expenses 26  1,725.69  1,495.40 

Other expenses 27  16,404.51  14,640.59 

Total expenses  2,47,585.50  2,00,098.33 

Profit before exceptional items and tax from continuing 
operations

 6,580.30  4,143.19 

Exceptional items  -    -   

Profit before tax from continuing operations  6,580.30  4,143.19 

Tax expense 29

(1) Current tax  1,991.30  1,065.48 

(2) Deferred tax  (648.92)  524.04 

(3) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods  26.55  31.31 

Profit for the year from continuing operations  5,211.37  2,522.36 

Discontinued operations 30

Profit/(loss) before tax for the year from discontinued 
operations

 (9.87)  (11.21)

Tax Income/ (expense) of discontinued operations  -    -   

Profit/ (loss) for the year from discontinued operations  (9.87)  (11.21)

Profit/(loss) for the year  5,201.50  2,511.15
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Particulars Note Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Other comprehensive income 31

(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Net (loss)/gain on equity instruments through Other 
Comprehensive Income

 233.05  180.09 

Income tax effect

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans  11.23  (65.40)

Income tax effect - -

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  244.28  114.69

Total comprehensive income for the year  5,445.78  2,625.84 

Earnings per share for continuing operations 32

Basic (Rs)  121.95  59.02 

Diluted (Rs)  121.95  59.02 

Earnings per share for discontinued operations 32

Basic (Rs)  (0.23)  (0.26)

Diluted (Rs)  (0.23)  (0.26)

Earnings per share for continuing and discontinued operations 32

Basic (Rs)  121.72  58.76 

Diluted (Rs)  121.72  58.76 

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial 
statements

1.2

 

As per our Report of Even date 	

For Abarna & Ananthan  	
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm registration number: 000003S

Sd/-
(Abarna Bhaskar)

	 PARTNER	
Membership No : 025145

Place: Bengaluru	
Date:21.09.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mysore Sales International Limited

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	 Vikash Kumar Vikash	 H Halappa	
	 Managing Director	 Chairman	
	  DIN : 08122455	 DIN No: 02321290

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	  Ramakanth Hebballi 	 Sridevi B N	
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary 
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MYSORE SALES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021
(ALL AMOUNTS IN RS LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2021

 Year ended 
 31 March 2020 

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax and exceptional items as per Statement of Profit and 
Loss

 6,570.43  4,131.97 

Adjustments for:
Dividend  (2.30)  (60.08)
Provision for doubtful debts no longer required  (577.03)  -   
Interest income  (978.59)  (1,119.24)
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment  (3.55)  (0.66)
Loss on damage of assets  -    0.73 
Rent  (249.76)  (430.85)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses  1,725.69  1,495.40 
Finance costs  161.65  228.24 
Allowances for doubtful debts and advances  717.74  45.08 
Impairment losses in value of other financial assets  236.48  200.80 
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans  11.23  (65.40)
Share of profit from joint arrangements  -    (0.39)
Operating profit before working capital changes  7,611.99  4,425.61 
Changes in working capital
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in
Trade receivables  (664.12)  2,073.37 
Inventories  (3,589.57)  (85.04)
Other assets  642.66  282.98 
Other financial assets  (1,612.43)  (2,571.02)
Trade payables  (1,353.06)  2,658.80 
Other liabilities  9.62  (55.48)
Other financial liabilities  2,667.65  (1,108.37)
Provisions  243.46  (704.87)
Cash generated from operations  3,956.20  4,915.98 
Taxes paid, net  (2,389.82)  (1,620.83)
Net cash generated from operating activities  1,566.38  3,295.15 
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (including capital advances and 
Right of use of asset)

 (1,851.62)  (3,119.66)

Government Grant  -    34.57 
Movement in bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents  (2,064.81)  (1,303.37)
Fair valuation changes  -    180.09 
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant & Equipment  12.33  0.40 
(Purchase) / Sale of investments / Share of profit from Joint arrangements  -    0.39 
Investment income (Rental income on investment Property)  249.76  430.85 
Interest received  1,211.32  1,119.24 
Dividend received  2.30  60.08 
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities  (2,440.72)  (2,597.41)
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C. Cash flow from Financing activities
Finance cost paid  (161.65)  (119.67)
Dividend paid  (213.67)  (213.67)
Dividend Distribution tax paid  -    (43.92)
Net cash used in financing activities  (375.32)  (377.26)
Net changes in cash and cash equivalents  (1,249.66)  320.48 
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year  8,024.81  7,704.33 
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year  6,775.15  8,024.81 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 1.2

As per our Report of Even date 	

For Abarna & Ananthan  	
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm registration number: 000003S

Sd/-
(Abarna Bhaskar)

	 PARTNER	
Membership No : 025145

Place: Bengaluru	
Date:21.09.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mysore Sales International Limited

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	 Vikash Kumar Vikash	 H Halappa	
	 Managing Director	 Chairman	
	  DIN : 08122455	 DIN No: 02321290

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	  Ramakanth Hebballi 	 Sridevi B N	
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary 
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MYSORE SALES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021	
(ALL AMOUNTS IN RS LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

A. Equity Share Capital
Particulars Amount

Balance as at 01 April 2019  4,273.48 
Changes in Equity Share Capital during 2019-20  -   
Balance as at 31 March 2020  4,273.48 
Changes in Equity Share Capital during 2020-21  -   
Balance as at 31 March 2021  4,273.48 

B. Other equity

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus  Other Comprehensive Income 

 General 
reserves 

 Retained 
Earnings 

 Share 
Application 

money 
pending 

allotment 

 Fair 
Valuation 
of Equity 

Instru-
ments 

 Re-
measurment 

of defined 
benefit 
plans 

 Total 

Balance as at 01 April 2019  17,765.57  14,344.03  0.00  (363.30)  (537.82)  31,208.48 
Profit for the year  -    2,511.15  -    -    -    2,511.15 
Ind AS adjustments  -    2,146.25  -    -    -    2,146.25 
Dividends (Refer note 33)  (213.67)  (213.67)
Dividend Distribution Tax (Refer 
note 33)

 (43.92)  (43.92)

Transfer from retained earnings *  634.69  (634.69)  (0.00)  -    -    (0.00)
Total Comprehensive Income  -    -    -    180.09  (65.40)  114.69 
Balance as at 31 March 2020  18,400.26  18,109.14  -    (183.21)  (603.22)  35,722.97 
Profit for the year  -    5,201.50  -    -    -    5,201.50 
Transfer from retained earnings *  725.43  (725.43)  -    -    -    -   
Dividends (Refer note 33)  -    (213.67)  -    -    -    (213.67)
Total Comprehensive Income  -    -    -    233.05  11.23  244.28 
Balance as at 31 March 2021  19,125.69  22,371.53  -    49.84  (591.99)  40,955.07 

* 10% of average profit of chit fund division is transferred to General Reserve every year.

As per our Report of Even date 	

For Abarna & Ananthan  	
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm registration number: 000003S

Sd/-
(Abarna Bhaskar)

	 PARTNER	
Membership No : 025145

Place: Bengaluru	
Date:21.09.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mysore Sales International Limited

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	 Vikash Kumar Vikash	 H Halappa	
	 Managing Director	 Chairman	
	  DIN : 08122455	 DIN No: 02321290

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	  Ramakanth Hebballi 	 Sridevi B N	
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary 
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1.	 Company overview and significant accounting 
policies

1.1	 Company overview

Mysore Sales International Limited is a premier 
Government of Karnataka Undertaking, dealing in 
various products & services. It was established in 1966 
as a trading house. The registered office is located at 
Bangalore, Karnataka, India. Since then, the company 
has grown primarily as a marketing force with a national 
presence. It is having a wide network of offices all over 
Karnataka as well as in some major metros across 
the country. It markets products and services such 
as Indian made foreign liquor, chit operations, paper 
products, imported sand, Pharmaceuticals, Industrial 
and Consumer products.

1.2	 Basis of preparation of financial statements

(i)    Statement of compliance

	 The financial statements of the Company have 
been prepared in accordance with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) as notified under 
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules 2015 by Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(‘MCA’). The Company has uniformly applied the 
accounting policies during the periods presented.

	 The financial statements for the year ended 31 
March 2021 were authorized and approved for 
issue by the Board of Directors on21 September 
2021.

(ii)   Basis of preparation of financial statements

	 The financial statements have been prepared 
on a going concern basis under the historical 
cost basis except for certain financial assets and 
liabilities which are measured at fair value.

	 Historical cost is generally based on the fair value 
of the consideration given in exchange for goods 
and services.

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to 
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date, regardless of whether 
that price is directly observable or estimated using 
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair 
value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes 
in to account the characteristics of the asset or 
liability, if the market participants would take 
those characteristics into account when pricing 
the asset or liability at the measurement date. 
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure 
purposes in these financial statements is 
determined on such a basis, except for share 
based payment transactions that are within the 
scope of Ind AS 102, ‘Share-based Payment’, 
leasing transactions that are within the scope 
of Ind AS 17, ‘Leases’, and measurements that 
have some similarities to fair value but are not 
fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind 
AS 2 ‘Inventories’, or value in use in Ind AS 36 
‘Impairment of assets’.

	 In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair 
value measurements are categorized into Level 
1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs 
to the fair value measurements are observable 
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value 
measurements in its entirety, which are described 
as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets 
for financial instruments.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that 
are not traded in an active market is determined 
using valuation techniques which maximize the 
use of observable market data rely as little as 
possible on entity specific estimates.

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are 
not based on the observable marked data 
(unobservable inputs)

MYSORE SALES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY 
INFORMATION
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(iii) 	 Use of estimates

	 The preparation of financial statements is in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles which require the management of the 
Company to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amount of 
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the 
reporting period. Although these estimates are 
based upon the management’s best knowledge 
of current events and actions, uncertainty about 
these assumptions and estimates could result 
in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment 
to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in 
future period. Appropriate changes in estimates 
are made as management becomes aware 
of changes in circumstances surrounding the 
estimates. Application of accounting policies that 
require significant accounting estimates involving 
complex and subjective judgments and the use of 
assumptions in these financial statements have 
been disclosed in note 1.3 and 1.4.

(iv)  New Accounting Standards and amendments 
not yet adopted by the Company

	 MCA issued notifications dated 24th March, 2021 
to amend Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 
to enhance the disclosures required to be made 
by the Company in its financial statements. These 
amendments are applicable to the Company for 
the financial year starting 1st April, 2021. The 
Company is currently evaluating the impact of 
these amendment on the financial statements.

(v)   Significant accounting policies
	 a.	 Current versus non-current classification

	 The Company presents assets and liabilities in 
the balance sheet based on current/ non-current 
classification. 

	 (i)  An asset is classified as current when it is:

	 • 	 Expected to be realized or intended to sold or  
		 consumed in normal operating cycle.

      	 • 	 Held primarily for the purpose of trading

	 • 	 Expected to be realized within twelve months  
		 after the reporting period, or

	 • 	 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from  
		 being exchanged or used to settle a liability for  
		 at least twelve months after the reporting period

(ii) 	  All other assets are classified as non-current.

(iii) 	 A liability is classified as current when:

	 • 	 It is expected to be settled in normal operating  
		 cycle

	 • 	 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

	 • 	 It is due to be settled within twelve months  
		 after the reporting period, or

	 • 	 There is no unconditional right to defer the  
		 settlement of the liability for at least twelve  
		 months after the reporting period

(iv) 	 All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

(v)  	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified 
as non-current assets and liabilities.

	 Based on the nature of service and the time 
between the acquisition of assets for development 
and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, 
the Company has ascertained its operating cycle 
as one year for the purpose of current and non-
current classification of assets and liabilities 
except for the assets and liabilities relating to 
Chit business.The operating cycle for the Chit 
business is dependent on the Chit tenor. A tenor 
of 40 months is considered to be the operating 
cycle for the Chit Business being the most popular 
chit tenor.

b.	 Foreign currency transactions

	 Functional and presentation currency

	 The financial statements are presented in Indian 
Rupee (‘Rs’) which is also the functional and 
presentation currency of the Company. 

(a)  	 Initial recognition

	 Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the 
functional currency, by applying to the exchange 
rate between the functional currency and the 
foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 
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b)  	 Conversion

	 Foreign currency monetary items are converted 
to functional currency using the closing rate. 

	 Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign 
currency which are carried at 

-	 historical cost are reported using the exchange 
rate at the date of the transaction and 

-	 at fair value or any other similar valuation 
denominated in a foreign currency are reported 
using the exchange rates that existed when the 
values were determined.

	 Exchange differences arising on monetary items 
on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, 
at rates different from those at which they were 
initially recorded, are recognized in the statement 
of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

c.	 Revenue recognition

	 The Company has applied the following 
accounting policy in the preparation of its 
standalone financial statements: 

	 Revenue from contracts with customers 

	 The Company recognises revenue from contracts 
with customers based on a five step model as set 
out in IndAs 115: 

Step 1. - Identify the contract(s) with a customer: A 
contract is defined as an agreement between two 
or more parties that creates enforceable rights 
and obligations and sets out the criteria that must 
be met for every contract. 

Step 2. - Identify the performance obligations in the 
contract: A performance obligation is a promise in 
a contract with a customer to transfer a good or 
service to the customer. 

Step 3.- Determine the transaction price: The 
transaction price is the amount of consideration 
to which the Company expects to be entitled 
in exchange for transferring promised goods 
or services to a customer, excluding amounts 
collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4. - Allocate the transaction price to the performance 

obligations in the contract: For a contract that 
has more than one performance obligation, the 
Company will allocate the transaction price to 
each performance obligation in an amount that 
depicts the amount of consideration to which the 
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for 
satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5. - Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity 
satisfies a performance obligation. 

	 The Company satisfies a performance obligation 
and recognises revenue over time, if one of the 
following criteria is met:

1.	 The customer simultaneously receives and 
consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s 
performance as the Company performs; or 

2.	 The Company’s performance creates or enhances 
an asset that the customer controls as the asset 
is created or enhanced; or 

3.	 The Company’s performance does not create an 
asset with an alternative use to the Company  and 
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for 
performance completed to date. 

	 For performance obligations where one of 
the above conditions are not met, revenue is 
recognised at the point in time at which the 
performance obligation is satisfied. 

	 When the Company satisfies a performance 
obligation by delivering the promised goods 
or services it creates a contract asset based 
on the amount of consideration earned by the 
performance. Where the amount of consideration 
received from a customer exceeds the amount of 
revenue recognised this gives rise to a contract 
liability. 

	 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, taking into 
account contractually defined terms of payment 
and excluding taxes and duty.

Rental income

	 Rental income from operating leases. – refer to 
“k” - Leases
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Dividend income
	 Income from dividends arerecognised when 

the Company’s right to receive the payment is 
established, it is probable that the economic 
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to 
the Company, and the amount of the dividend can 
be measured reliably.

Interest income
	 Interest income from a financial asset is 

recognised when it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the company and the amount 
of income can be measured reliably. Interest is 
accrued on time proportion basis, byreference 
to the principle outstanding applying effective 
interest rate.

	 Interest on delayed receipts, cancellation/
forfeiture income and transfer fees from customers 
are recognised on accrual basis except in cases 
where ultimate collection is considered doubtful 
and in the instances listed below:

Revenue Recognition on cash basis

	 Revenue is recognized on accrual basis except 
for the following items where it is accounted for 
on cash basis since the realisability is uncertain:-

i.	 Chit Operations:All streams of revenue from Chit 
operations is on cash basis. 

ii.	 Duty credit / exemption under various promotional 
schemes of Foreign Trade Policy in force, Tax 
credit, and refund of income-tax/service tax / 
sales-tax /VAT/GST and interest thereon etc.

iii.	 Interest on overdue recoverable.

iv.	 Liquidated damages on suppliers/underwriters.

	 Other items of income are recognized as and 
when the right to receive arises. 

d.	 Inventories
	 Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and 

net realisable value except scrap and by products 
which are valued at net realisable value.Net 
realisable value is the estimated selling price in 
the ordinary course of business, less estimated 
costs of completion and the estimated costs 
necessary to make the sale.

Inventories are valued as under:
i.	 Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and 

other costs incurred in bringing the inventories 
to their present location and condition. Cost is 
determined on weighted average basis in case of 
Paper Division 

ii.	 Finished goods and work in progress: cost 
includes cost of direct materials and labour and 
a proportion of manufacturing overheads based 
on the normal operating capacity, but excluding 
borrowing costs. Cost is determined on weighted 
average basis.Raw materials and consumables 
issued to convertors are considered as Finished 
Goods only at the time of receipt of notebooks 
from the convertors in the case of Paper Division. 

iii.	 Freight inward is not considered for valuation of 
stock of liquor and is charged to the profit & loss 
account.

iv.	 Obsolete inventories, slow moving and defective 
inventories are identified and written down to net 
realisable value.

e.	 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
	 Recognition and measurement
	 Property, plant and equipment are measured 

at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes 
expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition 
of the asset. General and specific borrowing 
costs directly attributable to the construction of 
a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the 
cost.

	 Depreciation and useful lives

	 Depreciation/amortization on property, plant 
& equipment is provided on the straight-line 
method, based on the useful life of asset 
specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 
2013. The Management estimates the useful 
lives of the assets as per the indicative useful life 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 
2013. Residual values, useful lives and method of 
depreciation are reviewed at each financial year 
end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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Particulars Life in years
Building 60
Fire fighting equipment 10
Electrical equipment 10
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles 8
Furniture and fixtures- Liquor 5
Handling equipment 5
Weighing Machines 5
Office equipment 5
Computers 3
Leasehold assets Over the primary 

lease period- except 
for land

	 Depreciation on fixed assets added/ disposed 
off/ discarded during the year has been provided 
on prorata basis with reference to the date of 
addition/ disposal/ discarding.

	 The Company, based on technical assessment 
made by technical expert and management 
estimate, depreciates furniture & fixture at 
Liquor outlets over estimated useful lives which 
are different from the useful life prescribed in 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The 
management believes that these estimated useful 
lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of 
the period over which the assets are likely to be 
used.

De-recognition
	 An item of property, plant and equipment and any 

significant part initially recognized is derecognized 
upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. 
Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the 
asset (calculated as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount 
of the asset) is included in the statement of profit 
and loss when the asset is derecognized.

f.	 Intangible assets
	 Recognition and measurement
	 Intangible assets (software) acquired separately 

are measured at their cost of acquisition.The 
cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost 

if capitalization criteria are met and directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its 
working condition for the intended use. Any trade 
discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at 
the purchase price.

	 Following initial recognition, intangible assets are 
carried at cost less accumulated amortization and    
impairment losses, if any.

	 The cost of capitalized software is amortized over 
a period of 6 years from the date of its acquisition 
on a straight line basis.

	 Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an 
intangible asset are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the 
asset is derecognized.

	 The residual values, useful lives and methods of 
amortization of intangible assets are reviewed 
at each reporting date end and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate.

g.	 Capital Work in Progress

	 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost which 
includes expenses incurred during construction 
period, interest on amount borrowed for acquisition 
of qualifying assets and other expenses incurred 
in connection with project implementation in so 
far as such expenses relate to the period prior to 
the date of use of asset. Capital advances given 
towards purchase/ acquisition of PPE outstanding 
at each balance sheet date are disclosed 
separately as Other Non-Current Assets.

h.	 Investment Property

	 Investment properties are properties held to 
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation 
(including property under construction for such 
purposes). Investment properties are measured 
initially at cost, including transaction costs. All 
of the Company’s property interests held under 
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital 
appreciation purposes are accounted for as 
investment properties. After initial recognition, the 
company measures investment property at cost.
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	 Investment properties are derecognized upon 
disposal or when the investment properties are 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future 
economic benefits are expected post disposal. 
Any gain or loss arising on de recognition of the 
property (calculated as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of 
the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the 
period in which the property is derecognized.

	 Investment properties are depreciated in 
accordance to the class of asset that it belongs 
to and the life of the asset is as conceived 
for the same class of asset of the Company. 
Depreciation/amortization is provided on the 
straight-line method, based on the useful life of 
asset specified in Schedule II to the Companies 
Act, 2013. The Management estimates the useful 
lives of the assets as per the indicative useful life 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 
2013. Residual values, useful lives and method of 
depreciation are reviewed at each financial year 
end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

	 The useful life of the Buildings is estimated to be 
60 years.

	 The fair value of investment property is disclosed 
in the notes. Fair values are determined based on 
an annual evaluation performed by an accredited 
external independent valuer.

i.	 Finance cost

	 Finance cost comprises of Interest cost on lease 
and other financial liabilities, bank charges and 
guarantee commission. All finance costs are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in 
the period in which they are incurred.

j.	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet 
comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three 
months or less, which are subject to insignificant 
risk of changes in value.

	 A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an 

identified asset for a period of time in exchange 
for consideration. 

k.	 Leases 

	 The Company evaluates each contract or 
arrangement, whether it qualifies as lease as 
defined under Ind AS 116.

Company as a lessee

	 The Company enters into an arrangement for 
lease of shops and offices. Such arrangements 
are generally for a fixed period but may have 
extension or termination options. The Company 
assesses, whether the contract is, or contains, a 
lease, at its inception. A contract is, or contains, a 
lease if the contract conveys the right to –

a) 	 control the use of an identified asset,

b) 	 obtain substantially all the economic benefits 
from use of the identified asset, and

c) 	 direct the use of the identified asset

	 The Company determines the lease term as the 
non-cancellable period of a lease, together with 
periods covered by an option to extend the lease, 
where the Company is reasonably certain to 
exercise that option.

	 The Company at the commencement of the 
lease contract recognizes a Right-of-Use (RoU) 
asset at cost and corresponding lease liability, 
except for leases with term of less than twelve 
months (short term leases) and low-value assets. 
For these short term and low value leases, the 
Company recognizes the lease payments as an 
operating expense on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term.

	 The cost of the right-of-use asset comprises 
the amount of the initial measurement of the 
lease liability, any lease payments made at or 
before the inception date of the lease, plus any 
initial direct costs, less any lease incentives 
received.Subsequently, the right-of-use assets 
are measured at cost less any accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. The right-of-use assets are 
depreciated using thestraight-line method from 
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the commencement date over the shorter of 
lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. 
The estimated useful life of right-of-use assets 
are determined on the same basis as those of 
property, plant and equipment.

	 The Company applies Ind AS 36 to determine 
whether an RoU asset is impaired and accounts 
for any identified impairment loss as described in 
the impairment of non-financial assets below.

	 For lease liabilities at the commencement of the 
lease, the Company measures the lease liability 
at the present value of the lease payments that 
are not paid at that date. The lease payments 
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in 
the lease, if that rate can be readily determined, 
if that rate is not readily determined, the lease 
payments are discounted using the incremental 
borrowing rate that the Company would have to 
pay to borrow funds, including the consideration 
of factors such as the nature of the asset and 
location, collateral, market terms and conditions, 
as applicable in a similar economic environment.

	 After the commencement date, the amount 
of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the 
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease 
payments made.

	 The Company recognizes the amount of 
the re-measurement of lease liability as an 
adjustment to the right-of-use assets. Where 
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is 
reduced to zero and there is a further reduction 
in the measurement of the lease liability, the 
Company recognizes any remaining amount of  
there-measurement in statement of profit and 
loss.

	 Lease liability payments are classified as “cash 
used in financing activities” in the statement of 
cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

	 Leases under which the Company is a lessor are 
classified as finance or operating leases. Lease 
contracts where all the risks and rewards are 
substantially transferred to the lessee, the lease 
contracts are classified as finance leases. All 

other leases are classified as operating leases.

	 For leases under which the Company is an 
intermediate lessor, the Company accounts for 
the head-lease and the sub-lease as two separate 
contracts. The sub-lease is further classified 
either as a finance lease or an operating lease 
by reference to the RoU asset arising from the 
head-lease.

l.	 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

	 The Company’s defined contribution plans 
are Employees’ Provident Fund (under the 
provisions of Employees Provident Funds and 
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952) ESI (under 
the provisions of Employees State Insurance Act, 
1948) and Superannuation. The company has no 
further obligations beyond making the company’s 
contributions. The company’s contribution to 
Provident Fund, ESI and Superannuation are 
made at prescribed rates and are charged to 
Statement of Profit and Loss. The Superannuation 
asset are managed by a Trust which invests with 
LIC.

Death Relief Fund

	 The Company’s liability towards Death Relief 
Fund is accounted on the basis of actuarial 
valuation as at the reporting date.

Defined benefit plan

	 The Company has a defined benefit plan for 
payment of Gratuity as per the Gratuity Act 
1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum 
payment to employees who have completed five 
years or more of service at retirement, disability 
or termination of employment, being an amount 
based on the respective employee’s last drawn 
salary and the number of years of employment 
with the Company. The company makes 
contribution to the MSIL Employee Gratuity Fund 
Trust managed by LIC.

	 The Company’s liability is actuarially determined 
(using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the 
end of each reporting period. The present value 
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of the defined benefit obligation is determined by 
discounting the estimated future cash outflows 
by reference to market yields at the end of the 
reporting period on government bonds that have 
terms approximating to the terms of the related 
obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by 
applying the discount rate to the net balance of 
the defined benefit obligation and the fair value 
of plan assets if any. This cost is included in 
employee benefit expense in the statement of 
profit and loss

	 The liability or asset recognised in the balance 
sheet in respect of gratuity plan is the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation at the end 
of the reporting period less the fair value of plan 
assets if any.

	 Re-measurement gains and losses arising from 
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognised in the period in 
which they occur, directly in other comprehensive 
income and are never reclassified to profit or 
loss. Changes in the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments 
or curtailments are recognised immediately in the 
statement of profit and loss as past service cost.

Earned Leave

	 As per policy of the Company, employees can 
carry forward unutilized accrued leave and 
utilize it in next service period or receive cash 
compensation. The compensated absences fall 
due wholly within twelve months after the end 
of the period in which the employees render 
the related service and are also expected to be 
utilized wholly within twelve months after the 
end of such period, the benefit is classified as a 
current employee benefit. The Company records 
an obligation for such compensated absences 
in the year in which the employee renders the 
services that increase his entitlement.

	 The obligation towards the same is measured at 
the expected cost of accumulating compensated 
absences as the additional amount expected to 
be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as 

at the reporting period. The Company’s liability 
is actuarially determined (using the Projected 
Unit Credit method) at the end of each reporting 
period.

Other short-term benefits

	 All employee benefits falling due wholly within 
twelve months of rendering the service are 
classified as short term employee benefits. The 
benefits like salaries, wages, estimated bonus, ex-
gratia and short term compensated absences are 
recognised in the period in which the employee 
renders the related service.

	 Short-term employee benefits comprising 
employee costs including performance bonus is 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss on 
the basis of the amount paid or payable for the 
period during which services are rendered by the 
employee.

m.	 Tax expense

Income taxes

	 Income tax expense represents the sum of the 
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current taxes

	 Current tax is the amount of tax payable based 
on the taxable profit for the year as determined 
in accordance with the applicable tax rates and 
the provisions of the Income Tax Act,1961 and 
other applicable tax laws in the countries where 
the Company operates and generates taxable 
income.

	 The Company offsets current tax assets and 
current tax liabilities, where it has a legally 
enforceable right to set off the recognized 
amounts and where it intends either to settle on 
a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously

Deferred tax

	 Deferred tax is recognized on temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities in the financial statements 
and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
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computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax 
liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable 
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 
generally recognized for all deductible temporary 
differences to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profits will be available against which 
those deductible temporary differences can be 
utilized.

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is 
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to 
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured 
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period in which the liability is settled or the asset 
realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the end of the reporting period.

	 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are 
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities 
and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable 
entity and the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax for the period

	 Current and deferred tax are recognized in 
profit or loss, except when they relate to items 
that are recognized in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity, in which case, the 
current and deferred tax are also recognized in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity 
respectively.

n.	 Earnings per share

	 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing 
the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders (after deducting attributable 
taxes) by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the period. 
The weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period is adjusted for 
events including a bonus issue, other than the 
conversion of potential equity shares that have 
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, 

without a corresponding change in resources.

	 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings 
per share, the net profit or loss for the period 
attributable to equity shareholders and the 
weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential equity shares.

	 Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures 
used in the determination of basic earnings per 
share to take into account:

(i)	 The after income tax effect of interest and other 
financing costs associated with dilutive potential 
equity shares, and

(ii)  The weighted average number of additional 
equity shares that would have been outstanding 
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.

o.	 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets

	 Provisions are recognized when the Company 
has a present obligation (legal or constructive), 
as a result of past events, and it is probable 
that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably 
estimated, will be required to settle such an 
obligation.

	 The amount recognized as a provision is the best 
estimate of the consideration required to settle 
the present obligation at the balance sheet date, 
taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. When a provision 
is measured using the cash flows estimated to 
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount 
is the present value of those cash flows (when 
the effect of the time value of money is material).

	 If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to 
the liability. The increase in the provision due 
to the passage of time is recognised as interest 
expense.
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	 Present obligations arising under onerous 
contracts are recognised and measured as 
provisions. An onerous contract is considered 
to exist where the Company has a contract 
under which the unavoidable costs of meeting 
the obligations under the contract exceed the 
economic benefits expected to be received from 
the contract.

	 Decommissioning costs are measured as the 
best estimate of the expenditure to settle the 
obligation or to transfer the obligation to a third 
party. Provisions for decommissioning obligations 
are required to be recognized at the inception 
of the arrangement. The estimated costs to 
be incurred at the end of the arrangement are 
discounted to its present value using the market 
rate of return.

	 When some or all of the economic benefits 
required to settle a provision are expected to 
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is 
recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be received and the amount 
of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent Liability is disclosed in the case of

- 	 a present obligation arising from a past event, 
when it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation.

- 	 a present obligation arising from a past event, 
when a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot 
be made, and

- 	 a possible obligation arising from past events 
where the probability of outflow of resources is 
not remote.

	 Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial 
Statements by way of notes to accounts when an 
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

	 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent 
assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

p.	 Financial instruments

	 Financial assets
	 Initial recognition and measurement

	 All financial assets are recognized initially at fair 
value and transaction cost that is attributable 
to the acquisition of the financial asset is also 
adjusted.

Subsequent measurement
Debt Instruments
Debt instruments at amortized cost

	 A ‘Debt instruments’ is subsequently measured at 
amortized cost if it is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to 
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual 
terms of the financial asset give rise on  specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.

	 After initial measurement, such financial assets 
are subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance 
income  in the profit or loss. The losses arising 
from impairment are recognized in the statement 
of profit and loss.

	 Debt Instruments at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

	 A debt instrument is subsequently measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income if it is 
held within a business model whose objective is 
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows 
and selling financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that  are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
Fair value movements are recognized in other 
comprehensive income (OCI).

	 Debt instruments at Fair value through profit 
and loss (FVTPL)

	 FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. 
Any debt instrument, which does not meet the 
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost 
or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. Debt 
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instruments included within the FVTPL category 
are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments

	 All equity investments in the scope of Ind AS 
109,’ Financial Instruments’, are measured at 
fair value. Equity instruments which are held 
for trading and contingent consideration has 
been recognized by an acquirer in a business 
combination to which Ind AS 103,’ Business 
Combinations’ applies, are classified as at 
FVTPL. For all other equity instruments,  the 
Company may make an irrevocable election to 
present in OCI with subsequent changes in the 
fair value.  

	 The Company makes such election on an 
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification 
is made on  initial recognition and is irrevocable.

	 If the Company decides to classify an equity 
instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value 
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, 
impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange 
gains and losses, are recognized in the OCI.

	 There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to 
the statement of profit and loss, even on sale of 
investment.

	 Equity instruments included within the FVTPL 
category are measured at fair value with all 
changes recognized in the statement of profit 
and loss.

De-recognition of financial assets 

	 A financial asset is primarily de-recognized when 
the rights to receive cash flows from the asset 
have expired or the Company has transferred its 
rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

	 If the Company neither transfers nor retains 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
and continues to control the transferred asset, 
the Company recognises its retained interest in 
the asset and an associated liability for amounts 
it may have to pay.

	 If the Company retains substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred 
financial asset, the Company continues to 
recognise the financial asset and also recognises 
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds 
received.

	 On de-recognition of a financial asset in its 
entirety, the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration 
received and receivable and the cumulative 
gain or loss that had been recognized in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated in 
equity is recognized in profit or loss.

q.	 Financial liabilities 
	 Initial recognition

	 All financial liabilities are recognized initially at 
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the issue of financial liabilities, that 
are not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), 
are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

	 Subsequent measurement

	 Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method, 
except for contingent consideration recognized 
in a business combination which is subsequently 
measured at fair value through profit or loss. For 
trade and other payables maturing within one 
year from the balance sheet date, the carrying 
amounts approximate the fair value due to the 
short maturity of these instruments.

	 De-recognition of financial liabilities

	 A financial liability is de-recognized when the 
obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial 
liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the 
terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification 
is treated as the de-recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The 
difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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	 Offsetting of financial instruments

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset 
and the net amount is reported in the balance 
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right 
to offset the recognized amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the 
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

r.	 Impairment of financial assets

	 The Company recognizes loss allowances using 
the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the 
financial assets which are not fair valued through 
profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables 
with no significant financing component is 
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For 
all other financial assets, expected credit losses 
are measured at an amount equal to the twelve 
month ECL, unless there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk from initial recognition in 
which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. 
The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) 
that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the 
reporting date to the amount that is required to be 
recognized is recognized as an impairment gain 
or loss in the statement of profit and loss.

s.	 Impairment of non-financial assets

	 At the end of each reporting period, the Company 
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and 
intangible assets to determine whether there is 
any indication that those assets have suffered an 
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in 
order to determine the extent of the impairment 
loss (if any). 

	 Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable 
amount of an individual asset, the Company 
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where 
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation 
can be identified, corporate assets are also 
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or 
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group 
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable 
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

	 Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value 
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates 
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

	 If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its 
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the 
asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to 
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is 
recognized immediately in the statement of profit 
and loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a 
revalued amount, in which case the impairment 
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

	 Where an impairment loss subsequently 
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset 
(or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the 
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but 
so that the increased carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined had no impairment loss been 
recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) 
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is 
recognized immediately in the statement of profit 
and loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at 
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of 
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation 
increase.

t.	 Segment reporting

	 An operating segment is a component of the 
Company that engages in business activities from 
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, 
including revenues and expenses that relate to 
transactions with any of the Company’s other 
components, and for which discrete financial 
information is available. Operating segments are 
reported in a manner consistent with the internal 
reporting provided to the chief operating decision 
maker.
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	 Segment accounting policies are in line with the 
accounting policies of the Company. In addition, 
the following specific accounting policies have 
been followed for segment reporting.

(i)	 Segment revenue includes sales and other 
income directly identifiable with / allocable to the 
segment including inter-segment revenue.

(ii)	 Expenses that are directly identifiable with 
/ allocable to segments are considered for 
determining the Segment Result. The expenses, 
which relate to the Company as a whole and not 
allocable to segments, are included under “Other/
unallocable expenditure”.

(iii)	 Income that relates to the Company as a whole 
and not allocable to segments is included in 
“Unallocable income”.

(iv)	 Segment result includes margins on inter-
segment and sales which are reduced in arriving 
at the profit of the Company.

(v)	 Segment assets and liabilities include those 
directly identifiable with the respective segments. 
Unallocable assets and liabilities represent the 
assets and liabilities that relate to the Company 
as a whole and not allocable to any segment.

(vi)	 Performance is measured based on segment 
profit (before tax), as included in the internal 
management reports that are reviewed by the 
Company’s MD. Segment profit is used to measure 
performance as management believes that such 
information is the most relevant in evaluating 
the results of certain segments relative to other 
entities that operate within these industries.

u.	 Cash flow statement

	 Cash flows are reported using the indirect 
method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted 
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash 
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past operating 
cash receipts or payments and item of income or 
expenses associated with investing or financing 
cash flows. The cash from operating, investing 
and financing activities of the Company are 
segregated.

v.	 Events after Reporting Date

	 Assets and liabilities are adjusted for events 
occurring after the reporting period that provides 
additional evidence to assist the estimation of 
amounts relating to conditions existing at the end 
of the reporting period.

	 Dividends declared by the Company after the 
reporting period are not recognized as liability at 
the end of the reporting period. Dividends declared 
after the reporting period but before the issue of 
financial statements are not recognized as liability 
since no obligation exists on the balance sheet 
date. Such dividends are disclosed in the notes to 
the financial statements.

w.	 Exceptional Items

	 Exceptional items are disclosed separately in 
the financial statements where it is necessary 
to do so to provide further understanding of the 
financial performance of the Company. They are 
material items of income or expense that have 
been shown separately due to the significance of 
their nature or amount.

	 Errors of material amount relating to prior 
period(s) are disclosed by a note with nature of 
prior period errors, amount of correction of each 
such prior period presented retrospectively, to the 
extent practicable along with change in basic and 
diluted earnings per share.

	 However, where retrospective restatement is 
not practicable for a particular period then the 
circumstances that lead to the existence of that 
condition and the description of how and from 
where the error is corrected are disclosed in 
Notes to Accounts.

x.	 Non-Current Assets Held For Sale And 
Discontinued Operations

	 An entity shall classify a non-current asset (or 
disposal group) as held for sale if its carrying 
amount will be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than through continuing 
use. This condition is regarded as met only when 
the asset is available for immediate sale in its 
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present condition subject only to terms that are 
usual and customary for sale of such assets and 
its sale is highly probable. Management must be 
committed to sale which should be expected to 
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within 
one year from the date of classification.

	 Non-current assets classified as held for sale 
are presented separately and measured at the 
lower of their carrying amounts immediately prior 
to their classification as held for sale and their 
fair value less costs to sell. However, some held 
for sale assets such as financial assets, assets 
arising from employee benefits and deferred tax 
assets, continue to be measured in accordance 
with the Company’s relevant accounting policy 
for those assets. Once classified as held for sale, 
the assets are not subject to depreciation or 
amortisation.

	 A discontinued operation is a component of the 
Company’s business that represents a separate 
line of business that has been disposed off 
or is held for sale, or is a subsidiary acquired 
exclusively with a view to resale. Classification 
as a discontinued operation occurs upon the 
earlier of disposal or when the operation meets 
the criteria to be classified as held for sale. 
The Company has classified its hire purchase 
business as discontinued operations. Interest 
income from hire purchase business is accounted 
on cash basis.

y.	 Government Grants

	 Government grants are recognised where 
there is reasonable assurance that the grant 
will be received and all attached conditions will 
be complied with. When the grant relates to an 
expense item, it is recognised as income on a 
systematic basis over the periods that the related 
costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are 
expensed.

	 When the grant relates to an asset, it is presented 
by deducting the grant from the carrying amount 
of the asset. When the Company receives grants 
of non-monetary assets, it is treated at a nominal 
value.

	 When loans or similar assistance are provided 
by governments or related institutions, with 
an interest rate below the current applicable 
market rate, the effect of this favourable interest 
is regarded as a government grant. The loan or 
assistance is initially recognised and measured at 
fair value and the government grant is measured 
as the difference between the initial carrying value 
of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan 
is subsequently measured as per the accounting 
policy applicable to financial liabilities.

1.3	 Significant estimates in applying accounting 
policies

a. 	 Revenue -The Company has applied judgements 
as detailed in note 1.2(v)(c) that significantly 
affect the determination of the amount and timing 
of revenue from contracts with customers. 

b. 	 Net realisable value of inventory - The 
determination of net realisable value of inventory 
involves estimates based on prevailing market 
conditions, current prices and expected date of 
commencement and completion of the project, 
the estimated future selling price, cost to complete 
projects and selling cost.

c. 	 Recoverability of advances/receivables - At 
each balance sheet date, based on historical 
default rates observed over expected life, the 
management assesses the expected credit loss 
on outstanding receivables and advances.

d. 	 Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets – 
Management reviews its estimate of the useful 
lives of depreciable/amortizable assets at each 
reporting date, based on the expected utility of the 
assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to 
technical and economic obsolescence that may 
change the utility of certain software and other 
assets.

e. 	 Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) – Management’s 
estimate of the DBO is based on a number of 
critical underlying assumptions such as standard 
rates of inflation, medical cost trends, mortality, 
discount rate and anticipation of future salary 
increases. Variation in these assumptions may 
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significantly impact the DBO amount and the 
annual defined benefit expenses.

f. 	 Fair value measurements – Management applies 
valuation techniques to determine the fair value of 
financial instruments (where active market quotes 
are not available). This involves developing 
estimates and assumptions consistent with how 
market participants would price the instrument. 
Management uses the best information available. 
Estimated fair values may vary from the actual 
prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length 
transaction at the reporting date.

g. 	 Expected credit losses on financial assets (chit 
fund business) – The impairment provisions of 
financial assets are based on assumptions about 
risk of default and expected timing of collection. 

	 The Company uses judgment in making these 
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the 
expected credit loss calculation based on the 
Company’s history of collections, customer’s 
creditworthiness, existing market conditions as 
well as forward looking estimates at the end of 
each reporting period.

h. 	 Leases - Ind AS 116 defines a lease term as the 
noncancellable period for which the lessee has 
the right to use an underlying asset including 
optional periods, when an entity is reasonably 
certain to exercise an option to extend (or not to 
terminate) a lease. The Company considers all 
relevant facts and circumstances that create an 
economic incentive for the lessee to exercise the 
option when determining the lease term.  The 
option to extend the lease term is included in 
the lease term, if it is reasonably certain that the 
lessee would exercise the option. The Company 
reassesses the option when significant events or 
changes in circumstances occur that are within 
the control of the lessee.

1.4	 Critical judgements in applying accounting 
policies

a.	 Recognition of deferred tax assets – The extent 
to which deferred tax assets can be recognized 
is based on an assessment of the probability of 

the Company’s future taxable income against 
which the deferred tax assets can be utilized. 
In addition, significant judgement is required in 
assessing the impact of any legal or economic 
limits or uncertainties in various tax jurisdictions.

b.	 Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets 
– The evaluation of applicability of indicators of 
impairment of assets requires assessment of 
several external and internal factors which could 
result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the 
assets. In assessing impairment, management 
estimates the recoverable amount of each asset 
or cash generating unit based on expected future 
cash flows and uses a discounting rate to arrive at 
net present value.Estimation uncertainty relates 
to assumptions about future operating results 
and the determination of a suitable discount rate.

c.	 Provisions – At each balance sheet date basis 
the management judgment, changes in facts 
and legal aspects, the Company assesses the 
requirement of provisions against the outstanding 
warranties and guarantees. However, the actual 
future outcome may be different from this 
judgement.

d.	 Contingent liabilities -The Company uses 
significant judgement to disclose contingent 
liabilities. Contingent liabilities are disclosed 
when there is a possible obligation arising 
from past events, the existence of which will 
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the Company or 
a present obligation that arises from past events 
where it is either not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the obligation 
or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be 
made. Contingent assets are notrecognised nor 
disclosed in the financial statements.
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MYSORE SALES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in Rs in Lakhs unless otherwise mentioned)
4	 Investment property

 Particulars  Freehold 
land 

 Leashold 
land 

 Buiding - 
Freehold 

 Buiding - 
Leasehold Total

Opening balance as at 01 April 2019  49.22  80.10  878.36  2,594.96  3,602.65 
Additions (subsequent expenditures)  -    -    -    55.59  55.59 
Closing balance as at 31 March 2020  53.06  100.95  1,604.08  2,686.59  4,444.68 
Additions (subsequent expenditures)  -    -    -    -    -   
Reclassification from Property, plant and 
equipment

 -    -    -    -    -   

Closing balance as at 31 March 2021  53.06  100.95  1,604.08  2,686.59  4,444.68 
Depreciation and impairment
Opening balance as at 01 April 2019  -    -    34.16  86.74  120.89 
Depreciation (Refer note 26)  -    -    25.77  89.84  115.61 
Reclassification from Property, plant and 
equipment

 -    2.98  2.98 

Closing balance as at 31 March 2020  -    -    59.93  179.55  239.48 
Depreciation (Refer note 26)  -    -    30.03  89.84  119.87 
Reclassification from Property, plant and 
equipment

 3.84  20.85  725.72  36.04  786.45 

Closing balance as at 31 March 2021  -    -    89.96  269.39  359.35 

Net block as at 31 March 2020  53.06  100.95  1,544.15  2,507.04  4,205.20 
Net block as at 31 March 2021  53.06  100.95  1,514.12  2,417.20  4,085.33 

Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property

Year 
ended

31March 
2021

Year 
ended

31March 
2020

Rent from investment properties (Refer Note (20))  667.46  430.85 
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) pertaining to 
investment property 

 (67.62)  (66.75)

Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation and indirect 
expenses 

 599.84  364.10 

Less – Depreciation  (119.87)  (115.61)
Profit arising from investment properties before indirect expenses  479.97  248.49 

The company is in the process of getting the investment property valued.	

The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no contractual obligations 
to purchase or develop investment properties or for major repairs, maintenance and enhancements.		



76

Karnataka Bhavan, Mumbai

City & Industries Development Corporation of Maharashtra (CIDCO) has entered into a deed of ‘Agreement to 
Lease’ with Government of Karnataka (GoK) for a  plot of land measuring 2520 sq meters in Navi Mumbai to 
enter and occupy the land on the condition that the licensee (GoK) construct a State Guest House.

In turn on 1 October 2008 GoK has entered into an agreement with MSIL for construction of Karnataka Bhavan 
on Build Own Operate Transfer (BOOT) basis effective for 30 years (extendable on mutual consent) from the 
date of completion of the building as per the terms and conditions specified therein.

The amount of Rs 3410.25 lakhs incurred towards construction of Karnataka Bhawan in Navi Mumbai was 
capitalized based on the completion certificate received from M/s Project Management Service during the year 
ended 31 March 2018.								      

During the year ended 31 March 2020 an amount of Rs 55.59 lakhs was capitalised being the final bills submitted 
by the agencies associated with the project.								      

The Company had entered on 27 September 2018 into a lease rental agreement with a service provider to 
construct the necessary infrastructure and to commence boarding & lodging operations. No rental income has 
been accounted till 31 March 2021								      

Bangalore Air Cargo Complex								     

Pending execution of lease cum sale agreement with Karnataka Industrial Area  Development Board( ‘KIADB’) 
in respect of a land allotted near Bangalore Air Cargo Complex (BACC), the Company has capitalised the 
payments made towards lease hold land amounting to Rs.52,11,063/-  based on the possession certificate 
issued by KIADB.

5. Other intangible assets
Particulars Computer software Total

Gross carrying amount
As at 01 April 2019

 49.11  49.11 

Additions  -    -   
As at 31 March 2020  49.11  49.11 
Additions  -    -   
As at 31 March 2021  49.11  49.11 
Accumulated amortization
As at 01 April 2019

 37.45  37.45 

Charge for the year (Refer note 26)  5.29  5.29 
As at 31 March 2020  42.74  42.74 
Charge for the year (Refer note 26)  3.99  3.99 
As at 31 March 2021  46.73  46.73 
Net block as at 31 March 2020  6.37  6.37 
Net block as at 31 March 2021  2.38  2.38 
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5A.	 Right of Use Assets

Particulars  Right of Use 
As at 1 April 2019  -   
Impact on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 (as on 01 April 2019) (*)  1,796.46 
Additions  528.19 
Disposals  -   
As at 31 March 2020  2,324.65 
Additions (*)  399.38 
Disposals  -   
As at 31 March 2021  2,724.03 
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2019
Charge for the year  656.88 
Adjustments for disposals  -   
As at 31 March 2020  656.88 
Charge for the year  755.21 
Adjustments for disposals  -   
As at 31 March 2021  1,412.09 
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2020  1,667.76 
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2021  1,311.94 

* Right of use assets are recgonised as on 1 April 2019 on adoption of Ind AS 116 using modified retrospective 
approach.

The following are the expense recognised in profit & loss						    
	

Particulars
Year ended
31 March 

2021

Year ended
31 March 

2020
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets  755.21  656.88 
Interest expense on lease liabilities  99.45  108.57 
Expense relating to short-term leases  718.19  630.69 
Total amount recognised in profit or loss  1,572.85  1,396.14 
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MYSORE SALES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED	
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 	
(All amounts in Rs lakhs unless otherwise stated)

 As at 
 31 March 

2021 

 As at 
 31 March 

2020 
6 Investments

Non-current
A. Quoted Investments

Investments in Equity shares at fair value through OCI (fully paid)

M/s J K Tyre Industries Limited  358.67  133.17 
329,060 (31 March 2020: 329,060) fully paid equity shares of INR 2 each

M/s Bengal & Assam Co Limited  52.63  45.08 
3,831 (31 March 2020: 3,831) fully paid equity shares of INR 10 each

Total Aggregate Quoted Investments (A)  411.30  178.25 

Aggregate Book value of quoted investments  411.30  178.25 
Aggregate market value of quoted investments  411.30  178.25 

B. Un-quoted Investments
Investments in Equity Instruments in subsidiaries, Associates and Joint 
venture
Subsidiaries at deemed cost (*)
M/s Marketing Communication & Advertising Limited  597.38  597.38 
357,252 (31 March 2020: 357,252) fully paid equity shares of INR 10 each

M/s Mysore Chrome Tanning Company Limited  0.05  0.05 
720,875 (31 March 2020: 720,875) fully paid equity shares of INR 10 each - 
issued at nominal value of Rs.5000 as per order of Government of Karnataka 

 Associates at cost 
M/s K T Apartment Owners’ Association  0.04  0.04 
35 (31 March 2020: 35) fully paid equity shares of INR 100 each

M/s K T Mansions Appartments Owners’ Association:  0.03  0.03 
25 (31 March 2020: 25) fully paid equity shares of INR 100 each

Others- At fair value through OCI
M/s.Hassan Mangalore Rail Development Company Limited  2,372.72  2,372.72 
7,000,000 (31 March 2020: 7,000,000) fully paid equity shares of INR 100 
each
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The Karnataka State Co-operative Apex Bank Limited - One -C- Class 
Ordinery Share:

 24.66  24.66 

1 (31 March 2020: 1) fully paid equity shares of INR 1,000,000 each

 2,994.88  2,994.88 

Total aggregate of un-quoted Investments (B)  2,994.88  2,994.88 

Total (A+B)  3,406.18  3,173.13 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof  411.30  178.25 
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  2,994.88  2,994.88 
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments  -    -   

(*) fair value on the date of transition is considered as deemed cost.
Only quoted investments have been restated to their value as at 31 March 2021.
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MYSORE SALES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 		
(All amounts in Rs lakhs unless otherwise stated)		

7 .Other Financial assets
 As at 

 31 March 2021 
 As at 

 31 March 2021 
 As at 

 31 March 2020 
 As at 

 31 March 2020 
 Non-Current  Current  Non-Current  Current

At Amortized Cost
Loans and advances to employees - 
Secured and considered good

 -    0.66  -    1.46 

Loans and advances - related to Chit 
operations
     (i)  Secured and Considered good  -    16,301.85  -    14,778.90 
     (ii)  Unsecured and Considered good  -    604.90  -    355.70 
     (iii) Considered doubtful  198.70  522.05  146.25  338.01 
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances  (198.70)  (522.05)  (146.25)  (338.01)
Other advances recoverable in kind or for 
value to be received
     (i)  Secured and Considered good  -    -    -    -   
     (ii)  Unsecured and Considered good  -    3,004.02  1.96  3,846.52 
     (iii) Considered doubtful  -    487.57  -    -   
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances  -    (487.57)  -    -   
Security Deposit - Unsecured and 
considered good

 -    1,056.36  -    1,121.23 

Security Deposit - Unsecured and 
considered doubtful

 -    -    -    -   

Less: Allowance for doubtful advances  -    -    -    -   
Deferred expense on above deposits  -    -    -    -   
Interest Receivable On Deposits  -    -   
Other receivable  -    66.06  8.23  31.48 

Total  -    21,033.85  10.19  20,135.29 

8.Other assets
 As at 

 31 March 2021 
 As at 

 31 March 2021 
 As at 

 31 March 2020 
 As at 

 31 March 2020 
 Non-Current  Current  Non-Current  Current

Prepaid Expenses  -    1,053.43  -    959.94 
Balance with statutoty authorities  -    457.50  -    350.31 
Advance Income Tax and TDS  -    2,455.15  -    2,957.90 
Other Receivables  643.38  -    615.98  -   
Gratuity Fund account (Refer note 34)  95.58  -    91.63  -   

Total  738.96  3,966.08  707.61  4,268.15 
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MYSORE SALES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 			 
(All amounts in Rs lakhs unless otherwise stated)

9. Inventories
 As at 

 31 March 2021
 As at 

 31 March 2020 
Raw Materials
    Paper and Straw board  55.45  55.97 
    Convertors  248.28  36.34 
Work in Process  -    -   
Finished goods  1,114.92  1,037.98 
Stock in trade pertaining to traded Goods  11,987.18  8,067.30 
Less: Provision for Expired/Damaged Stock- awaiting regulatory approval  (23.03)  (17.88)
Less: Provision for non moving Stock- awaiting regulatory approval  (727.71)  (114.19)
Stock with hirers  303.75  310.50 
Less: Expected Credit Loss for stock with hirers  (303.75)  (310.50)

Total  12,655.09  9,065.52 

10. Trade Receivables
 As at 

 31 March 2021
 As at 

 31 March 2020 
Secured, Considered good  8.57  6.25 
Unsecured, Considered good  4,546.04  3,537.38 
Trade receivables - credit impaired  813.60  1,125.74 

 5,368.21  4,669.37 
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Unsecured, considered good  -    -   
Trade Receivables - credit impaired  (813.60)  (1,125.74)

 4,554.61  3,543.63 

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 30 days. 

11. Cash and cash equivalents
 As at 

 31 March 2021
 As at 

 31 March 2020 
Balances with banks
     In current accounts  6,071.00  6,315.12 
     Deposits with original maturity less than three months  -    -   
Remittances in transit  9.15  291.20 
Cash on hand  695.00  1,418.49 

 6,775.15  8,024.81 
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12. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents	
 As at 

 31 March 2021
 As at 

 31 March 2020 
Deposits with original maturity less than 12 months  9048.48 6354.92
Deposits with maturity for more than 12 months
Interest Accrued on Bank Deposits  696.62  929.35 
Balances with banks in earmarked accounts
      - In margin money accounts for Bank Guarantee issued  8,178.19  8,806.94 

 17,923.29  16,091.21 

Bank Balances given on lien as at 31 March 2021 is Rs 4718.65 lakhs (31 March 2020 : Rs 5,752.29 lakhs)
Statutory Deposits for Chit Operations  as at 31 March 2021 is Rs 3459.54 (31 2020 : Rs 3,054.65 lakhs)
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MYSORE SALES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED	
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 	
(All amounts in Rs lakhs unless otherwise stated)	

13 Equity share capital  As at 
31 March 2021

 As at 
31 March 2020

Authorized shares  Number  Amount  Number  Amount 
Equity share capital of face value of Rs.10 
each
Equity shares of Rs.100 each  75,00,000  75,00,00,000  75,00,000 75,00,00,000 

 75,00,000  75,00,00,000  75,00,000 75,00,00,000 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares
Equity shares of Rs.10 each  42,73,477  42,73,47,700  42,73,477 42,73,47,700 

 42,73,477  42,73,47,700  42,73,477 42,73,47,700 

a. Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Equity shares
Balance at the beginning of the year  42,73,477  4273.48  42,73,477 4273.48 
Changes during the year  -    -    -    -   
Balance at the end of the year  42,73,477  4273.48  42,73,477 4273.48 

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has one class of equity share having a par value of Rs.100 per share. Each holder of equity 
share is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend when proposed by the Board of Directors is subject 
to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General meeting. Repayment of capital on 
liquidation will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

c. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Name of the equity shareholder
 31 March 2021  31 March 2020 

 Number  % holding  Number  % holding 
Government of Karnataka  22,55,817 52.79%  22,55,817 52.79%
Karnataka State Industrial Infrastructure & 
Development  Coproration Limited 

 20,17,660 47.21%  20,17,660 47.21%

d. Aggregate number of bonus shares issued and shares issued for consideration other than cash 
during the year of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:
The Company has not issued any bonus shares nor there has been any buy back of shares during five 
years immediately preceding 31 March 2021.

e. Shares reserved for issue under options and contracts or commitments for the sale of shares or 
disinvestment, including the terms and
The Company has not issued any equity shares under  ESOP (Employee Stock Option) .
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14 Other equity  As at 
 31 March 2021

 As at 
 31 March 2020 

General reserve  19,125.69  18,400.26 
Retained earnings 
                Opening Balance  18,109.14  14,344.03 
                Add: Profit for the year from Statement of Profit & Loss  5,201.50  2,511.15 
                Add: Appropriation from Statement of Profit or Loss to 
General Reserve

 (725.43)  (634.69)

                Add: Dividend paid  (213.67)  (213.67)
                Add: DDT Taxes  -    (43.92)
                Add: Ind AS impact  -    2,146.25 
Retained earnings  22,371.53  18,109.14 
Other comprehensive income
                Opening Balance  -786.43  -901.12 

                Additions/(Deletions)  244.28  114.69 
Other comprehensive income  (542.15)  (786.43)

Total  40,955.07  35,722.97 
Nature of reserves
General reserve
The General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation 
purposes. As the General reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an 
item of other comprehensive income, items included in the General reserve will not be reclassified subsequently 
to statement of profit and loss.

15 Other Financial liabilities
 As at 

 31 March 2021 
 As at 

 31 March 2021 
 As at 

 31 March 2020
 As at 

 31 March 2020 
 Non-Current  Current  Non-Current  Current 

At Amortised Cost
Security Deposit (Unsecured considered 
good) 
Unsecured and Considered good  1,124.79  72.48  983.27  377.33 
Deferred income on above deposits  -    -    -    -   
Interest Accrued  53.88  -    53.88  -   
Lease liability (Refer note A below )  666.18  731.08  957.57  766.17 
Payable to Subsidiary Company 
(Refer note 39) 

 -    13.10  -    13.85 

Creditors for Capital Goods  -    2.40  -    0.33 
Other payables  247.05  17,459.03  247.05  14,302.91 

 Total  2,091.90  18,278.09  2,241.77  15,460.59 
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16. Provisions  As at 
 31 March 2021 

 As at 
 31 March 2021 

 As at 
 31 March 2020

 As at 
 31 March 2020 

 Non-Current  Current  Non-Current  Current 
Provision for employee benefits (*)
     Gratuity  -    -    -   -
     Compensated Absences  580.18  230.83  545.68  190.23 
     Employee Death Relief Fund  16.03  82.15  88.33  5.24 
Provision for Insurance Claim  363.93  -    351.09  -   
Provision - Others  550.60  -    399.70  -   
Provision for Income Tax [ net of TDS 
and Advance Tax]

 -    -    -    -   

Total  1,510.74  312.98  1,384.80  195.47 
(*) Refer note 34  for details

Movement in Provisions for the year 2020-21
Opening Balance  1,580.27 
Additions during the year  243.45 
Deletions/ Utilisation  -   
Closing Balance  1,823.72 

17. Other liabilities
 As at 

 31 March 2021 
 As at 

 31 March 2021 
 As at 

 31 March 2020
 As at 

 31 March 2020 
 Non-current  Current  Non-current  Current 

Statutory remittances   3,640.84  393.82  3,640.84  383.69 
Others  -    2.12  -    2.63 

Total  3,640.84  395.94  3,640.84  386.32 

18 Trade payables  As at  As at 
 31 March 2021  31 March 2020 

Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  19.58 
Dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises  10,297.61  11,631.09 

Total  10,297.61  11,650.67 
Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) which came into force from 2nd October 
2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. The Company has 
identified Micro, Small and Medium enterprises as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act 2006 during the FY 2020-21

Note A Movement in Lease Liability for the year 2020-21
Opening Balance  1,723.74 
Additions during the year  386.54 
Deletions/ Utilisation  -   
Interest on lease liabilities accrued during the year  99.45 
Payment of lease liabilities  (812.46)
Closing Balance  1,397.26 
 Current  731.08 
 Non-current  666.18 
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Particulars  As at 
 31 March 2021 

 As at 
 31 March 2020 

The principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any 
supplier as at the end of the year.
Principal Amount - 19.49
Interest payable under MSMED Act, 2006 - 0.10

Total - 19.59
The amount of interest paid by the company in terms of section 16 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 along with 
the amounts of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during the accounting year. 

- -

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which have been paid beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 *

- 0.10

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the 
accounting year 	

- 0.10

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a 
deductible expenditure u/s 23 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006.*

- -

*The above information has been furnished to the extent such parties have been identified as MSME by the 
company which are net of discounts / waivers as a part of business practice. The same has been relied upon 
by the auditors.	
The interest was provided on a conservative basis in the books of accounts in the previous year.

 Year ended 
 31 March 2021

 Year ended 
 31 March 2020

19 Revenue from Operations
Sales 
  Liquor  2,38,613.00  1,90,744.30 
  Note Books & Stationery  6,926.00  6,866.42 
  Pharmaceutical  908.00  1,194.30 
  Others  2,976.00  1,838.48 
Income Earned on Chit Fund Business 
  Foreman’s Commission  1,297.71  1,224.01 
  Dividend  138.05  116.91 
  Default Interest  178.54  139.16 
  Commission and service charges  23.73  4.65 

 2,51,061.03  2,02,128.23 
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20. Other Income
Interest on 
       On bank deposits carried at amortised cost  905.07  1,051.64 
       On other deposits  73.52  67.60 
 Rent (^) (#)  667.46  430.85 
 Dividend(*)  2.30  60.08 
 Provision for doubtful debts no longer required  577.03  262.41 
 Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment  3.55  0.66 
 Miscellaneous income  875.83  240.05 

 3,104.76  2,113.29 
(*) includes dividend received from subsidiary amounting to Nil (31 March 2020: 53.59 lakhs). Refer note 39 	
(^) includes rent received from subsidiary amounting to INR 4.30 lakhs (31 March 2020:4.30 lakhs). Refer note 39 
 # includes rent realised amounting to Rs 249.76 Lakhs 

21. Cost of materials consumed
Inventories at the beginning of the year  92.31  417.74 
Purchases during the year  1,441.86  975.25 
Inventories at the end of the year  (303.73)  (92.31)

 1,230.44  1,300.68 

22. Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
Liquor  2,20,997.29  1,74,358.91 
Notebooks and Stationery  4,426.79  3,815.91 
Pharmaceutical  781.90  975.48 
Others  2,824.68  1,531.59 

 2,29,030.66  1,80,681.89 

23. Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock-in-trade
Inventories at the end of the year
     Traded goods  11,236.44  8,049.42 
     Finished goods  1,114.92  923.79 

 12,351.36  8,973.21 
Inventories at the beginning of the year
     Traded goods  8,049.42  7,112.72 
     Finished goods  923.79  1,453.25 

 8,973.21  8,565.97 
 (3,378.15)  (407.24)
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 Year ended 
 31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
 31 March 2020

24. Employee Benefits Expenses
Salaries & Wages  1,663.00  1,730.36 
Contribution to Provident & Other funds  218.02  175.85 
Compensated Absences (Refer note 34)  237.81  61.75 
Gratuity (Refer note 34)  109.16  38.27 
Staff Welfare Expenses  182.71  152.54 

 2,410.70  2,158.77 

 Year ended 
 31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
 31 March 2020

25. Finance Costs
 Interest on lease liabilities (Refer note 15)  99.45  108.57 
 Interest on financial liabilities and others  1.30  0.33 
 Bank charges  58.91  110.93 
 Guarantee Commission  1.99  8.41 

 161.65  228.24 

 Year ended 
 31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
 31 March 2020

26. Depreciation and amortization expense
 Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment (Refer note 2)  846.62  717.62 
 Amortization of intangible assets (Refer note 5)  3.99  5.29 
 Depreciation on Investment Properties (Refer note 4)  119.87  115.61 
 Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (Refer note 5A)  755.21  656.88 

 1,725.69  1,495.40 
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MYSORE SALES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in Rs lakhs unless otherwise stated)

 Year ended 
 31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
 31 March 2020

27. Other Expenses
 Conversion charges - Notebooks  183.64  159.21 
 Packing Material & Secondary Freight  1,177.59  1,021.76 
 Outsourcing expenses  6,167.71  5,589.15 
 Rent (Refer note 5A)  718.19  630.69 
 Repairs & Maintenance : 
    - Buildings  67.88  90.04 
    - Vehicle   40.34  25.38 
    - Others  245.13  314.86 
 Insurance  195.06  143.38 
 Rates and taxes  4,548.13  4,254.45 
 Advertising and sales promotion (#)  251.60  284.34 
 Communication costs  94.85  93.43 
 Printing and stationery  148.80  127.08 
 Legal and professional fees (*)  497.05  509.29 
 Travelling and conveyance  147.62  136.76 
 Electricity & Water  165.29  173.93 
 Security Services  80.41  85.58 
 Commission   315.57  366.49 
 Donation  102.25  4.74 
 Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure (Refer note 37)  92.00  152.25 
 Directors Sitting fees  1.98  0.24 
 Bad & Doubtful Debts  -    70.47 
 Allowances for doubtful debts and advances  717.74  45.08 
 Impairment losses in value of other financial assets  236.48  200.80 
 Miscellaneous   209.20  161.19 

 16,404.51  14,640.59 

(*) Refer note 28 for payment to the auditor 			 
(#)  includes advertising and sales promotion paid to subsidiary amounting to Rs 63.04 lakhs
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 Year ended 
 31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
 31 March 2020

28. Payment to the Auditor Included under Leagl and 
professional Fees :
    - Audit fee  9.17  9.17 
    - Tax audit fee  0.91  0.91 

 10.08  10.08 

 Year ended 
 31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
 31 March 2020

29. Tax expense
A Tax expense comprises of:

Profit or loss section
Current tax  1,991.30  1,065.48 
Deferred tax  (648.92)  524.04 
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods  26.55  31.31 
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss  1,368.93  1,620.82 

OCI section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the 
year:
Net gain on revaluation of land and buildings  -    -   
Net share of profit/loss of an investment in associate  -    -   
Deferred tax charged to OCI  -    -   

B Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate
The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expected tax expense based on 
the domestic effective tax rate of the Company at 25.17% and the reported tax expense in profit or loss 
are as follows:	
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations  6,580.30  4,143.19 
Effect of fair valuation not considered for determining the tax 
liability 

 249.52  886.45 

Profit/(loss) before tax from discontinued operations  (9.87)  (11.21)
Accounting profit before tax  6,819.95  5,018.42 
Effective tax rate in India 25.17% 25.17%
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.17% (31 March 2020: 
25.17%)

 1,716.58  1,263.14 

Adjustments:
Inadmissible expenditure  907.74  419.00 
Admissible Expenditure  (915.96)  (936.00)
Other Income offered to tax  283.04  339.44 
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Eligible deductions under the IT Act  -    (25.17)
Additional Provision made  (0.10)  5.07 
At the effective income tax rate of 25.17 % 
(31 March 2020 - 25.17 %)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss  1,991.30  1,065.48 
Income tax attributable to a discontinued operation  (2.48)  (2.82)

 1,988.82  1,062.66 

C Deferred tax
Deferred tax relates to the following: Balance sheet Statement of profit and 

loss
 31 March 

2021 
 31 March 

2020 
 31 March 

2021 
 31 March 

2020 
Difference in depreciation rates - Books & for 
tax purposes

 (130.53)  (119.27)  (11.26)  71.19 

Unrealised Rental Income  (159.58)  (159.58)  -   
Provision for employee benefit expenses  524.15  208.77  315.39  (525.61)
Provision for doubtful advances/ debts  735.18  238.19  496.99  (83.71)
Impact on accounting for Right to use assets  21.47  14.09  7.39  14.09 
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)  990.69  341.77  648.92  (524.04)

Reflected in the balance sheet as follows:
 As at 

31 March 2021
 As at 

31 March 2020
Deferred tax assets  1,280.80  461.04 
Deferred tax Liablities  (290.11)  (119.27)
Deferred tax assets, net  990.69  341.77 
Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities				  
Deferred tax assets is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which the deductible temporary differences and carried forward tax losses can be utilised. 
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MYSORE SALES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
 Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
 (All amounts in Rs lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

30 Discontinued Operations and assets held for sale
Hire purchase operations
The company has discontinued its HP operations on July 2008, which 
was also a separate segment as per AS-17, Segment Reporting. 
The company accounts for interest income from HP operations on 
cash basis. The scheduled EMI periods terminated in 2013-14. The 
results of HP operations for the year are presented below
Other income  7.64  24.23 
Other expenses  17.51  35.44 
Profit/(Loss) before tax from discontinuing operations  (9.87)  (11.21)
Tax expense on discontinuing operations  -    -   
Profit/(Loss) for the year from discontinuing operations  (9.87)  (11.21)
There are no assets and liabilities related to HP operations as at 31 
March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

Investment in equity shares
The Government of Karnataka, vide its order no AHD 172 AFT 2010 dated 5 March 2011, had advised 
the company to transfer the shares to Karnataka State Agricultural Produce Processing and Export 
Corporation (Corporation) which was also approved in the Board Meeting of the company held on 30 
June 2011. This is classified as an FVTOCI financial asset and carried at fair value through OCI. The 
Company did not pledge the financial asset nor received any collateral for it. The parties to the transaction 
are in the process of finalising the consideration as at 31 March 2021.
Unquoted - fully paid
Associate 
Food Karnataka Limited
50,000 (31 March 2020: 50,000) fully paid equity shares of INR 10 
each

 5.00  5.00 

 5.00  5.00 
Liabilities associated with the sale  -    -   
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31 Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gain/(loss) on FVTOCI financial assets  233.05  180.09 
 - Investment in equity shares of M/s.J K Tyre Industries Limited:  225.50  72.85 
 - Investment in equity shares of M/s.Bengal & Assam Co Limited:  7.55  (20.32)
 - Investment in The Karnataka State Co-operative Apex Bank Limited - 
   One -C- Class ordinary shares

 -    (2.14)

 - Investment in equity shares of M/s.Hassan Mangalore Rail Development 
Company Limited: advisory store

 -    129.70 

Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans  11.23  (65.40)
 244.28  114.69 

32 Earnings Per Share
The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
Continuing operations  5,211.37  2,522.36 
Discontinued operation  (9.87)  (11.21)

Total  5,201.50  2,511.15 

No of shares used for Basic and diluted EPS  42,73,477  42,73,477 

Earnings per share for continuing operations
Basic (Rs.)  121.95  59.02 
Diluted (Rs.)  121.95  59.02 

Earnings per share for discontinued operations
Basic (Rs.)  (0.23)  (0.26)
Diluted (Rs.)  (0.23)  (0.26)

Earnings per share for continuing and discontinued operations
Basic (Rs.)  121.72  58.76 
Diluted (Rs.)  121.72  58.76 

33. Dividend Paid
Cash dividends on equity shares paid:
Dividend  213.67  213.67 
Tax on distribution of dividend  -    43.92 
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34. Employee benefits
i.  Disclosure of Employee Benefits as per Ind AS 19

 Particulars As at  
March 31, 2021

As at  
March 31, 2020

 Defined benefit liability - Gratuity   -    -   
 Liability for Compensated Absences  811.01  735.92 
 Liability for Death Relief fund  98.18  93.57 
 Total employee benefit liabilities  909.19  829.49 
 Non-current  596.20  564.67 
 Current  312.99  264.82 

ii.   Amount recognized in Balance Sheet - as per actuarial valuation 

 Particulars  Gratuity - Defined 
benefit plan 

Compensated absences- 
Defined contribution plan

 Death relief fund - 
defined contribution plan 

 2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20 
Present Value of Obligation 
at the end of the year 

 1,173.42  1,349.96  811.01  735.92  98.18  93.57 

Fair Value of Plan Assets the 
end of the year 

 1,268.99  1,441.59  -    -    -    -   

Funded Status  95.57  91.62  (811.01)  (735.92)  (98.18)  (93.57)
 Asset/(liability) recognized 
in Balance Sheet  

 95.57  91.62  (811.01)  (735.92)  (98.18)  (93.57)

 iii.   Reconciliation of the net defined benefit liability-Change in Present Value of Obligation 

 Particulars 
 Gratuity - Defined 

benefit plan 
 Compensated absences-
Defined contribution plan 

 Death relief fund - 
Defined contribution plan 

 2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20 
Present Value of Obligation at 
the beginning of the year 

 1,349.96  1,479.92  735.92  864.44  93.57  87.74 

Interest Cost  72.73  79.97  39.47  46.85  5.34  5.08 
Current service cost  36.43  41.35  87.71  79.43  7.10  6.76 
Prior service Cost  -  - 
Benefits paid  (287.49)  (333.58)  (162.72)  (190.27)  (10.03)  (8.77)
Remeasurement of obligation   -  -  110.63  (64.53)  -  - 
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligation  
recognised in the statement of 
Other Comprehensive Income 

 1.79  82.30  -  -  2.20  2.76 

Balance as at the end of the 
year 

 1,173.42  1,349.96  811.01  735.92  98.18  93.57 
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iv.  Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets 

 Particulars 
 Gratuity - Defined 

benefit plan 
Compensated absences- 
Defined contribution plan

 Death relief fund - 
defined contribution plan 

 2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20 
Fair Value of Plan Assets the 
beginning of the year 

 1,441.59  1,385.79  -  -    -   

Interest Cost  -    -  -   
Employer Contribution  22.92  289.43  -  -    -    -   
Benefits paid  (287.49)  (333.58)  -  -    -    -   
Return on plan assets excluding 
actual return on plan assets 

 78.95  83.05  -  -    -    -   

Actuarial gain /(loss) on obligation   13.02  16.89  - 
Balance as at the end of the year  1,268.99  1,441.59  -  -    -    -   

v. Expense recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss 

 Particulars 
 Gratuity - Defined 

benefit plan 
Compensated absences- 
Defined contribution plan

 Death relief fund - 
defined contribution plan 

 2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20 
Current service cost  36.43  41.35  87.71  79.43  7.10  6.76 
Past service cost  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Remeasurement of obligation   -  -  110.63  (64.53)  -  - 
Net Interest on Net Defined 
Benefit Obligations 

 (6.22)  (3.08)  39.47  46.85  5.34  5.08 

Expense recognised in Statement 
of Profit & Loss before tax 

 30.21  38.27  237.81  61.75  12.44  11.84 

vi. Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 

 Particulars 
 Gratuity - Defined 

benefit plan 
Compensated absences- 
Defined contribution plan

 Death relief fund - 
defined contribution plan 

 2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20 
 Actuarial loss/ (gain) on obligation (11.23)  65.41  -    -    -    -   
 Actuarial loss/ (gain) on obligation on non funded obligations are not recognised in the books of accounts. 

vii.  Assets 
 The gratuity assets are managed by LIC of India. 
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viii.   Assumptions 	
 With the objective of presenting the plan assets and plan liabilities of the defined benefits plans and post 
retirement benefits at their fair value on the balance sheet, assumptions under Ind AS 19 are set by reference 
to market conditions at the valuation date The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:	

 Particulars 
 Gratuity - Defined 

benefit plan 
Compensated absences- 
Defined contribution plan

 Death relief fund - 
defined contribution plan 

 2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20 
Discount Rate 6.03% 6.09% 6.03% 6.09% 6.03% 6.09%
Salary Escalation Rate 5.75% 4.00% 5.75% 4.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Attrition Rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 1.00% 1.00%

ix. Sensitivity Analysis

 Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2021

As at  
March 31, 2020 

 Increase  Decrease  Increase  Decrease 
Gratuity
Discount Rate (100 bps movement)  (27.92)  29.83  (33.31)  35.43 
Salary escalation rate (100 bps movement)  26.87  (26.49)  34.41  (33.23)
Attrition Rate (100 bps movement)  (1.11)  1.17  0.71  (0.74)
Compensated absences
Discount Rate (100 bps movement)  (34.68)  37.48  (29.80)  32.14 
Salary escalation rate (100 bps movement)  35.12  (33.11)  30.65  (28.93)
Attrition Rate (100 bps movement)  (1.47)  1.55  1.01  (1.08)
Death Relief Fund 
Discount Rate (100 bps movement)  (1.98)  2.11  (2.12)  2.26 
Salary escalation rate (100 bps movement)  2.33  (2.24)  2.46  (2.39)
Attrition Rate (100 bps movement)  0.39  (0.41)  0.43  (0.45)
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Description of risk exposures
Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions which may vary over time. 
Thus, the Company is exposed to various risks in providing the above benefit which are as follows:
Interest rate risk The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in 

interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the 
above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of liability (as 
shown in financial statements).	

Liquidity risk This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short term benefit 
payouts. This may arise due to non availability of enough cash/cash equivalent 
to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time.

Salary escalation risk The present value of the above benefit plan is calculated with the assumption 
of salary increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of 
increase in salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in 
salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on 
the plan’s liability.

Demographic risk The company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation 
of the liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning 
out to be worse compared to.

Regulatory risk: Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of 
Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended from time to time). There is a risk of change 
in regulations requiring higher gratuity payouts (for example, increase in the 
maximum liability of gratuity to INR 20 lakhs).

Investment risk The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected 
return on any particular investment.

Asset liability mismatching or 
market risk

The duration of the liability is longer compared to duration of assets exposing 
the company to market risks for volatilities/fall in interest rate.
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35 Capital management
The Company’s capital management is intended to maximise the return to shareholders for meeting the 
long and short term objectives of the Company through the leveraging of the debit and equity balance
The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual and long-term operating 
plans and strategic investment plans. The funding requirements will be met through long and short term 
borrowings. The Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of debt to equity ratio and the 
maturity of the overall debt of the Company.
The following table summarises the capital of the Company:

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Total equity  45,228.55  39,996.45 
Debt  -    -   
Cash equivalents including other bank balances  24,698.44  24,116.02 
Net debt  -    -   
Total capital (Equity + Net debt)  45,228.55  39,996.45 
Net debt to capital ratio  -    -   
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years 
ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

36 Financial risk management
The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This note explains the sources of 
risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial 
statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement
Credit risk Other bank balances, trade receivables, investment 

carried at amortised cost, loans, other financial 
assets and financial guarantees

Ageing analysis and recoverability 
assessment	

Liquidity risk Other financial liabilities & collaterals taken as 
security	

Rolling cash flow forecasts

Market risk – foreign 
exchange

Recognised financial assets and liabilities not 
denominated in INR

Sensitivity analysis

Market risk – 
security prices

Investment in equity Sensitivity analysis

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial 
loss to the Company. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (predominantly trade 
receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign 
exchange transactions and other financial instruments.
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Credit risk management
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures 
and control relating to the customer credit risk management. The Company uses financial information and past 
experience to evaluate credit quality of majority of its customers and individual credit limits are defined in 
accordance with this assessment. Outstanding receivables and the credit worthiness of its counter parties are 
periodically monitored and taken up on case to case basis.  There is no material expected credit loss based 
on the past experience. However, the Company assesses the impairment of trade receivables on case to case 
basis and has accordingly created loss allowance.
The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited because the counter parties are banks with high credit 
ratings assigned by accredited rating agencies.
The Company assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on the following categories arrived 
on the basis of assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets.
Classification of financial assets under various stages
The Company classifies its financial assets in three stages having the following characteristics:
Stage 1: unimpaired and without significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition on which a 12-month 
allowance for ECL is recognised;
Stage 2: a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition on which a lifetime ECL is recognised; and
Stage 3: objective evidence of impairment, and are therefore considered to be in default or otherwise credit 
impaired on which a lifetime ECL is recognised.
All financial assets are deemed to have suffered a significant increase in credit risk when they are 30 days 
past due (DPD) or one instalment overdue on the reporting date and are accordingly transferred from stage 1 
to stage 2. For stage 1 an ECL allowance is calculated based on a 12-month point in time (PIT) probability of 
default (PD). For stage 2 and 3 assets a life time ECL is calculated based on a lifetime Probability of default.
The Company calculates impairment on financial instruments under ECL approach prescribed under Ind 
AS 109 ‘Financial instruments’. ECL uses three main components: PD, LGD (loss given default) and EAD 
(exposure at default) along with an adjustment considering forward macro economic conditions.
Financial instruments other than Loans were subjected to simplified ECL approach under Ind AS 109 ‘Financial 
instruments’.
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36 Financial risk management contd.
Credit risk exposure
Provision for expected credit losses
The Company provides for expected credit loss based on 12 month and lifetime expected credit loss 
basis for following financial assets:
31 March 2021

Particulars Estimated 
gross carrying 

amount

Expected 
credit losses

Carrying amount net of 
impairment provision

Trade receivables  5,368.21  (813.60)  4,554.61 
Cash and cash equivalents  6,775.15  -  6,775.15 
Other bank balance  17,923.29  -  17,923.29 
Other financial assets  21,754.60  (720.75)  21,033.85 

31 March 2020
Particulars Estimated 

gross carrying 
amount

Expected 
credit losses

Carrying amount net of 
impairment provision

Trade receivables  4,669.37  (1,125.74)  3,543.63 
Cash and cash equivalents  8,024.81  -  8,024.81 
Other bank balance  16,091.21  -  16,091.21 
Other financial assets  20,629.74  (484.26)  20,145.47 

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables, Loans and other Financial assets
Trade 

receivables
Other financial 

asset
Loss allowance on 01 April 2019  (1,176.11)  (2,563.37)
Allowance for expected credit loss  -    -   
Reversals/ written off during the year  50.37  2,079.11 
Loss allowance on 31 March 2020  (1,125.74)  (484.26)
Allowance for expected credit loss  -  (236.49)
Reversals/ written off during the year  312.14  - 
Loss allowance on 31 March 2021  (813.60)  (720.75)
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ii Liquidity risk 
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve 
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity 
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.	
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents 
on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in which the 
entity operates. In addition, the Company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major 
currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet the liability, monitoring balance sheet 
liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.
Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyze the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on 
their contractual maturities for all financial liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual 
undiscounted cash flows (except lease liabilities).

31 March 2021 Less than 1 
year

1 year to 5 
years

5 years and 
above Total

Non-derivatives
Trade payables  10,297.61  -    -    10,297.61 
Lease liabilities  731.08  666.18  1,397.26 
Other financial liabilities  17,547.01  1,425.72  -    18,972.73 

Total  28,575.70  2,091.90  -    30,667.60 

31 March 2020
Non-derivatives
Trade payables  11,650.67  -    -    11,650.67 
Lease liabilities  766.17  956.31  1.26  1,723.74 
Other financial liabilities  14,694.42  1,284.20  -    15,978.62 

Total  27,111.26  2,240.51  1.26  29,353.02 
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36 Financial risk management contd.

iii Market risk
a Foreign currency risk

The company does not carry any asset or liability denominated in 
Foreign currency. Hence the company is not exposed to currency 
risk.

b Price risk
The company’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from 
the investments held by the group and classified in the balance 
sheet at fair value through OCI.	
Sensitivity
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower prices of instruments on the 
Company’s reserves for the periods.

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Price increase by 5%  - FVOCI  20.54  8.91 
Price decrease by 5%  - FVOCI  (20.54)  (8.91)

37 Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Pursuant to Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed 
thereunder (CSR Regulations), a CSR committee of the Board of 
Directors has been constituted by the Company.

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year  59.43  69.04 
Amount spent during the year on other than construction/ acquisition 
of any asset

 92.00  152.25 

- Paid  92.00  152.25 
- Yet to be paid  -    -   
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38	 Financial Instruments											         
	 Financial instruments by category						    
	 The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities.

Note 
no. Particulars

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020
 FVTPL  FVTOCI  Amortized 

cost 
 Total   FVTPL  FVTOCI Amortized 

cost 
 Total  

Financial assets :
6 Investments (*)  -    2,808.68  597.43  3,406.11  -    2,575.62  597.43  3,173.06 
7 Other financial assets  -    -    21,033.85  21,033.85  -    -    20,145.47  20,145.47 

10 Trade receivables  -    -    4,554.61  4,554.61  -    -    3,543.63  3,543.63 
11 Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    6,775.15  6,775.15  -    -    8,024.81  8,024.81 
12 Other Bank Balances  -    -    17,923.29  17,923.29  -    -    16,091.21  16,091.21 

Total financial assets  -    2,808.68  50,884.33  53,693.01  -    2,575.62  48,402.55 50,978.18 
Financial liabilities :

18 Trade payables  -    -    10,297.61  10,297.61  -    -    11,650.67  11,650.67 
15 Other financial liabilities  -    -    20,369.99  20,369.99  -    -    17,702.35  17,702.35 

(*) Investment in equity instruments of associates are measured at cost as per Ind AS 27 ‘Separate Financial 
Statements and have been excluded above.	
Notes to financial instruments										       
i	 The management assessed that the fair value of cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans, other financial 

assets, trade payables, borrowings and other financial liabilities approximate the carrying amount largely 
due to short-term maturity of these instruments.

ii	 The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could 
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

iii	 The Company has measured investments in equity shares of subsidiaries at the deemed cost. The Company 
has considered the fair value on the transition data as the deemed cost.

	 ii) Fair value hierarchy	 									       
	 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are 

grouped into three Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three Levels are defined based on the observability 
of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:							    

	 Level 1: 	 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.			 
	 Level 2: 	 inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 	

		  liability, either directly or indirectly
	 Level 3:	 unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

 As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 
 Note No  Level 1   Level 2   Level 3   Level 1   Level 2   Level 3  

Investments  6  411.30  2,397.38  597.50  178.25  2,397.38  597.50 
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39 Related Party - Disclosure under Ind AS 24
(i) Key management personnel

H P Prakash Managing Director (till 31-03-2021)
Vikash Kumar Vikash Managing Director  (w.e.f 31-03-2021)
Sridevi B N Company Secretary
Subramanya Chief Financial Officer (till 31-07-2021)
Ramakanth Hebbali Chief Financial Officer 

(ii) Subsidiaries
Marketing Communication & Advertising Limited 
Mysore Chrome Tanning Company Limited 

(iii) Transactions with related parties are as follows
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Remuneration paid to Key management personnel (*)(#)  82.94  76.52 
Dividend from subsidiaries  -    53.59 
Rental income from subsidiaries  4.30  4.30 
Advertising and sales promotion paid to subsidiaries  63.04  -   
Expenses incurred on behalf of subsidiaries  1.62  1.49 

(*) As the provision for liability for gratuity and vacation pay is provided on an actuarial basis for the company 
as a whole, the amount pertaining to individuals is not ascertainable and therefore not included above.

(#) Includes contribution to provident fund
(v) Balances with related parties as on date are as follows March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Receivable Payable
Receivable from subsidiaries  -    1.82 
Payable to subsidiaries  13.10  13.85 
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40	 Segment Information 				  
	 Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS - 108 					   

	 The Company has determined following reporting segments based on the information reviewed by the 
Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM’) i.e. the Managing Director :			 

a) 	 Paper division deals in both Note Books and Stationery				  

b) 	 Sale of liquor is reported under Beverages Division

c) 	 Others include Chit operations, Consumer & Industrial Products, Pharmaceutical products, Export & 
Import operations and Tours & Travels.				  

The above business segments have been identified considering :				 

a) 	 the nature of the products and services				  

b) 	 the differing risks and returns				  

c) 	 the internal organisation and management structure, and				  

d) 	 the internal financial reporting systems.				  

	 The management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making 
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated 
based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements. Income 
taxes are managed at an entity level and are not allocated to Operating segments.

Summary of Segment 
information -

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars Beverages Paper Others/
unallocated

Total

Revenue
External customers  2,38,613.29  6,926.43  5,521.31  2,51,061.03 
Inter-segment  -    -    -    -   
Total revenue  2,38,613.29  6,926.43  5,521.31  2,51,061.03 
Segment profit 8,844.53  (353.52)   (1,749.06)  6,741.95 
Total assets  5,365.22  19,153.66  57,237.78  81,756.66 
Total liabilities  2,903.19  2,344.71  31,280.20  36,528.10 
Capital expenditure  1.16  993.65  192.72  1,187.53 
Depreciation and amortization  44.00  636.90  1,044.79  1,725.69 
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For the year ended March 31, 2020
Particulars Beverages Paper Others/

unallocated
Total

Revenue
External customers  1,90,744.30  6,866.42  4,517.51  2,02,128.23 
Inter-segment  -    -    -    -   
Total revenue  1,90,744.30  6,866.42  4,517.51  2,02,128.23 
Segment profit  5,071.08  284.96  (984.60)  4,371.44 
Total assets  14,778.44  7,621.52  52,556.95  74,956.91 
Total liabilities  3,054.75  4,038.30  27,867.40  34,960.45 
Capital expenditure  499.10  1.66  135.44  636.20 
Depreciation and amortization  538.19  38.15  919.06  1,495.40 

Adjustments and eliminations				 
i	 Finance income and costs, and fair value gains and losses on certain financial assets & liabilities are not 

allocated to individual segments as the underlying instruments are managed at the entity level.
ii	 Current taxes, deferred taxes and certain financial assets and liabilities are not allocated to individual 

segments as they are also managed at the entity level.				  
iii	 Capital expenditure consists of additions to Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Reconciliations to amounts reflected in the financial statements
Particulars Year ended

 31 March 2021
Year ended

31 March 2020
Reconciliation of profit
Segment profit  6,741.95  4,371.44 
Finance costs  161.65  228.24 
Profit before tax  6,580.30  4,143.20 

Particulars  As at 
 31 March 2021

 As at 
31 March 2020

Reconciliation of assets
Paper  5,365.22  14,778.44 
Beverages  19,153.66  7,621.52 
Un-allocated  57,237.78  52,215.17 
Total  81,756.66  74,615.14 

Reconciliation of liabilities
Paper  2,903.19  3,054.75 
Beverages  2,344.71  4,038.30 
Un-allocated/Others  31,280.20  27,867.40 
Total  36,528.10  34,960.45 
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41. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
SL.No Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020

i Guarantees / Counter Guarantees given by the Company to Banks  3,649.29  3,766.46 
ii Insurance Claim on Fire Policy –pending cases  207.73  207.73 

Insurance Claim on Fire Policy –decreed cases  488.70  488.70 
Interest on Insurance Claim   603.07  564.58 

iii Claim made by party in the business of Iron ore Export (including interest)  1,663.11  1,686.58 
iv Claims made by Directorate of  Pension,  Small savings Asset Monitoring  4,609.86  4,609.86 
v Claim against lease of windmill by Wes care (India) Limited  119.23  119.23 
vi Income Tax Demands  865.67  628.85 
vii Service Tax Demands  197.00  176.76 

The above amounts have not been provided as the Company has disputed the claims.

i	 Bank Guarantees are given for the Income Tax demand relating to TCS on Arrack sales of Rs 3617.49 lakhs 
and for other business Rs 31.80 lakhs.

	 The company had made a submission to the Income Tax Department under the Vivad se Vishwas Act 2020 
in December 2021 for 9 assessment years from 1995-96 to 2003-04. which has been accepted by the 
department.

	 As per the scheme the company has paid Rs 100.01 lakhs as Income Tax  and is yet to receive Rs 812.58 
lakhs as refund 			 

	 As per the provisions of the Vivad se Vishwas Act the entire Interest of Rs 306.77 lakhs is waived apart from 
penalty.

	 The Bank guarantee of Rs 3617.49 lakhs was cancelled by the Bank on the directions of the Income Tax 
Department.	

ii	 “Certain Insurance Companies who had settled the claims of their customers on account of fire accident at 
BACC owned by company during 2001, have filed several suits against the company for recovery of claims 
settled by them under the principles of subrogation. The company had finally approached the Honourable 
Supreme Court against the order of the High Court of Karnataka. The Honourable Supreme Court had 
directed vide its order dated 6 Nov 2009 that all the parties (company, insurance companies and customs 
authorities) concerned being Government  agencies, they should discuss mutually and settle the matter 
amicably.

	 Few cases amounting to Rs 207.73 lakhs (PY: Rs 207.73 lakhs) are still sub judice. 

	 Since in the past on similar matter the lower courts had decided  that the company and Dept of Customs 
are jointly and severally liable for settlement of the insurance claim, the company has provided Rs 
162.90 lakh(PY Rs 162.90 lakh) being   25% of the total decreed liability of Rs 651.60 lakhs (PY Rs 
651.60 lakhs) ; the unprovided portion of Rs 488.70 lakhs (PY: Rs 488.70 lakhs) is reported above  
In the current year Compound interest  at  6% is calculated on an amount of  Rs 804.10 lakhs (PY: Rs 
752.77). An amount of Rs 201.02 lakhs is provided in the current year (PY: Rs 188.19 lakhs) and the balance 
amount of Rs 603.07 lakhs (PY: 564.58 lakhs) is reported under Contingent liability. Share of settlement 
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by the insurance companies  and the Department of Customs are not yet finalised. The Company has 
insured the cargo lying in BACC warehouse at the rate of USD 20 per KG as per trade circular issued by 
the Department of Customs.”			 

iii	 The Company had entered into an agreement to export iron ore to China with Fe content of 52%. As the 
commitment was not honoured by the company the buyer went for arbitration. An arbitration committee that 
was formed as per the agreement had passed an award against the company for USD 18,80,851 apart from 
an interest payable @ 5 %. USD 67,473 is due from the overseas buyer. The claim against the company is 
Rs 1663.11 lakhs (PY:  Rs 1686.58 lakhs) including interest is reported in the table above. The Claims of 
the overseas buyer in respect of expenses incurred in China and liability under FEMA are not considered 
here.

	 The arbitration award was contested by the company and it had filed a case in the High Court of Karnataka

	 In the light of irregularities reported by the Committee on Public Undertakings of the Karnataka Legislative 
Assembly in the above transactions, the company has filed criminal complaint in the jurisdictional police 
station and the police are investigating the case. In respect of these criminal complaint police have framed 
the charge sheet and filed the case before the Magistrate Court , Bangalore.”			 

iv	 “Directorate of Small Savings: A letter dated 18th  November 2020 was received from the Directorate of 
Pension, Small Savings Asset Monitoring towards short remittance of sale proceeds of lottery and interest on 
delayed remittance, amounting to Rs 4609.86 lakhs drawing reference to their earlier letters . However  the 
company vide its letter dated  10th December 2020 had communicated that it had earlier remitted a sum of  
Rs 352.61 lakhs on 17 October 2016 towards full and final settlement of all dues and that no payment is due from 
the  company  on  this  subject.  The   letter  of  the  company  has  been  acknowledged  by  the  Directorate  of  Small  
Savings. However, the amount demanded is reported under Contingent Liability since the claim is from a 
Government Department.”			 

v	 A claim was made by M/s Wescare (India) Limited a lessee which was disputed by the company. The matter 
was referred to an arbitration panel and an award was passed for Rs 119.23 lakhs (PY : Rs 119.23 lakhs) 
against the Company. The company has filed a case against the arbitration award in the year 2015-16 and 
the matter is subjudice in the High Court of Madras.

	 This amount is disclosed under contingent liability.

vi	 As per the Income Tax Department’s Order, the following are the tax demands that have not been provided for

Asst Year Amount (In  Rs. lakhs) Forum where dispute is pending
2010-11  653.91 CIT(A) for fresh consideration
2014-15  63.43 Income Tax Appellate Tribunal
2015-16  46.68 IT Department has filed an appeal against the CIT Order - 

allowance of Leave Salary
2016-17  37.50 Appeal is pending with CIT (A)
2017-18  64.15 Appeal is pending with CIT (A)
TOTAL  865.67

vii	  Service Tax
	 The total amount of Service tax disputed before CESTAT is Rs 290.00  lakhs for various years from 2002-03 till  

2016-17. However, the company has deposited Rs 93.00 lakhs  against these dues. The balance amount 
of Rs 197.00 lakhs is shown under “Contingent Liability”.
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Contractual Commitments			 

Capital work in progress is Rs. 425.86 lakhs. (PY 161.16 lakhs). 	
Particulars Commitment CWIP

Gulbarga Warehouse  327.14  303.04 
Software 82.00  61.46 
Hardware / Electrical 43.16 41.36
Mangalore Warehouse  25.00  20.00 

 477.30  425.86 
II	 Other Notes :
i	 The Company has entered into Joint Working Agreements [JWA] with HAL & CONCOR to carry out air 

cargo business. MSIL & CONCOR had withdrawn from JWA with effect from 31 March 2014 and  15 
January 2011 respectively. An amount of Rs 163.46 lakhs is due from HAL.  			

ii	 Company has also entered into a business arrangement with ESSPL for leasing solar water heaters to non-
domestic sector. The business arrangement was closed during the year and the dues of ESSPL was fully 
settled. The income earned during the current year is Rs 0.03 Lakhs (PY: 0.39 lakhs)		

iii	 The Company had entered into Hire Purchase agreement with government employees (Hirers) for supply 
of vehicles and consumer durables. The outstanding instalment dues including interest from the hirers  is  
shown under “stock with hirers”. Hire purchase business has been discontinued from July 2008.

iv	 Balances in the accounts of sundry creditors, sundry debtors, business associates including joint working 
arrangements and advances/deposits are subject to confirmation and reconciliation. Consequential 
impact of such reconciliation and confirmation, if any, on the net profit and on the assets/liabilities is not 
ascertainable.				  

v	 Trade Payables include Rs. 2104.63 lakhs (Rs. 2104.63 lakhs ) of advances received from various 
Government departments in respect of contract to supply imported cement.	

vi	 “Honourable Supreme Court, vide order dated 13 February 2003 had ordered for the appointment of an 
Authorised Officer to quantify the commission due to MSIL from Mysore Breweries. The decision of the 
Authorised Officer to pay Rs 2518 lakhs was disputed by Mysore Breweries and the matter is subjudice

	 The company has preferred an appeal before the City Civil Court for recovery of the commission. This case 
is also subjudice.”			 

vii	 Government Grants
	 During the current year the Company has not opened any new Jan Aushadi  outlet [PY :6 outlets] which are 

eligible for Government grants. An amount of Rs 68.98 lakhs was received towards Grant for investment in 
Fixed Assets till date,  including all the outlets opened in the previous years. 			 

viii	 GST recoverable - Beverage Division
	 “An amount of Rs 597.40 lakhs is included under Other Assets Note no 8  being the GST paid on License fees by 

the Liquor Division during the period April to October 2018. A refund claim has been preferred for this amount. 
A refund of GST - RCM amounting to Rs 45.98 lakhs is also reported under Other Assets Note no 8. “

ix	 The company had leased 2,565.4 Sq Meter from Airport Authority of India (AAI) at Bangalore Air Cargo 
Complex (BACC), Bangalore.  The lease was renewed for a period of 10 years from 01 Jan 2001 to 
2010.  AAI has demanded towards Rent of Rs. 228.89 Lakh, Damages  of Rs. 167.24 Lakh and interest of  
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Rs. 229.90 Lakh.  The company is in the process of negotiating a settlement and provided so far Rs. 228.89 
Lakh against the same ( PY : Rs. 142.40 lakh).  Pending settlement with AAI, the company has provided for 
the rental demand in full and has reported Rs. 397.14 Lakhs as contingent liability (PY : Nil)

x	 “The company has entered into an agreement with M/s Poseidon FZE, Dubai (Supplier) for import of river 
sand in 2017.  Till date it has imported 1,03,872.77 MT in 2 shipments (Oct 2017 and Jan 2018) and the 
same was stored at Krishnapatnam Port in Andhra Pradesh. So far, the company has sold 14,759 MT. 

	 The Commissioner of Customs, Vijayawada had passed an order vide no: VJD-CUSTM-PRV-COM-003-20-21 
dated 03 Dec 2020, demanding Rs.599 Lakhs towards differential duty, redemption fine and penalty.  

	 The Company has filed an appeal before CESTAT, Hyderabad for setting aside the order of the Commissioner 
of Customs and the matter is sub-judice in CESTAT, Hyderabad. This amount is disclosed under contingent 
liability.  In this connection the bank has submitted Bank Guarantee of Rs. 11.80 Lakhs.”

xi	 The company had entered into a lease agreement with Mrs. Nagarathna for a property near their Bangalore 
Air Cargo Complex, Bangalore. The lease was renewed for a period of 5 years from 2003 to 2008. As there 
was a delay in vacating the property, the Lessor had  approached the Court for recovery of unpaid rent  
of Rs. 43 lakhs and Interest at 18% of Rs. 16 lakhs (OS no.75/2014). The Hon’ble Additional Civil Judge, 
Bangalore had passed  an order  dated 24 June 2019, against the company for recovery of the unpaid rent 
of Rs. 59 lakhs with the Interest at 18 % from 15 Nov 2011 to 20 Dec 2013.  The Company approached 
the Hon’ble HC, Karnataka and had obtained an interim stay on 21 Oct 2019.  As per the court orders the 
company has deposited Rs. 50 lakhs with HC (RFA 1704/2019. The matter is subjudice in the High Court 
of Karnataka. 

xii	 The Company holds sand measuring 6,826 Tons belonging to the purchaser Ocean Agencies, out of the 
sale of 10000 MT

42	 Impact of COVID 2019
	 The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from COVID-19 in the preparation of 

these Standalone financial statements including the recoverability of carrying amounts of financial and 
non-financial assets. Based on the current year performance and estimates arrived at using internal and 
external sources of information, the company does not expect any material impact on such carrying values. 
Based on the projected cash flows for the next one year the management is confident of liquidating its 
liabilities as and when they fall due and the Going concern assumption used for preparation of these 
financial statements is appropriate. The impact of COVID-19 on the company’s financial statement may 
differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of Standalone Financial statements and it will continue 
to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

43	 No adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have occurred between 31 March 2021 and the date of 
authorization of these financial statements.

44	 The previous year figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s classifications, wherever 
necessary.

As per our Report of Even date 	

For Abarna & Ananthan  	
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm registration number: 000003S

Sd/-
(Abarna Bhaskar)

	 PARTNER	
Membership No : 025145

Place: Bengaluru	
Date:21.09.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mysore Sales International Limited

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	 Vikash Kumar Vikash	 H Halappa	
	 Managing Director	 Chairman	
	  DIN : 08122455	 DIN No: 02321290

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	  Ramakanth Hebballi 	 Sridevi B N	
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary 
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To

The Members of Mysore Sales International Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements of Mysore Sales International 
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding 
Company”) and its subsidiaries (holding company and 
its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) and 
its associate as listed in Annexure-A, which comprise 
consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the 
consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the consolidated 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred 
to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, except for 
the effects of the matters described under the “Basis for 
Qualified Opinion” section of our report, the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards 
prescribed under section 133  of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 
as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state 
of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2021 and 
its consolidated profit, consolidated changes in equity 
and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on 
that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion:

Mysore Sales International Limited

a.	 Balance confirmation of trade receivables, 
trade payables, other payables & advance are 
not received from third parties. These balances 
are subject to confirmations and consequent 
adjustments, if required. In absence of balance 
confirmations, financial impact on consolidated 

financial statements is not ascertainable.

b.	 In the absence of (i) proper records being 
maintained/updated and produced to us for the 
inventory of traded goods viz. imported river 
sand and pharmaceutical products; (ii) periodical 
physical verification and reconciliation exercise 
(including roll forward or roll back) being carried out 
by the management; (iii) obtaining confirmation of 
stock of imported river sand as on Balance Sheet 
date, from the port authorities where these stocks 
are stored; and (iv) confirmation on the quantity 
of the closing stock, we are unable to comment 
on the correctness of the quantity and/or value 
of closing inventory of imported river sand and 
pharmaceutical products amounting to Rs. 1,372 
lakhs and Rs 170.68 lakhs respectively included 
under Closing Stock as of March31, 2021.

c.	 The Company has not accounted for rental 
Income of Rs 441.14 lakhs from few tenants 
for the period up to March 31,2020.  Had the 
Company accounted the rental income (pre-tax) 
in the respective years, the other equity of the 
company would have increased by an amount of 
Rs 441.14 lakhs and other financial assets of the 
Company would have increased by Rs 441.14 
lakhs. However, the Company has accounted the 
same in the current year and has not corrected 
the error by retrospectively restating the 
comparative amounts for prior periods presented 
in which the error occurred or by restating the 
opening statement of financial position, where 
the error occurred before the earliest prior period 
presented, as required by Indian Accounting 
Standard 8 -Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors (Ind AS 8),which 
is a non-compliance with Ind AS 8.

d.	 In respect of pharma division, an amount of 
Rs. 12.48 lakhs, being the amount receivable 
towards cash sales, is reported under “Cash on 
Hand” in Note 11 to the consolidated financial 
statements. However, we were unable to obtain 
adequate and appropriate audit evidence except 
for the management’s certificate confirming the 
cash holding.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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We draw your attention to the following qualifications 
to the audit opinion of the financial statements of 
Marketing Communication & Advertising Limited and 
The Mysore Chrome Tanning Company Limited the 
subsidiaries of the Holding Company issued by an 
independent firm of Chartered Accountants vide their 
Reports dated December 01,2021 and September 09, 
2021 respectively reproduced by us as under: -

Marketing Communication & Advertising Limited-MCA

a.	 The Balance of trade receivable, advances, 
payables and advance from customers have not 
been reconciled nor confirmed from the counter 
parties as at the balance sheet date. We were 
unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit 
evidence about the carrying amount of these 
accounts as at balance sheet date, in the absence 
of which we are unable to determine whether any 
adjustments to these amounts are necessary. 
The financial impact of these unreconciled or 
unconfirmed account balances, if any, could not 
be determined.

	 The position of total balances, confirmed balances 
and percentages of unconfirmed balances are 
given below:

(Amount in Rs lakhs)

SI 
No Particulars

Amount 
as per 
Books

Amount 
for which 

Confirmation 
received and 

reconciled

Percentage of 
unreconciled/
unconfirmed 

account 
balance

1 Trade 
Receivable

11,145.72 290.13 97.40%

2 Trade 
Advances

327.75 - 100%

3 Trade 
Payable

6,702.97 - 100%

4 Advance 
from 
Customers

169.55 - 100%

b.	 The trade receivable in Note10 of the consolidated 
financial statements include Rs.941.29 lakhs 
which are received through NEFT/RTGS directly 
to Company’s bank account for which no 
information is available as at balance sheet date. 

Accordingly, the Company is not in a position to 
analyze the trade receivable ageing schedule 
appropriately. We were unable to obtain sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence, in the absence of 
which we areunable to determine whether any 
adjustments to these trade receivables, advances, 
payables and advances from customers account 
balances are necessary. The financial impact 
of these adjustments which affects the ageing 
of these account balances, if any, could not be 
determined.

c.	 There are discrepancies between purchases/
sales recorded in the books of accounts and the 
GST returns filed on a month-on-month basis 
during the year. We are unable to obtain sufficient 
information or explanation or appropriate audit 
evidence or reconciliation for such discrepancies, 
in the absence of which we are unable to determine 
the financial impact of such non-compliance.

d.	 The Company in its board meeting dated June 
18, 2019, noted, accounts receivable overdue 
collection of Rs.39.29 lakhs by Mr. M.S. Patil, 
the Branch Manager, Vijayapura Branch from the 
client M/s Public Works, Ports and Inland Water 
Transport Department, Vijayapura. Accordingly, 
FIR had been registered with Jalanagar Police 
Station, Vijayapura on May 30, 2019. During the 
year said FIR has been withdrawn consequent 
to the recovery of Rs.39.29 lakhs. However as 
informed, the departmental enquiry initiated 
through public servant [retired judge] is yet to be 
disposed. The duly mentioned sum of Rs.39.29 
Lakhs was collected on September 03,2019 and 
no interest was collected. The financial impact of 
such non collection of interest, if any, could not be 
determined.

e.	 Advance payments amounting to Rs.57.91 lakhs 
remaining unadjusted for more than three years 
under trade advances and other receivables as 
at March 31, 2021 includes Rs.0.12 Lakh paid 
to M.S.Patil during the financial year 2012-13 
through transfer to his personal bank account. 
The Financial impact of such non collection of 
interest, if any, could not be determined.
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f.	 The fixed deposits as disclosed in the balance 
sheet is Rs.7,351.45 Lakhs under cash and bank 
balances and other non-current financial asset. 
The accrued interest on the same disclosed 
under other financial assets is Rs.244.80 lakhs. 
The balance confirmation received from the 
bank is for Rs.7,596.25 which matches with the 
total of fixed deposits and accrued interest. This 
includes deposits of Rs 101.64 Lakhs pledged 
against bank guarantees (Note No.41B(a) to the 
consolidated financial statements) against which 
the bank confirmation received is Rs. 101.64 
Lakhs. We are unable to reconcile the years and 
deposits to which the accrued interest pertains 
to. Improper accounting of fixed deposits, where 
we unable to comment which are the open fixed 
deposits and which are closed deposits.

g.	 Company has exchanged the used batteries with 
new ones, on exchange of those batteries, profit 
or loss not recognized, GST on sale of assets has 
not been discharged. Assets are not marked as 
disposed of in fixed asset register. Fixed asset 
register indicates overstatement of assets and 
profit or loss is understated.

h.	 Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, 
Property, Plant and Equipment, gross block 
value as per books and fixed asset register does 
not reconcile. Property, Plant and Equipment is 
overstated by Rs.2.37 lakhs.

	 The Mysore Chrome Tanning Company 
Limited-MCTL

a.	 The Company is not a going concern as the 
Company is not carrying on any manufacturing 
activities since 1986. The Company has 
accumulated losses of Rs.841.13 lakhs and 
net worth stands eroded.  As of that date, the 
Company’s current liabilities exceeded its total 
assets by Rs.765.38 Lakhs. 

	 These events or conditions, along with other 
matters as set forth in Note 41C(d) to the 
consolidated financial statements indicate that 
a material uncertainty exists that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern.

b.	 The Company has not provided interest on the 
loan availed from MSIL, KSIIDC and Government 
of Karnataka amounting to Rs.5.48 Lakhsfor the 
current year and Rs.132.13 Lakhs from April 
1999. Had this interest been provided, the loss 
for the year would have been Rs.2.89 Lakhs 
against the profit for the year of Rs.2.59 lakhs as 
per the statement of profit and loss account for 
the year ended March 31, 2021. Current liability 
is understated to the extent of Rs.5.48 Lakhs for 
the current year.  

We  conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 
143 (10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated 
financial statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group and its associate in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) 
together with ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 44 of the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements, which describes the 
management’s evaluation of impact of uncertainties 
related to COVID-19 and its consequential effects on 
the operations of the Holding Company. Our opinion is 
not modified in respect of this matter.

We draw attention to the following emphasis of 
matters included in the audit report issued by an 
independent firm of Chartered Accountants, vide their 
report dated December 01, 2021, and September 
09,2021 respectively on the financial statements of 
Marketing Communication and Advertising Limited 
and The Mysore Chrome Tanning Company Limited, 
the subsidiary companies of the Holding Company 
reproduced by us as under:
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Marketing Communication & Advertising Limited-MCA

1.	 Trade advances and other receivables Note.8 
to the consolidated financial statements, 
target incentive of Rs.62.06 Lakhs receivables 
from publication houses is not reconciled, no 
confirmation available and realization of the same 
is not certain, to this extent current assets are 
overstated

2.	 Trade advances and other receivables Note.8 to 
the consolidated financial statements, advance 
paid to publication houses Rs.53.84 Lakhs is 
not reconciled, no confirmation available and 
realization of the same is not certain, to this extent 
current assets are overstated.

3.	 Note 16 to the consolidated financial statement 
earnest money deposits, Rs.82.03 Lakhs has 
been collected as refundable earnest money 
deposit and shown as other current liabilities, 
Company is not able to identify the respective 
supplier’s name and also amount not refunded 
although the relative project has been completed.

The Mysore Chrome Tanning Company Limited-TMCTCL

1.	 Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements 
regarding non provision of interest on advances 
and others, consequent effect of the same not 
being ascertainable.

2.	 The financial statements which, describe the 
uncertainty related to the outcome of the lawsuit 
filed against the contingent liabilities of the 
Company vide Note 41(C)(a) and (b) and other 
information vide Note 41C(c) and Note 16 stated 
in notes to the consolidated financial statements.

3.	 Note 41C(c) to the consolidated financial 
statements regarding recovery of compensation 
amount from Bangalore Development Authority, 
amount being unascertainable.

4.	 Note 41C (e) to the consolidated financial 
statements regarding non confirmation of loans 
and advances.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial 
Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Holding company’s Board of Directors is 
responsible for the preparation of the other information. 
The other information comprises the Board’s Report 
including its annexures, Corporate Governance 
information and shareholders information but does not 
include the consolidated financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements 
does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge 
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We 
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is 
responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the 
preparation of these consolidated financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated 
financial position, consolidated financial performance, 
consolidated total comprehensive income, 
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash 
flows of the Group and its associate in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the accounting standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board 
of Directors of the companies included in the Group 
and its associates are responsible for maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Group and its associate and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
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judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of 
the consolidated financial statements by the Directors 
of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, 
the respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group andits associate are responsible 
for assessing the ability of the Group and its associate to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group and its associate are also 
responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process of the Group and its associate.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material 
misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.

•	  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section 143(3) (i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the Group and its associate has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls.

•		 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the 
management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
ability of the Group and its associate to continue 
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Group and its associate to cease to continue 
as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the 
consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation.

•	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 
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regarding the financial information of the entities 
or business activities within the Group to 
express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audit of the 
financial statements of such entities included in 
the consolidated financial statements of which we 
are the independent auditors. For the other entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements, 
which have been audited by other auditors, such 
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audits carried 
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our 
audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
consolidated financial statements that, individually or 
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic 
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating 
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect 
of any identified misstatements in the financial 
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
of the Holding Company among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of two 
subsidiaries and an associate.The financial statements 
of two subsidiaries reflect total assets of Rs.24,287.72 
Lakhs as at 31 March 2021, total revenues of 
Rs.24,022.69 Lakhs and net cash flows amounting to 
Rs. 5,700.52 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, 
as considered in the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements also include the 
Group’s share of net loss of Rs0.17 Lakh and other 
comprehensive income of Rs. Nil for the year ended 
31 March 2021, as considered in the consolidated 
financial statements, in respect of an associate, whose 
financial statements have not been audited by us. 
These financial statements have been audited by other 
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by 
the Management and our opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the 
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these 
subsidiaries, and associate, and our report in terms of 
sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it 
relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associate, is 
based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements 
and our report on the Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below is not modified in respect of the 
above matters based on our reliance on the work done 
and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on 
our audit and on the consideration of report of the 
other auditors on separate financial statements 
and the other financial information of subsidiaries 
and associate as noted in the ‘other matter’ 
paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, 
that:

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements.

b)	 Except for the possible effects of the matter 
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
paragraph above, in our opinion proper books of 
account as required by law relating to preparation 
of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements 
have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and reports of the 
other auditors.

c)	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), 
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the 
books of accounts maintained for the purpose 
of preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements. 

d)	 Except for the possible effects of the matters 
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
paragraph above, in our opinion, the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements comply with 
the Indian Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e)	 The matters related to associate described in 
the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above, in 
our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the 
functioning of the associate.

f)	 The Group and its associate, being Government 
Companies, the provisions of Section 164(2) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of 
disqualification of Directors are not applicable.

g)	 With respect to the adequacy and the operating 
effectiveness of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting with reference to these 
consolidated financial statements of the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary companies and 
its associate incorporated in India, refer to our 
separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report.

h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirement of Section 197(16) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 as amended:

The Group and its associate, being Government 
Companies, the provisions in relation to payment of 
managerial remuneration as mandated by Section 197 
read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 is 
not applicable.

i)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us: 

i.	 The consolidated financial statements 
disclose the impact of pending litigations 
on the consolidated financial position of the 
Group and its associate - Refer Note 41 to 
the consolidated financial statements.

ii.	 The Group and its associate did not have 
any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses.

iii.	 There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company by the 
Group andits associate.

iv.	 Marketing Communication & Advertising 
Limited had declared dividend in its 48th 
annual general meeting held on December 
29, 2020, the Company has not paid the 
dividend to the shareholders within the 30 
days of declaration, which is non-compliance 
to the provision of section 127 of Companies 
Act 2013.

for ABARNA & ANANTHAN
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 000003S
Sd/-

(Abarna Bhaskar)
Partner

Membership No: 025145
UDIN:21025145AAAACY9393

Place: Bengaluru
Date:14 December 2021
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Annexure-A
List of entities
Subsidiaries
Sl No	 Name of the Company
1	 Marketing Communication & Advertising Limited

2	 The Mysore Chrome Tanning Company Limited

Associate
Name of the Company
Food Karnataka Limited
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S 
REPORT

(Referred to in our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 
3 of section 143 of the companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of the company as of and for the year 
ended March 31,2021, we have audited the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of Mysore 
Sales International Limited (“the Holding Company”), 
its subsidiary companies and its Associate, which are 
companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls 

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding 
company, its subsidiary companies and its associate 
company, which are incorporated in India, are 
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the respective 
Companies considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company’s policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and associate, 
which are incorporated in India, based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and 

the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained 
and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and 
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, 
and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors 
in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters 
paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting of the 
Holding company and its subsidiaries and its associate.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting

A company’s Internal financial controls over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s Internal financial 
controls over financial reporting include those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets 
of the company;(2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
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that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention 
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance 
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, according to the information and 
explanations given to us and based on our audit 
procedures performed, the following material weakness 
has been identified in the operating effectiveness of 
the Holding Company’s internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting as at March 31,2021:

a)	 The Company did not have an appropriate 
internal control system for obtaining external 
balance confirmation on a periodic basis. This 
could potentially result in inaccurate assets and 
liabilities being disclosed in the books of accounts 
and may have an impact on financial results of 
the Company.

b)	 The title deeds of few immovable properties are 
not available with the Company. 

c)	 The company did not have an appropriate internal 
control system related to maintenance of its fixed 
assets. The physical verification of the fixed 
assets is not carried out periodically. Hence non 
availability of assets if any, were not identified. The 
absence of program of verification of fixed asset 
will potentially result in incorrect depreciation 
provision and assessment of impairment.

d)	 The Company did not have an integrated ERP 
system encompassing all its operations, as the 
accounting of beverage, chit and paper divisions 
are made in a standalone software.  The trial 
balance from these software are consolidated 
with the trial balances of the other divisions in 
tally. To this extent, there is a manual intervention 
in the flow of data. 

e)	 The accounting software used by the chit division 
is neither supported by the vendor nor company 
has requisite technically skilled staff to mitigate 
the risk of technical issues if any, that may arise.

f)	 The revenue in respect of the completed tours 
is not recognized as and when it accrues by the 
company in the Tours and Travel Division. This 
will result in under statement of income in books 
of account. 

g)	 The procedure adopted for purchase of various 
property plant and equipment is not in compliance 
with the general purchase procedure for purchase 
above Rs.5.00 lakh. This could potentially result 
in irregularities in acquisition of property plant and 
equipment.

h)	 The company did not have appropriate internal 
control system towards periodic reconciliation of 
grants received from government agency and for 
submission of grants for the new pharma outlets 
opened.This will result in inaccurate disclosure of 
grant receivable in the books of accounts.

i)	 The company did not have an adequate system 
for physical verification, valuation of stock, and 
identification of non-moving/slow moving stock. 
Hence the diminution in value of stock is not dealt 
with. This could potentially result in overstatement 
of inventory in books of accounts.

j)	 The Company has not provided the Form 
X1(Receipts and expenditure account and 
Statement showing the assets and liabilities of 
the individual Chit groups) filed with the Registrar, 
as required under Rule 20 (2) of Chit Funds 
(Karnataka) Rules, 1983.

k)	 The process in respect of approval of major repair 
and renovation work undertaken by the Company 
is not uniformly complied with the Delegation of 
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Authority (DOA) approved by the Board.

We draw attention to the following material weakness 
included in the report on internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by an independent 
chartered accountant dated December 01, 2021, on 
financial statements of Marketing Communication 
and Advertising Limited,a subsidiary company of the 
Holding Company, and reproduced by us as under:

a.	 The Company’s internal control over fixed 
assets does not commensurate to size of 
operations, there is no proper control sale/
exchange of fixed assets. Company doesn’t 
have asset capitalization process.

b.	 The Company’s internal control system 
over accounting and reconciliation of fixed 
deposits doesn’t commensurate to the size 
of operations.

c.	 The Company’s internal control system 
over cash maintenance at branches and 
reimbursement of imprest to the branches 
does not commensurate to the size of 
the operations. Expense accounting 
is not credited to imprest accounts, on 
reimbursement company is posting payment 
entries by debiting expense, which is 
incorrect way of accounting.

d.	 The Company’s internal control system over 
bank deposit pertaining to direct transfers 
from customers does not commensurate 
to the size of operations.The same were 
accounted in miscellaneous debtors’ 
collection, outstanding collection to be 
adjusted as on March 31,2021 is Rs. 147.75 
Lakhs.

e.	 Internal audit is done by the outside 
professionals appointed by the company, but 
scope covered doesn’t commensurate to the 
size of the operations.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial 
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that a material misstatement of the company’s annual 
or interim financial statements will not be prevented or 
detected on a timely basis. 

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and based on the consideration of the 
reports of the other auditors on Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting of the subsidiaries 
and its associate, except for the possible effects 
of the material weakness described above in the 
Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the Holding 
Company and two subsidiary companies, which are 
incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, 
adequate Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting and such controls were operating effectively 
as at March 31,2021, based on internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the respective 
companies considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified 
and reported above in determining the nature, timing, 
and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the Group and 
its associate for the year ended March 31,2021, and 
the material weakness has affected our opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements of the Group and its 
associate and we have issued a qualified opinion on 
the consolidated financial statements.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the 
Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of 
the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
in so far as it relates to two subsidiary companies 
which are companies incorporated in India, is based 
on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such 
companies.

for ABARNA & ANANTHAN
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 000003S
Sd/-

(Abarna Bhaskar)
Partner

Membership No: 025145
UDIN:21025145AAAACY9393

Place: Bengaluru
Date:14 December 2021
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 
143(6)(b) READ WITH SECTION 129(4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MYSORE SALES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED, BENGALURU FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

The preparation of  consolidated financial statements of Mysore Sales International Limited, Bengaluru  for 

the year ended 31st March 2021 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the 

Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the Company.  The Statutory Auditor 

appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139(5) read with section 129(4) of the 

Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 read with section 129(4) 

of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 

143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Revised Audit Report dated 14 December 

2021.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit of the of the 

Consolidated financial statements of Mysore Sales International Limited, Bengaluru  for the year ended 31st 

March 2021 under section 143(6)(a)  read with section 129(4) of the Act. We conducted supplementary audit 

of the financial statement of Mysore Sales International Limited, Bengaluru. Marketing Communication & 

Advertising Limited, Bengaluru but did not conduct supplementary audit of The Mysore Chrome Tanning 

Limited, Bengaluru and Food Karnataka Limited, Bengaluru for the year ended 31 March 2021. This 

supplementary aduit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory 

auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective 

examinaton of some of the accounting records. 

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which would give rise to 

any comment upon or supplement to the statutory auditor’s report under section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

	 For and on behalf of the 
	 Comptroller & Auditor General of India
	 Sd/-
	 (ANUP FRANCIS DUNGDUNG)
	 ACCOUNTANT GENERAL (AUDIT-II)
	 KARNATAKA, BENGALURU

BENGALURU
Date:22.12.2021
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MYSORE SALES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2021	
(ALL AMOUNTS IN RS LAKHS, UNLESS OTHERWISE MENTIONED)

S.
No

Particulars Note 
No.

 As at 
31 March 2021

 As at 
31 March 2020

 I ASSETS

Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 2  4,552.74  4,262.72 

(b) Capital work-in-progress 3  425.86  161.16 

(c) Investment property 4  4,085.33  4,205.20 

(d) Other intangible assets 5  7.16  14.62 

(e) Right-of-use assets 5A  1,311.94  1,667.76 

(f) Financial assets

     (i) Investments 6  2,808.76  2,575.71 
     (ii) Other financial assets 7  106.78  56.34 

(g) Deferred tax assets (net) 30  1,677.79  709.50 

(h) Other non-current assets 8  1,260.66  1,372.70 

Total non-current assets  16,237.02  15,025.71 

Current assets

(a) Inventories 9  12,979.67  9,194.42 
(b) Financial assets

      (i) Trade receivables 10  12,951.25  19,095.23 

      (ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11  11,797.91  8,689.37 
      (iii) Bank balances other than (iii) above 12  25,550.85  22,421.51 
      (iv) Other financial assets 7  21,086.56  20,203.66 
(c) Other current assets 8  4,748.40  6,085.15 
Assets held for sale 32  444.70  441.33 

Total current assets  89,559.34  86,130.67 
Total assets  1,05,796.36  1,01,156.38 



126

S.
No

Particulars Note 
No.

 As at 
31 March 2021

 As at 
31 March 2020

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

(a) Equity share capital 13  4,273.48  4,273.48 

(b) Other equity 14  56,451.17  50,631.99 
(c) Non - Controlling Interest  (37.51)  (37.64)
Total equity  60,687.14  54,867.83 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
      (i) Borrowings 15  174.56  174.56 
      (ii) Other Financial Liabilities 16  2,844.38  3,005.63 
(b) Provisions 17  1,581.74  1,464.94 
(c) Other non-current liabilities 18  3,677.56  3,677.56 
Total non-current liabilities  8,278.24  8,322.69 
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities  -    -   

(i) Trade payables 19
      (a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises  14.03  39.09 
     (b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than (ii) (a)  
            above

 17,072.00  20,826.32 

(ii) Other financial liabilities 16  18,587.59  15,849.15 
(b)  Other current liabilities 18  812.29  1,032.87 
(c) Provisions 17  345.07  217.70 
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 30  -    0.73 
Total current liabilities  36,830.98  37,965.86 
Total equity and liabilities  1,05,796.36  1,01,156.38 

Significant accounting policies			 
The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our Report of Even date 	

For Abarna & Ananthan  	
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm registration number: 000003S

Sd/-
(Abarna Bhaskar)

	 PARTNER	
Membership No : 025145

Place: Bengaluru	
Date: 14.12.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mysore Sales International Limited

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	  Vikash Kumar Vikash 	  H Halappa 
	 Managing Director	  Chairman 	
	 DIN No: 08122455	 DIN No: 02321290		
	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	  A M Chandrappa 	 Sridevi B N	
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary 
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MYSORE SALES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021
(ALL AMOUNTS IN RS LAKHS, UNLESS OTHERWISE MENTIONED)

Note  As at 
31 March 2021

 As at 
31 March 2020

Continuing operations
Revenue from operations 20  2,74,513.97  2,29,008.12 
Other income 21  3,443.38  2,531.13 
Total income  2,77,957.35  2,31,539.25 

Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 22  1,230.44  1,300.68 
Purchase of traded goods 23  2,38,060.17  1,88,154.94 
Cost of Services 24  11,878.96  15,856.90 
Changes in inventories of finished goods and traded goods 25  (3,573.82)  (480.15)
Employee benefits expense 26  2,754.49  2,755.85 
Finance costs 27  163.08  229.94 
Depreciations and amortization expenses 28  1,774.62  1,528.59 
Other expenses 29  18,207.72  15,613.29 
Total expenses  2,70,495.66  2,24,960.04 
Profit before exceptional items and tax from continuing 
operations

 7,461.69  6,579.21 

Exceptional items  -    -   
Profit before tax from continuing operations  7,461.69  6,579.21 
Tax expense 30
(1) Current tax  2,570.33  1,903.78 
(2) Deferred tax  (979.27)  594.79 
(3) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods  28.87  31.31 
Profit for the year from continuing operations  5,841.76  4,049.33 

Discontinued operations 31
Profit/(loss) before tax for the year from discontinued 
operations

 (9.87)  (11.21)

Tax Income/ (expense) of discontinued operations  -    -   
Profit/ (loss) for the year from discontinued operations  (9.87)  (11.21)

Profit/(loss) for the year  5,831.89  4,038.12 
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Significant accounting policies			 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements			   1.2

Note Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Other comprehensive income 33
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Net (loss)/gain on equity instruments through Other 
Comprehensive Income

 233.05  180.09 

Income tax effect -  -

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans  (20.81)  (62.40)
Income tax effect  (10.98)  (1.63)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  201.26  116.06 

Total comprehensive income for the year  6,033.15  4,154.18 

Earnings per share for continuing operations 34
Basic (Rs.)  136.70  94.75 
Diluted (Rs.)  136.70  94.75 

Earnings per share for discontinued operations 34
Basic (Rs.)  (0.23)  (0.26)
Diluted (Rs.)  (0.23)  (0.26)

Earnings per share for continuing and discontinued 
operations

34

Basic (Rs.)  136.47  94.49 
Diluted (Rs.)  136.47  94.49 

As per our Report of Even date 	

For Abarna & Ananthan  	
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm registration number: 000003S

Sd/-
(Abarna Bhaskar)

	 PARTNER	
Membership No : 025145

Place: Bengaluru	
Date: 14.12.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mysore Sales International Limited

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	  Vikash Kumar Vikash 	  H Halappa 
	 Managing Director	  Chairman 	
	 DIN No: 08122455	 DIN No: 02321290		
	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	  A M Chandrappa 	 Sridevi B N	
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary 
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MYSORE SALES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021	
(ALL AMOUNTS IN RS LAKHS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax and exceptional items as per Statement of 
Profit and Loss

 7,451.82  6,630.61 

Adjustments for:
Dividend  (2.30)  (60.08)
Provision for doubtful debts no longer required  (577.03)  -   
Interest income  (1,386.00)  (1,561.53)
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment  (3.79)  (0.66)
Loss on damage of assets  -    0.73 
Rent   (249.76)  (430.85)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses  1,774.62  1,528.60 
Finance costs  163.08  121.12 
Allowances for doubtful debts and advances  1,951.82  315.84 
Impairment of DIGITAL FLEX PRINTING MACHINE  3.81  -   
Impairment losses in value of other financial assets  236.48  200.80 
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans  (31.79)  (65.40)
Share of profit from joint arrangements  (0.03)  (0.39)
Operating profit before working capital changes  9,330.93  6,678.79 
Changes in working capital
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in
Trade receivables  5,256.76  (1,473.59)
Inventories  (3,785.25)  (154.72)
Other Assets  1,448.80  (1,254.19)
Other Financial Assets  (1,660.00)  (2,393.76)
Trade Payable  (3,779.38)  3,571.52 
Other Liabilities  (220.58)  95.66 
Other Financial Liabilities  3,003.12  (308.41)
Provisions  244.17  (718.68)
Cash generated from operations  9,838.57  4,042.62 
Taxes paid, net  (2,599.20)  (1,814.12)
Net cash generated from operating activities  7,239.37  2,228.50 
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Particulars Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (including capital 
advances and Right of use of asset)

 (1,450.36)  (3,180.16)

Government Grant  -    34.57 

Share of profit from joint arrangements  0.03  0.39 

Movement in bank balances other than cash and cash 
equivalents

 (3,433.27)  1,299.32 

Rent   249.76  430.85 

Interest received  1,689.93  1,530.94 

Dividend received  2.30  60.08 

Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities  (2,941.61)  176.00 

C. Cash flow from Financing activities
Finance Cost  Paid  (163.08)  (121.12)

Dividend paid  (213.67)  (224.90)

Dividend Distribution tax paid  -    (54.94)

Lease Liability Paid  (812.47)  (691.40)

Net cash used in financing activities  (1,189.22)  (1,092.36)

Net changes in cash and cash equivalents  3,108.54  1,312.13 
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year  8,689.37  7,377.24 

Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year  11,797.91  8,689.37 
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CASH AND NON CASH CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Year ended 
31 March 2021

 Year ended 
31 March 2020

Borrowings  
At the beginning of the year  174.56  174.56 
Cash Flow  -    -   
Non Cash Changes  -    -   
At the end of the year  174.56  174.56 

Lease Liability 
At the beginning of the year  1,723.74  -   
Cash Flow  (812.47)  (691.40)
Non Cash Changes  485.99  108.57 
Ind AS 116 Adoption  -    2,306.57 
At the end of the year  1,397.26  1,723.74 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements		  1.2

As per our Report of Even date 	

For Abarna & Ananthan  	
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm registration number: 000003S

Sd/-
(Abarna Bhaskar)

	 PARTNER	
Membership No : 025145

Place: Bengaluru	
Date: 14.12.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mysore Sales International Limited

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	  Vikash Kumar Vikash 	  H Halappa 
	 Managing Director	  Chairman 	
	 DIN No: 08122455	 DIN No: 02321290		
	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	  A M Chandrappa 	 Sridevi B N	
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary 
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Consolidated Summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information

1. Group overview and significant accounting 
policies

1.1 Group overview

Mysore Sales International Limited (‘Company’, 
‘MSIL’) is a premier Government of Karnataka 
Undertaking, dealing in various products & services. 
It was established in 1966 as a trading house. The 
registered office is located at Bangalore, Karnataka, 
India. Since then, the group has grown primarily as a 
marketing force with a national presence. It is having 
a wide network of offices all over Karnataka as well as 
in some major metros across the country. It markets 
products and services such as Indian made foreign 
liquor, chit operations, paper products, imported sand, 
Pharmaceuticals, Industrial and Consumer products.

The group has two subsidiaries and an Associate:

Name Year of 
Incorporation

% 
Holding Relationship

Marketing 
Communication& 

Advertising 
Limited

1972 100 Wholly 
Owned 

Subsidiary

The Mysore 
Chrome Tanning 
Company Limited

1940 95.10 Subsidiary

Food Karnataka 
Limited

2003 50 Associate

The Group together with its subsidiaries is collectively 
referred as ‘Group’ in these consolidated financial 
statements. 

1.2  	 Basis of preparation of financial statements
a. 	 Statement of compliance
(i)  			  Statement of compliance

	 The financial statements of the Group have 
been prepared in accordance with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) as notified under 
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules 2015 by Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

(‘MCA’). The Group has uniformly applied the 
accounting policies during the periods presented

	 The financial statements for the year ended 31 
March 2021 were authorized and approved for 
issue by the Board of Directors on14th December 
2021.

(ii)   Basis of preparation of financial statements

	 The financial statements have been prepared on 
a going concern basis under the historical cost 
basis except for:

a)	 certain financial assets and liabilities which are 
measured at fair value.

b)	 Assets held for disposal measured at the lower of 
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

c)	 Employee’s Defined Benefit Plan as per actuarial 
valuation.

d)	 certain arrangements which are treated as 
being leases under Ind AS 116 Leases and are 
capitalized as Right of Use assets, at fair value 
of estimated cash flows towards such rights over 
estimated lease term. Ind AS 116 is adopted 
by the Group using the modified retrospective 
approach, with effect to retained earnings. 

	 Historical cost is generally based on the fair value 
of the consideration given in exchange for goods 
and services.

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to 
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date, regardless of whether 
that price is directly observable or estimated 
using another valuation technique. In estimating 
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group 
takes in to account the characteristics of the 
asset or liability, if the market participants would 
take those characteristics into account when 
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement 
date. Fair value for measurement and/or 
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disclosure purposes in these financial statements 
is determined on such a basis, except for share 
based payment transactions that are within the 
scope of Ind AS 102, ‘Share-based Payment’, 
leasing transactions that are within the scope 
of Ind AS 17, ‘Leases’, and measurements that 
have some similarities to fair value but are not 
fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind 
AS 2 ‘Inventories’, or value in use in Ind AS 36 
‘Impairment of assets’.

	 In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair 
value measurements are categorized into Level 
1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs 
to the fair value measurements are observable 
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value 
measurements in its entirety, which are described 
as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets 
for financial instruments.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are 
not traded in an active market is determined using 
valuation techniques which maximize the use of 
observable market data rely as little as possible 
on entity specific estimates.

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are 
not based on the observable marked data 
(unobservable inputs)

(iii) 	 Basis of Consolidation

	 The consolidated financials include financials 
statements of Mysore Sales International 
Limitedand its subsidiaries and an associate. 
The consolidated financial statements of the 
Group incorporate the assets, liabilities, equity, 
income, expenses and cash flows of the Group 
and its subsidiaries. The Group has control of 
the subsidiaries as it has the rights to variable 
returns from its involvement and has the ability 
to affect those returns through its power over the 
subsidiaries.

	 The consolidated financial statements are 
prepared using uniform accounting policies 
for like transactions and other events in similar 
circumstances. The consolidation procedures 
principally followed are: (a) Like items of assets, 
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash 
flows of the Group and those of its subsidiaries 
are combined on a line by line basis; (b) the 
carrying amount of the parent’s investment 
in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of 
equity of each subsidiary are eliminated; and (c) 
intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income, 
expenses, and cash flows relating to transactions 
between entities of the Group are eliminated in 
full

(iv) 	 Use of estimates

	 The preparation of financial statements is in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles which require the management of 
the Group to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amount of 
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the 
reporting period. Although these estimates are 
based upon the management’s best knowledge 
of current events and actions, uncertainty about 
these assumptions and estimates could result 
in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment 
to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in 
future period. Appropriate changes in estimates 
are made as management becomes aware 
of changes in circumstances surrounding the 
estimates. Application of accounting policies that 
require significant accounting estimates involving 
complex and subjective judgments and the use of 
assumptions in these financial statements have 
been disclosed in note 1.3 and 1.4.

(v)	 New Accounting Standards and amendments 
not yet adopted by the Group–

	 MCA issued notifications dated 24th March, 2021 
to amend Schedule III to the Companies Act, 
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2013 to enhance the disclosures required to be 
made by the Group in its financial statements. 
These amendments are applicable to the Group 
for the financial year starting 1st April, 2021. The 
Group is currently evaluating the impact of these 
amendments on the financial statements.

(vi)  	Significant accounting policies - 

a.	 Current versus non-current classification

	 The Group presents assets and liabilities in the 
balance sheet based on current/ non-current 
classification. (i)  An asset is classified as current 
when it is:

• 	 Expected to be realized or intended to sold or 
consumed in normal operating cycle

• 	 Held primarily for the purpose of trading

• 	 Expected to be realized within twelve months 
after the reporting period, or

• 	 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from 
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting period

(ii)  	 All other assets are classified as non-current.

(iii) 	 A liability is classified as current when:

• 	 It is expected to be settled in normal operating 
cycle

• 	 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

• 	 It is due to be settled within twelve months after 
the reporting period, or

• 	 There is no unconditional right to defer the 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting period

(iv) 	 All other liabilities are classified as non-
current.

(v)  	Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
classified as non-current assets and 
liabilities.

	 Based on the nature of service and the 
time between the acquisition of assets for 
development and their realization in cash and 
cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its 
operating cycle as one year for the purpose of 
current and non-current classification of assets 
and liabilities except for the assets and liabilities 
relating to Chit business.The operating cycle for 
the Chit business is dependant on the Chit tenor. 
A tenor of 40 months is considered to be the 
operating cycle for the Chit Business being the 
most popular chit tenor.

b. 	 Foreign currency transactions

	 Functional and presentation currency

	 The financial statements are presented in Indian 
Rupee (‘Rs’) which is also the functional and 
presentation currency of the Group. All amounts 
have been reported to the nearest rupee, unless 
otherwise indicated.

(a)  	 Initial recognition

	 Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the 
functional currency, by applying to the exchange 
rate between the functional currency and the 
foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 

(b)  	 Conversion

	 Foreign currency monetary items are converted 
to functional currency using the closing rate. 

	 Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign 
currency which are carried at 

-	 historical cost are reported using the exchange 
rate at the date of the transaction and 

-	 at fair value or any other similar valuation 
denominated in a foreign currency are reported 
using the exchange rates that existed when the 
values were determined.

	 Exchange differences arising on monetary items 
on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, 
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at rates different from those at which they were 
initially recorded, are recognized in the statement 
of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

c.	 Revenue recognition

	 The Group has applied the following accounting 
policy in the preparation of its consolidated 
financial statements: 

	 Revenue from contracts with customers 

	 The Group recognises revenue from contracts 
with customers based on a five step model as set 
out in IndAS 115: 

Step 1. - Identify the contract(s) with a customer: A 
contract is defined as an agreement between two 
or more parties that creates enforceable rights 
and obligations and sets out the criteria that must 
be met for every contract. 

Step 2. - Identify the performance obligations in the 
contract: A performance obligation is a promise 
in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or 
service to the customer. 

Step 3.-Determine the transaction price: The 
transaction price is the amount of consideration 
to which the Group expects to be entitled in 
exchange for transferring promised goods or 
services to a customer, excluding amounts 
collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4.- Allocate the transaction price to the 
performance obligations in the contract: For 
a contract that has more than one performance 
obligation, the Group will allocate the transaction 
price to each performance obligation in an amount 
that depicts the amount of consideration to which 
the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for 
satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5. - Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity 
satisfies a performance obligation.

	 The Group satisfies a performance obligation 
and recognises revenue over time, if one of the 
following criteria is met:

1.	 The customer simultaneously receives and 
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s 
performance as the Group performs; or 

2.	 The Group’s performance creates or enhances 
an asset that the customer controls as the asset 
is created or enhanced; or 

3.	 The Group’s performance does not create an 
asset with an alternative use to the Group and 
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for 
performance completed to date. 

	 For performance obligations where none of 
the above conditions are not met, revenue is 
recognised at the point in time at which the 
performance obligation is satisfied.

	 When the Group satisfies a performance 
obligation by delivering the promised goods 
or services it creates a contract asset based 
on the amount of consideration earned by the 
performance. Where the amount of consideration 
received from a customer exceeds the amount of 
revenue recognized, this gives rise to a contract 
liability.

	 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, taking into 
account contractually defined terms of payment 
and excluding taxes and duty.

	 Marketing Communication and advertising 
limited recognizes -  

(a)	 Revenue from sale of goods when the goods are 
delivered to buyer. Sales amount is net of taxes

(b)	 Revenue from rendering of services is recognized 
on rendering of services as per terms of the 
contract and excludes taxes.

Rental income

	 Rental income from operating leases is 
recognized on a straight-line basis over the term 
of the relevant lease.
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Dividend income

	 Income from dividends are recognised when 
the Group’s right to receive the payment is 
established, it is probable that the economic 
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to 
the Group, and the amount of the dividend can be 
measured reliably.

Interest income

	 Interest income from a financial asset is 
recognised when it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the group and the amount 
of income can be measured reliably. Interest is 
accrued on time proportion basis, by reference 
to the principle outstanding applying effective 
interest rate.

	 Interest on delayed receipts, cancellation/
forfeiture income and transfer fees from customers 
are recognised on accrual basis except in cases 
where ultimate collection is considered doubtful 
and in the instances listed below:

Revenue Recognition on cash basis

	 Revenue is recognized on accrual basis except 
for the following items where it is accounted for 
on cash basis since the realisability is uncertain: -

i.	 Chit Operations:All streams of revenue from 
Chit operations is on cash basis. 

ii. 	 HirePurchase:Interest income on hire 
purchase sales is recognised on cash basis.

iii. Duty credit / exemption under various 
promotional schemes of Foreign Trade Policy 
in force, Tax credit, refund of custom duty on 
account of survey shortage, and refund of 
income-tax/service tax / sales-tax /VAT/GST 
and interest thereon etc.

iv. 	 Interest on overdue recoverable.

v. 	 Liquidated damages on suppliers/underwriters.

	 Other items of income are recognized as and 
when the right to receive arises.        

d. Inventories

	 Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and 
net realisable value except scrap and by products 
which are valued at net realisable value.Net 
realisable value is the estimated selling price in 
the ordinary course of business, less estimated 
costs of completion and the estimated costs 
necessary to make the sale.Excise adhesive 
labels printed but not yet supplied are considered 
as inventories as at balance sheet date.

Inventories are valued as under:

i.	 Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and 
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories 
to their present location and condition. Cost is 
determined on weighted average basis in case of 
Paper Division 

ii.	 Finished goods and work in progress: cost 
includes cost of direct materials and labour and 
a proportion of manufacturing overheads based 
on the normal operating capacity, but excluding 
borrowing costs. Cost is determined on weighted 
average basis.Raw materials and consumables 
issued to convertors are considered as Finished 
Goods only at the time of receipt of notebooks 
from the convertors in the case of Paper Division. 

iii.	 Freight inward is not considered for valuation of 
stock of liquor and is charged to the profit & loss 
account.

iv.	 Obsolete inventories, slow moving and defective 
inventories are identified and written down to net 
realisable value.

e.	 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost 
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, 
if any. Cost includes expenditures directly attributable 
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to the acquisition of the asset. General and specific 
borrowing costs directly attributable to the construction 
of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost.

Depreciation and useful lives

Depreciation/amortization on property, plant & 
equipment is provided on the straight-line method, 
based on the useful life of asset specified in Schedule 
II to the Companies Act, 2013. The Management 
estimates the useful lives of the assets as per the 
indicative useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013. Residual values, useful lives and 
method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial 
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Particulars Life in years
Building 60
Fire fighting equipment 10
Electrical equipment 10
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles 8
Furniture and fixtures - Liquor 5
Handling equipment 5
Weighing Machines 5
Office equipment 5
Plant & Machinery (DigiFlex 
Machine)

15

Computers 3
Dark room equipments 3
Partitions 3
Leasehold assets Over the 

primary lease 
period – except                     

for land

Depreciation on fixed assets added/ disposed off/ 
discarded during the year has been provided on 
prorata basis with reference to the date of addition/ 
disposal/ discarding.

The Group, based on technical assessment made 
by technical expert and management estimate, 
depreciates furniture & fixture at Liquor outlets over 
estimated useful lives which are different from the 
useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies 

Act, 2013. The management believes that these 
estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair 
approximation of the period over which the assets are 
likely to be used.

De-recognition 

An item of property, plant and equipment and any 
significant part initially recognized is derecognized 
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or 
loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated 
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in 
the statement of profit and loss when the asset is 
derecognized.

f.  Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets (software) acquired separately are 
measured at their cost of acquisition.The cost comprises 
purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria 
is met and directly attributable cost of bringing the 
asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any 
trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at 
the purchase price.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are 
carried at cost less accumulated amortization and 
impairment losses, if any.

The cost of capitalized software is amortized over a 
period of 6 years from the date of its acquisition on a 
straight line basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an 
intangible asset are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of 
amortization of intangible assets are reviewed at 
each reporting date end and adjusted prospectively, if 
appropriate.
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g.  Capital Work in Progress

	 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost which 
includes expenses incurred during construction 
period, interest on amount borrowed for 
acquisition of qualifying assets and other 
expenses incurred in connection with project 
implementation in so far as such expenses 
relate to the period prior to the date of use of 
asset. Capital advances given towards purchase/ 
acquisition of PPE outstanding at each balance 
sheet date are disclosed separately as Other 
Non-Current Assets.

h.  Investment Property

	 Investment properties are properties held to earn 
rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including 
property under construction for such purposes). 
Investment properties are measured initially at 
cost, including transaction costs. All of the Group’s 
property interests held under operating leases to 
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes 
are accounted for as investment properties. After 
initial recognition, the group measures investment 
property at cost.

	 Investment properties are derecognized upon 
disposal or when the investment properties are 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future 
economic benefits are expected post disposal. 
Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the 
property (calculated as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of 
the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the 
period in which the property is derecognized.

	 Investment properties are depreciated in 
accordance to the class of asset that it belongs 
to and the life of the asset is as conceived for the 
same class of asset of the Group. Depreciation/
amortization is provided on the straight-line 
method, based on the useful life of asset 
specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 
2013. The Management estimates the useful 

lives of the assets as per the indicative useful life 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 
2013. Residual values, useful lives and method of 
depreciation are reviewed at each financial year 
end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

	 The useful life of the Buildings is estimated to be 
60 years.

	 The fair value of investment property is disclosed 
in the notes. Fair values are determined based on 
an annual evaluation performed by an accredited 
external independent valuer.

i.   	 Finance costs

	 Finance cost comprises of Interest cost on lease 
and other financial liabilities, bank charges and 
guarantee commission. All finance costs are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in 
the period in which they are incurred.

j.	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet 
comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three 
months or less, which are subject to insignificant 
risk of changes in value.

k. 	 Leases

	 A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset for a period of time in exchange 
for consideration. 

	 The Group evaluates each contract or 
arrangement, whether it qualifies as lease as 
defined under Ind AS 116.

Group as a lessee

	 The Group enters into an arrangement for 
lease of shops and offices. Such arrangements 
are generally for a fixed period but may have 
extension or termination options. The Group 
assesses, whether the contract is, or contains, a 
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lease, at its inception. A contract is, or contains, a 
lease if the contract conveys the right to –

a) 	 control the use of an identified asset,

b) 	 obtain substantially all the economic benefits 
from use of the identified asset, and

c) 	 direct the use of the identified asset

	 The Group determines the lease term as the non-
cancellable period of a lease, together with periods 
covered by an option to extend the lease, where the 
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option.

The Group at the commencement of the lease contract 
recognizes a Right-of-Use (RoU) asset at cost and 
corresponding lease liability, except for leases with 
term of less than twelve months (short term leases) and 
low-value assets. For these short term and low value 
leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments as 
an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

The cost of the right-of-use asset comprises the 
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, 
any lease payments made at or before the inception 
date of the lease, plus any initial direct costs, less any 
lease incentives received. Subsequently, the right-of-
use assets are measured at cost less any accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, 
if any. The right-of-use assets are depreciated using 
the straight-line method from the commencement date 
over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-
of-use asset. The estimated useful life of right-of-use 
assets are determined on the same basis as those of 
property, plant and equipment.

The Group applies Ind AS 36 to determine whether an 
RoU asset is impaired and accounts for any identified 
impairment loss as described in the impairment of non-
financial assets below.

For lease liabilities at the commencement of the lease, 
the Group measures the lease liability at the present 
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that 
date. The lease payments are discounted using the 

interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily 
determined, if that rate is not readily determined, the 
lease payments are discounted using the incremental 
borrowing rate that the Group would have to pay to 
borrow funds, including the consideration of factors 
such as the nature of the asset and location, collateral, 
market terms and conditions, as applicable in a similar 
economic environment.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease 
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest 
and reduced for the lease payments made.

The Group recognizes the amount of the re-
measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to 
the right-of-use assets. Where the carrying amount of 
the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is 
a further reduction in the measurement of the lease 
liability, the Group recognizes any remaining amount 
of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.

Lease liability payments are classified as “cash used 
in financing activities” in the statement of cash flows.

The Group as a lessor

Leases under which the Group is a lessor are classified 
as finance or operating leases. Lease contracts where 
all the risks and rewards are substantially transferred 
to the lessee, the lease contracts are classified as 
finance leases. All other leases are classified as 
operating leases.

For leases under which the Group is an intermediate 
lessor, the Group accounts for the head-lease and the 
sub-lease as two separate contracts. The sub-lease 
is further classified either as a finance lease or an 
operating lease by reference to the RoU asset arising 
from the head-lease.

l.  Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Group’s defined contribution plans are Employees’ 
Provident Fund (under the provisions of Employees 
Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 
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1952) ESI (under the provisions of Employees State 
Insurance Act, 1948) and Superannuation. The group 
has no further obligations beyond making the group’s 
contributions. The group’s contribution to Provident 
Fund, ESI and Superannuation are made at prescribed 
rates and are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss. 
The Superannuation asset are managed by a Trust 
which invests with LIC.

Death Relief Fund

The Group’s liability towards Death Relief Fund is 
accounted on the basis of actuarial valuation as at the 
reporting date.

Defined benefit plan

The Group has a defined benefit plan for payment of 
Gratuity as per the Gratuity Act,1972. The Gratuity Plan 
provides a lump sum payment to employees who have 
completed five years or more of service at retirement, 
disability or termination of employment, being an 
amount based on the respective employee’s last 
drawn salary and the number of years of employment 
with the Group. The group makes contribution to the 
MSIL Employee Gratuity Fund Trust managed by LIC.

The Group’s liability is actuarially determined (using 
the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each 
reporting period. The present value of the defined 
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the 
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market 
yields at the end of the reporting period on government 
bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of 
the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated 
by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the 
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan 
assets if any. This cost is included in employee benefit 
expense in the statement of profit and loss.

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet 
in respect of gratuity plan is the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting 
period less the fair value of plan assets, if any. 

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from 
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 

assumptions are recognised in the period in which 
they occur, directly in other comprehensive income 
and are never reclassified to profit or loss. Changes 
in the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are 
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and 
loss as past service cost.

Earned Leave

As per policy of the Group, employees can carry 
forward unutilized accrued leave and utilize it in 
next service period or receive cash compensation.
The compensated absences fall due wholly within 
twelve months after the end of the period in which the 
employees render the related service and are also 
expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months 
after the end of such period, the benefit is classified 
as a current employee benefit. The Group records 
an obligation for such compensated absences in the 
year in which the employee renders the services that 
increase his entitlement.

The obligation towards the same is measured at the 
expected cost of accumulating compensated absences 
as the additional amount expected to be paid as a 
result of the unused entitlement as at the reporting 
period. The Group’s liability is actuarially determined 
(using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of 
each reporting period.

Other short-term benefits

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve 
months of rendering the service are classified as short 
term employee benefits. The benefits like salaries, 
wages, estimated bonus, ex-gratia and short term 
compensated absences are recognized in the period 
in which the employee renders the related service.

Short-term employee benefits comprising employee 
costs including performance bonus is recognized in 
the statement of profit and loss on the basis of the 
amount paid or payable for the period during which 
services are rendered by the employee.
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m.  Tax expense

Income taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax 
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax 

Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the 
taxable profit for the year as determined in accordance 
with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the 
Income Tax Act,1961 and other applicable tax laws in 
the countries where the Group operates and generates 
taxable income.

The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax 
liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to 
set off the recognized amounts and where it intends 
either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences 
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
in the financial statements and the corresponding 
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all 
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets 
are generally recognized for all deductible temporary 
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profits will be available against which those deductible 
temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed 
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the 
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the 
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 
which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based 
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting 
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are 
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the 
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and 
the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or 
loss, except when they are related to items that are 
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly 
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax 
are also recognized in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity respectively.

n.    Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the 
net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) 
by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period. The weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period 
is adjusted for events including a bonus issue, other 
than the conversion of potential equity shares that have 
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, 
without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per 
share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number 
of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted 
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in 
the determination of basic earnings per share to take 
into account:

(i) 	 The after income tax effect of interest and 
other financing costs associated with dilutive 
potential equity shares, and

(ii)  	 The weighted average number of additional 
equity shares that would have been 
outstanding assuming the conversion of all 
dilutive potential equity shares.
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o. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a 
present obligation (legal or constructive), as a result 
of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of 
resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be 
required to settle such an obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best 
estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking 
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding 
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the 
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, 
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash 
flows (when the effect of the time value of money is 
material).

If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are determined by discounting the expected 
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as 
interest expense.

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts 
are recognised and measured as provisions. An 
onerous contract is considered to exist where the 
Group has a contract under which the unavoidable 
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract 
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received 
from the contract.

Decommissioning costs are measured as the best 
estimate of the expenditure to settle the obligation or 
to transfer the obligation to a third party. Provisions 
for decommissioning obligations are required to 
be recognized at the inception of the arrangement. 
The estimated costs to be incurred at the end of the 
arrangement are discounted to its present value using 
the market rate of return.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to 
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a 

third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it 
is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received 
and the amount of the receivable can be measured 
reliably.

Contingent Liability is disclosed in the case of

(i)  	 a present obligation arising from a past 
event, when it is not probable that an outflow 
of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation.

(ii) 	 a present obligation arising from a past event, 
when a reliable estimate of the obligation 
cannot be made, and

(iii) 	 a possible obligation arising from past events 
where the probability of outflow of resources 
is not remote.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial 
Statements by way of notes to accounts when an 
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

p.Financial instruments

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair 
value and transaction cost that is attributable to the 
acquisition of the financial asset is also adjusted.

Subsequent measurement
Debt Instruments
Debt instruments at amortized cost

	 A ‘Debt instrument’ is subsequently measured 
at amortized cost if it is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect 
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of 
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash 
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
on the principal amount outstanding.
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After initial measurement, such financial assets are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost 
is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are 
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is 
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The 
losses arising from impairment are recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss.

Debt Instruments at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A debt instrument is subsequently measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income if it is held 
within a business model whose objective is achieved 
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
financial assets and the contractual terms of the 
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding. Fair value movements 
are recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI).

Debt instruments at Fair value through profit and 
loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. 
Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria 
for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, 
is classified as at FVTPL. Debt instruments included 
within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value 
with all changes recognized in the statement of profit 
and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in the scope of Ind AS 109,’ 
Financial Instruments’, are measured at fair value. 
Equity instruments which are held for trading and 
contingent consideration has been recognized by an 
acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 
103,’ Business Combinations’ applies, are classified as 
at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group 
may make an irrevocable election to present in OCI 
with subsequent changes in the fair value.  

The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial 
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as 
at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, 
excluding dividends, impairment gains or losses and 
foreign exchange gains and losses, are recognized in 
the OCI.

There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the 
statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category 
are measured at fair value with all changes recognized 
in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial assets 

A financial asset is primarily de-recognized when the 
rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired 
or the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash 
flows from the asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to 
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its 
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability 
for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, 
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset 
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the 
proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
sum of the consideration received and receivable and 
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized 
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in 
equity is recognized in profit or loss.

q.   Financial liabilities 
Initial recognition

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair 
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable 
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to the issue of financial liabilities, that are not at fair 
value through profit or loss (FVPL), are added to the 
fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method, 
except for contingent consideration recognized in a 
business combination which is subsequently measured 
at fair value through profit or loss. For trade and other 
payables maturing within one year from the balance 
sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate the fair 
value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation 
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced 
by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability 
are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the 
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. 
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset 
and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet 
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset 
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle 
the liabilities simultaneously.

r.   Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances using the 
expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial 
assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. 
Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant 
financing component is measured at an amount equal 
to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected 
credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 
twelve month ECL, unless there has been a significant 

increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which 
case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount 
of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required 
to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the 
amount that is required to be recognized is recognized 
as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit 
and loss.

s.   Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews 
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible 
assets to determine whether there is any indication 
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If 
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of 
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent 
of the impairment loss (if any). 

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable 
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates 
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 
to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable 
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, 
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to 
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which 
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be 
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less 
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in 
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for 
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been 
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. 
An impairment loss is recognized immediately in the 
statement of profit and loss, unless the relevant asset 
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the 
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
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Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the 
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating 
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its 
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined had no impairment loss 
been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating 
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is 
recognized immediately in the statement of profit and 
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued 
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment 
loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

t.  Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group 
that engages in business activities from which it may 
earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues 
and expenses that relate to transactions with any of 
the Group’s other components, and for which discrete 
financial information is available. Operating segments 
are reported in a manner consistent with the internal 
reporting provided to the chief operating decision 
maker.

Segment accounting policies are in line with the 
accounting policies of the Group. In addition, the 
following specific accounting policies have been 
followed for segment reporting.

(i)	 Segment revenue includes sales and other 
income directly identifiable with / allocable 
to the segment including inter-segment 
revenue.

(ii)	 Expenses that are directly identifiable with 
/ allocable to segments are considered 
for determining the Segment Result. The 
expenses, which relate to the Group as a 
whole and not allocable to segments, are 
included under “Other unallocable corporate 
expenditure”.

(iii)	 Income that relates to the Group as a whole 
and not allocable to segments is included in 
“Unallocable income”.

(iv)	 Segment result includes margins on inter-
segment and sales which are reduced in 
arriving at the profit of the Group.

(v)	 Segment assets and liabilities include those 
directly identifiable with the respective 
segments. Unallocable assets and liabilities 
represent the assets and liabilities that relate 
to the Group as a whole and not allocable to 
any segment

(vi)	 Performance is measured based on segment 
profit (before tax), as included in the internal 
management reports that are reviewed by 
the Group’s CMD. Segment profit is used 
to measure performance as management 
believes that such information is the most 
relevant in evaluating the results of certain 
segments relative to other entities that 
operate within these industries.

u.  Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, 
whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects 
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or 
accruals of past operating cash receipts or payments 
and item of income or expenses associated with 
investing or financing cash flows. The cash from 
operating, investing and financing activities of the 
Group are segregated.

v.   Events after Reporting Date

Assets and liabilities are adjusted for events occurring 
after the reporting period that provides additional 
evidence to assist the estimation of amounts relating 
to conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

Dividends declared by the Group after the reporting 
period are not recognized as liability at the end of the 
reporting period. Dividends declared after the reporting 
period but before the issue of financial statements are 
not recognized as liability since no obligation exists on 
the balance sheet date. Such dividends are disclosed 
in the notes to the financial statements.
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w. Exceptional Items

Exceptional items are disclosed separately in the 
financial statements where it is necessary to do 
so to provide further understanding of the financial 
performance of the Group. They are material items of 
income or expense that have been shown separately 
due to the significance of their nature or amount.

Errors of material amount relating to prior period(s) 
are disclosed by a note with nature of prior period 
errors, amount of correction of each such prior period 
presented retrospectively, to the extent practicable 
along with change in basic and diluted earnings per 
share.

However, where retrospective restatement is 
not practicable for a particular period then the 
circumstances that lead to the existence of that 
condition and the description of how and from where 
the error is corrected are disclosed in Notes to 
Accounts.

x. Non-Current Assets Held For Sale And 
Discontinued Operations

An entity shall classify a non-current asset (or disposal 
group) as held for sale if its carrying amount will be 
recovered principally through a sale transaction 
rather than through continuing use. This condition is 
regarded as met only when the asset is available for 
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to 
terms that are usual and customary for sale of such 
assets and its sale is highly probable. Management 
must be committed to sale which should be expected 
to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within 
one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are 
presented separately and measured at the lower 
of their carrying amounts immediately prior to their 
classification as held for sale and their fair value less 
costs to sell. However, some held for sale assets such 
as financial assets, assets arising from employee 
benefits and deferred tax assets, continue to be 
measured in accordance with the Group’s relevant 

accounting policy for those assets. Once classified as 
held for sale, the assets are not subject to depreciation 
or amortisation.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s 
business that represents a separate line of business 
that has been disposed off or is held for sale, or is a 
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. 
Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon 
the earlier of disposal or when the operation meets the 
criteria to be classified as held for sale.

y. Government Grants

Government grants are recognised where there is 
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received 
and all attached conditions will be complied with.

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is 
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the 
periods that the related costs, for which it is intended 
to compensate, are expensed. 

When the grant relates to an asset, it is presented 
by deducting the grant from the carrying amount of 
the asset. When the Group receives grants of non-
monetary assets, it is treated at a nominal value.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by 
governments or related institutions, with an interest 
rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect 
of this favourable interest is regarded as a government 
grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and 
measured at fair value and the government grant is 
measured as the difference between the initial carrying 
value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan 
is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy 
applicable to financial liabilities.

1.3 Significant estimates in applying accounting 
policies

a. 	 Revenue –The Group has applied judgements 
significantly affect the determination of the 
amount and timing of revenue from contracts with 
customers.
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b. 	 Net realisable value of inventory - The 
determination of net realisable value of inventory 
involves estimates based on prevailing market 
conditions, current prices and expected date of 
commencement and completion of the project, 
the estimated future selling price, cost to complete 
projects and selling cost.

c. 	 Recoverability of advances/receivables – At 
each balance sheet date, based on historical 
default rates observed over expected life, the 
management assesses the expected credit loss 
on outstanding receivables and advances.

d. 	 Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets – 
Management reviews its estimate of the useful 
lives of depreciable/amortizable assets at each 
reporting date, based on the expected utility of the 
assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to 
technical and economic obsolescence that may 
change the utility of certain software and other 
assets.

e. 	 Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) – Management’s 
estimate of the DBO is based on a number of 
critical underlying assumptions such as standard 
rates of inflation, medical cost trends, mortality, 
discount rate and anticipation of future salary 
increases. Variation in these assumptions may 
significantly impact the DBO amount and the 
annual defined benefit expenses.

f. 	 Fair value measurements – Management applies 
valuation techniques to determine the fair value of 
financial instruments (where active market quotes 
are not available). This involves developing 
estimates and assumptions consistent with how 
market participants would price the instrument. 
Management uses the best information available. 
Estimated fair values may vary from the actual 
prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length 
transaction at the reporting date.

g. 	 Expected credit losses on financial assets – 
The impairment provisions of financial assets 
are based on assumptions about risk of default 

and expected timing of collection. The Group 
uses judgment in making these assumptions 
and selecting the inputs to the expected credit 
loss calculation based on the Group’s history of 
collections, customer’s creditworthiness, existing 
market conditions as well as forward looking 
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

h. 	 Leases - Ind AS 116 defines a lease term as the 
noncancellable period for which the lessee has 
the right to use an underlying asset including 
optional periods, when an entity is reasonably 
certain to exercise an option to extend (or not 
to terminate) a lease. The Group considers all 
relevant facts and circumstances that create an 
economic incentive for the lessee to exercise 
the option when determining the lease term. 
The option to extend the lease term is included 
in the lease term, if it is reasonably certain that 
the lessee would exercise the option. The Group 
reassesses the option when significant events or 
changes in circumstances occur that are within 
the control of the lessee.

1.4	 Critical judgements in applying accounting 
policies

a.	 Recognition of deferred tax assets – The extent 
to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is 
based on an assessment of the probability of the 
Group’s future taxable income against which the 
deferred tax assets can be utilized. In addition, 
significant judgement is required in assessing 
the impact of any legal or economic limits or 
uncertainties in various tax jurisdictions.

b.	 Recognition of deferred tax liability on undistributed 
profits -The extent to which the Group can control 
the timing of reversal of deferred tax liability on 
undistributed profits of its subsidiaries requires 
judgement.

c.	 Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets 
- The evaluation of applicability of indicators of 
impairment of assets requires assessment of 
several external and internal factors which could 
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result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the 
assets. In assessing impairment, management 
estimates the recoverable amount of each asset 
or cash generating unit based on expected future 
cash flows and uses a discounting rate to arrive at 
net present value.Estimation uncertainty relates 
to assumptions about future operating results and 
the determination of a suitable discount rate.

d.	 Provisions – At each balance sheet date basis the 
management judgment, changes in facts and legal 
aspects, the Group assesses the requirement of 
provisions against the outstanding warranties and 
guarantees. However, the actual future outcome 
may be different from this judgement.

e.	 Contingent liabilities -The Group uses significant 
judgement to disclose contingent liabilities. 
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there 
is a possible obligation arising from past events, 
the existence of which will be confirmed only by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control 
of the Group or a present obligation that arises 
from past events where it is either not probable 
that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the 
amount cannot be made. Contingent assets are 
not recognised nor disclosed in the financial 
statements.
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3 Capital work-in-progress

Particulars
Capital 
work in 

progress
Total

As at 01 April 2019  -    -   
Additions  161.16  161.16 
Capitalised during the year  -    -   
As at 31 March 2020  161.16  161.16 
Additions  264.70  264.70 
Capitalised during the year
As at 31 March 2021  425.86  425.86 

a.	 Contractual obligations	 						    

	 Details of contractual obligations is given in note 41

b.	 Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress pledged as security
	 Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress pledged as security as at 31 March 2021 is 

Nil. (31 March 2020: Nil) 

c.	 There are no borrowing cost capitalised during the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

4	 Investment property

 Particulars  Freehold 
land 

 Leashold 
land 

 Building - 
Freehold 

 Building - 
Leasehold 

Total

As at 01 April 2019  49.22  80.10  878.36  2,594.96  3,602.65 
Additions (subsequent expenditures)  -    -    -    55.59  55.59 
Reclassification from Property, plant and 
equipment

 3.84  20.85  725.72  36.04  786.45 

As at 31 March 2020  53.06  100.95  1,604.08  2,686.59  4,444.68 
Additions (subsequent expenditures)  -    -    -    -    -   
As at 31 March 2021  53.06  100.95  1,604.08  2,686.59  4,444.68 
Depreciation and impairment
As at 01 April 2019  -    -    34.16  86.74  120.89 
Depreciation (note 28)  -    -    25.77  89.84  115.61 
Reclassification from PP&E  -    -    2.98  2.98 
As at 31 March 2020  -    -    59.93  179.55  239.48 
Depreciation (note 28)  -    -    30.03  89.84  119.87 
As at 31 March 2021  -    -    89.96  269.39  359.35 
Net block as at 31 March 2020  53.06  100.95  1,544.15  2,507.04  4,205.20 
Net block as at 31 March 2021  53.06  100.95  1,514.12  2,417.20  4,085.33 
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Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property
Year ended
March 31, 

2021

Year ended
31 March 

2020
Rental income derived from investment properties (Refer Note 21)  663.16  426.55 
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) pertaining to 
investment property 

 (67.62)  (66.75)

Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation and indirect 
expenses 

 595.54  359.80 

Less – Depreciation  (119.87)  (115.61)
Profit arising from investment properties before indirect expenses  475.67  244.19 

The company is in the process of getting the investment property valued.	

The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no contractual obligations 
to purchase or develop investment properties or for major repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

Karnataka Bhavan, Mumbai	 							     

City & Industries Development Corporation of Maharashtra (CIDCO) has entered into a deed of ‘Agreement to 
Lease’ with Government of Karnataka (GoK) for a  plot of land measuring 2520 sq meters in Navi Mumbai to 
enter and occupy the land on the condition that the licensee (GoK) construct a State Guest House.

In turn on 1 October 2008 GoK has entered into an agreement with MSIL for construction of Karnataka Bhavan 
on Build Own Operate Transfer (BOOT) basis effective for 30 years (extendable on mutual consent) from the 
date of completion of the building as per the terms and conditions specified therein.	

The amount of Rs 3410.25 lakhs incurred towards construction of Karnataka Bhawan in Navi Mumbai was 
capitalized based on the completion certificate received from M/s Project Management Service during the year 
ended 31 March 2018.								      

During the year ended 31 March 2020 an amount of Rs 55.59 lakhs was capitalised being the final bills submitted 
by the agencies associated with the project.								      

The Company had entered on 27 September 2018 into a lease rental agreement with a service provider to 
construct the necessary infrastructure and to commence boarding & lodging operations.The Company has 
accrued for rental Income of Rs 206.85 lakhs  and has also made an equivalent provision during the year ending 
March 2021.							     

Bangalore Air Cargo Complex	

Pending execution of lease cum sale agreement with Karnataka Industrial Area  Development Board( ‘KIADB’) 
in respect of a land allotted near Bangalore Air Cargo Complex (BACC), the Company has capitalised the 
payments made towards lease hold land amounting to Rs.52,11,063/-  based on the possession certificate 
issued by KIADB.
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5	 Other intangible assets

Particulars Computer software Total
Gross carrying amount
As at 01 April 2019  71.17  71.17 
Additions  7.07  7.07 
As at 31 March 2020  78.24  78.24 
Additions  -    -   
As at 31 March 2021  78.24  78.24 
Accumulated amortization
As at 01 April 2019  56.53  56.53 
Amotization Charge for the year  7.09  7.09 
As at 31 March 2020  63.62  63.62 
Amortization Charge for the year  7.47  7.47 
As at 31 March 2021  71.08  71.08 

Net block as at 31 March 2020  14.62  14.62 
Net block as at 31 March 2021  7.16  7.16 

5A	 Right of Use Assets

Particulars  Right of Use 
As at 1 April 2019  -   
Impact on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 (as on 01 April 2019) (*)  1,796.46 
Additions  528.19 
Disposals  -   
As at 31 March 2020  2,324.65 
Additions (*)  399.38 
Disposals  -   
As at 31 March 2021  2,724.03 
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2019
Charge for the year  656.88 
Adjustments for disposals  -   
As at 31 March 2020  656.88 
Charge for the year  755.21 
Adjustments for disposals  -   
As at 31 March 2021  1,412.09 
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2020  1,667.76 
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2021  1,311.94 

(*) Right of use assets are recognised as on 01 April 2019 on adoption of Ind AS 116 using modified retrospective approach.		
The following are the expense recognised in the statement of profit & loss.	

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 755.21 656.88

Interest expense on lease liabilities 99.45 108.57

Expense relating to short-term leases  720.22  631.92 

Total amount recognised in profit & loss  1,574.88  1,397.37 
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 As at 
 31 March 2021 

 As at 
 31 March 2020 

6 Investments
Non-current

A. Quoted Investments
Investments in Equity shares at fair value through OCI (fully paid)
M/s J K Tyre Industries Limited  358.67  133.17 
329,060 (31 March 2020: 329,060) fully paid equity shares of INR 2 
each
M/s Bengal & Assam Co Limited  52.63  45.08 
3,831 (31 March 2020: 3,831) fully paid equity shares of INR 10 
each
Total Aggregate Quoted Investments (a)  411.30  178.25 
Aggregate Book value of quoted investments  411.30  178.25 
Aggregate market value of quoted investments  411.30  178.25 

B. Un-quoted Investments
 Associates at cost 

M/s K T Apartment Owners' Association
35 (31 March 2020: 35) fully paid equity shares of INR 100 each  0.04  0.04 
M/s K T Mansions Appartments Owners' Association:
25 (31 March 2020: 25) fully paid equity shares of INR 100 each  0.03  0.03 
Others- At fair value through OCI

M/s.Hassan Mangalore Rail Development Company Limited  2,372.72  2,372.72 
7,000,000 (31 March 2020: 7,000,000) fully paid equity shares of 
INR 100 each

The Karnataka State Co-operative Apex Bank Limited - One -C- 
Class Ordinary Share:

 24.66  24.66 

1 (31 March 2020: 1) fully paid equity shares of INR 1,000,000 each

Total aggregate of un-quoted Investments (b)  2,397.45  2,397.45 
Total (a+b)  2,808.76  2,575.71 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof  411.30  178.25 
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  2,397.45  2,397.45 
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7. Other Financial assets
 As at 

 31 March 2021 
 As at 

 31 March 2021 
 As at 

 31 March 2020 
 As at 

 31 March 2020 
 Non-Current  Current  Non-Current  Current 

At Amortized Cost
a) Loans and advances to employees
     (i)  Secured and Considered good  -    0.66  -    1.46 
     (ii)  Unsecured and Considered good  2.48  5.86  3.76  5.77 
     (iii) Considered doubtful  -    -    -    -   
b) Loans and advances - Chit operations
     (i)  Secured and Considered good  -    16,301.85  -    14,778.90 
     (ii)  Unsecured and Considered good  -    604.90  -    355.70 
     (iii) Considered doubtful  198.70  522.05  146.25  338.01 
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances  (198.70)  (522.05)  (146.25)  (338.01)
c) Other advances recoverable in kind or for 
value to be received
     (i)  Secured and Considered good  -    -    -    -   
     (ii)  Unsecured and Considered good  -    3,004.02  1.96  3,846.52 
     (iii) Considered doubtful  -    487.57  -    -   
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances  -    (487.57)  -    -   
d) Security Deposit (*)
     (i)  Secured and Considered good  -    -    -    -   
     (ii)  Unsecured and Considered good  104.30  1,103.21  42.40  1,183.83 
     (iii) Considered doubtful  -    -    -    -   
e) Other receivable  -    66.06  8.22  31.48 

Total  106.78  21,086.56  56.34  20,203.66 

Wholly Owned subsidiary- Marketing Communication and Advertising Ltd
(*) Inludes Margin Money Deposits in Bank of Baroda and Punjab National Bank against guarantees having a 
maturity period of more than 12 months of Rs 101.25 lakhs (Previous year 31st March 2020 Rs 41.22 lakhs) as 
on balance sheet date has been grouped under other non current financial asset. 

(*) Includes Margin Money Deposits in  Punjab National Bank of Rs 0.04 lakhs is against locker held.
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8.Other assets
 As at 

 31 March 2021 
 As at 

 31 March 2021 
 As at 

 31 March 2020 
 As at 

 31 March 2020 
 Non-Current  Current  Non-Current  Current 

Prepaid Expenses  -    1,054.93  -    960.43 
Balance with statutory authorities  10.30  794.18  10.30  565.65 
Advance Income Tax and TDS  511.40  2,399.22  654.80  2,963.13 
Other Receivables  643.38  -    615.97  -   
Gratuity Fund account  95.58  -    91.63  -   
Rebate/Discount receivable on 
volume of business 

 -    36.87  -    60.68 

Trade Advances & Other 
Receivables

 -    327.75  -    1,427.96 

Unbilled Revenue  -    135.45  -    107.30 
Total  1,260.66  4,748.40  1,372.70  6,085.15 

Wholly Owned subsidiary- Marketing Communication and Advertising Ltd	

The Company filed a case [O.S.No.8758 of 1996] against erstwhile employees Mr.S.M Pasha and  Mr.ANM 
Rao for the recovery of misappropriated amount in the financial year 1995-96 for Rs.28.11 lakhs before City 
Civil Court, Bangalore. The recovery case was disposed on 09-July-2013. The Court decreed the suit with 
cost against Mr.S.M.Pasha and dismissed the suit against Mr.ANM Rao. The Company sought opinion from 
an advocate. The advocate opined that there are some grounds in the case to challenge the judgement. 
Accordingly an appeal no. 236/2014 has filed and the same is pending before Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka 
for disposal. During the year 1995-96, the disputed amount have been shown as receivables and payables as 
misappropriation in the accounts of the Company and in the year 1996-97 an amount of Rs. 25.00 lakhs has 
been paid to the excise department and  receivables has been charged to Statement of Profit and Loss as bad 
debts. In the year 2008-09, misappropriated amount of Rs. 27.12 lakhs  has been shown as receivables and 
payables as misappropriation in the accounts of the Company. Due to contingency the receivables and payables 
has been adjusted and the contingent asset of Rs. 28.11 lakhs will be recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 
on realisation basis.				  

Income tax refund are outstanding for more than 4 years amounting to Rs 122.06 lakhs [2020: Rs. 122.06 lakhs]  
and the Company is laisioning with the department. 				  

The VAT Credit receivable includes VAT refund of Rs. 10.30 lakhs with respect to VAT paid to de-registered 
dealer/Vendor and the same is applied as refund from the VAT department on 05-Mar-2015.

Others include Rebate/Discount receivable on volume of business done with news paper publications have 
been shown as target incentive of Rs 62.05 Lakhs				  

A sum of Rs 301.05 lakhs (Previous Year 31st March 2020 Rs 117.82 Lakhs) is shown as GST Receviable for 
which reconciliation is pending.				  

GST TDS deducted by service recipients ,as per section 51 of CGST Act, 2017, amounting to Rs 11.68 Lakhs 
(Previous year 31st March 2020, Rs. 82.06 lakhs ) has not  been credited in GST electronic cash ledger as on 
balance sheet date. But in the books it has been accounted as receivable. Reconciliation for the same has not 
been done for the year ended 31st March 2021.
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9. Inventories  As at 
 31 March 2021 

 As at 
 31 March 2020 

Raw Materials
   Paper and Straw board  55.45  55.97 
   Convertors  248.28  36.34 
Finished goods  1,114.92  8,196.21 
Stock in trade (acquired for trading) -Traded Goods 12311.76 1196.21
Less: Provision for Expired/Damaged Stock- awaiting regulatory approval  (23.03)  (17.88)
Less: Provision for Non moving stock  (727.71)  (114.19)
Stock with hirers  303.75  310.50 
Less: Expected Credit Loss for stock with hirers  (303.75)  (310.50)

Total  12,979.67  9,194.42 

10. Trade Receivables  As at 
31 March 2021

 As at 
31 March 2020

Secured, Considered good  8.57  6.25 
Unsecured, Considered good  12,942.68  19,088.98 
Unsecured, Considered doubtful  3,547.90  2,625.96 

 16,499.15  21,721.19 
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Unsecured, Considered doubtful  (3,547.90)  (2,625.96)

 12,951.25  19,095.23 

Inventories have been written-down to the net realisable value and the resultant loss of  Rs 500 lakhs in respect 
of sand (PY: Nil), Rs 169.48 lakhs for paper products (PY: Rs 87.09 lakhs) and Rs 58.23 lakhs (PY: Nil) in respect 
of pharmaceutical products has been recognized in books of account.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 30 days.

Wholly Owned subsidiary- Marketing Communication and Advertising Ltd
Balances in the Trade Receivables are subject to reconciliation and confirmation.

Trade Receivables includes Rs. 24.48 lakhs (Previous Year 31st March 2020: Rs. 24.48 lakhs) due  from  M/s.  
Cyber Expo  and  Rs. 32.22 lakhs (Previous Year 31st March 2020: Rs. 32.22- lakhs) due from Bangalore I.T 
Com against whom a recovery suit was filed and the same is disposed as dismissed on 29-Nov-2014. The 
Company has sought opinion from three advocates regarding filing an appeal before Hon’ble High Court of 
Karnataka against the Judgment  and decree passed [OS No. 134/2007]. The advocates have opined that there 
is   no  good case to file an appeal. The matter was discussed in the 240th Board Meeting held on 26-Jun-2015 
and the Board advised the Managing Director to refer the matter to High Power Committee constituted under 
the Chairmanship of ACS to Govt. Accordingly, directions have been sought from the Commerce & Industries 
Department to refer the matter to High Power Committee and directions from department is awaited.

On 22.05.2019  a meeting was held under the Chairmanship of Principal Secretary, Commerce and Industries 
Department to discuss on the matter in the presence of Managing Director of the Company and General 
Manager- Department of Information Technology and Bio Technology(ITBT).After brief discussion, the Deputy 
Secretary, Commerce and Industries Department informed the Chairman that the High Power Committee is 
not in existence and therefore, the matter could not be referred to the said committee. The Managing director, 
MC&A informed the Chairman that he discussed over phone with the Director, ITBT and he mentioned that the 
Director, ITBT would pay the outstanding amount if relevant documents are provided as it is already discussed 
by the Committee on Public Sector Undertakings. Accordingly, the Chairman instructed the Managing Director 
to take further action. On 13.08.2019, a letter has been sent to the Director, ITBT to take further action and reply 
is awaited.
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11. Cash and cash equivalents  As at 
 31 March 2021

 As at 
 31 March 2020

Balances with banks
     In current accounts  11,092.98  7,003.68 
Deposits with original maturity less than three months  -    -   
Remittances in transit  9.15  291.20 
Cash on hand  695.78  1,394.49 

 11,797.91  8,689.37 

12 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents  As at 
 31 March 2021

 As at 
 31 March 2020

Deposits with maturity less than 12 months  16,430.84  12,331.61 
Interest Accrued on Bank Deposits  941.42  1,245.35 
Balances with banks in earmarked accounts
      - In margin money accounts for Bank Guarantee issued  8,178.59  8,844.55 

 25,550.85  22,421.51 

Trade Receivables include Rs.941.29 lakhs (Previous year 31st March 2020, Rs.893.58 lakhs) which are 
received through RTGS directly to Company’s bank account for which no information is available as on Balance 
Sheet date. Accordingly the Company is not in a position to analyse the Trade Receivables ageing schedule 
appropriately.

Allowances for Doubtful Receivables :- The management has estimated the Trade Receivables outstanding 
for a period more than three years from the date they are due for payment  which are considered doubtful and 
provided for. The allowances of  Rs.2734.29 lakhs (Previous year 31st March 2020, Rs. 1500.21 lakhs) has been 
made in books of account.

Bank Balances given on lien as at 31 March 2021 is Rs 4719.05 lakhs (31 March 2020 :Rs 5789.90 lakhs)
Statutory deposit for chit operations as at 31 March 2021 is Rs. 3459.54 lakhs (31 March 2020 : Rs 3054.65 
lakhs) 

13

Equity share capital  As at 
31 March 2021

 As at 
31 March 2020

Authorized shares  Number  Amount  Number  Amount 
Equity share capital of face value of Rs. 100 each
Equity shares of Rs. 100 each  7,500,000  7,500.00  7,500,000  7,500.00 

 7,500,000  7,500.00  7,500,000  7,500.00 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares
Equity shares of Rs. 100 each  4,273,477  4,273.48  4,273,477  4,273.48 

 4,273,477  4,273.48  4,273,477  4,273.48 
a. Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Equity shares
Balance at the beginning of the year  4,273,477  4,273.48  4,273,477  4,273.48 
Changes during the year  -    -    -    -   
Balance at the end of the year  4,273,477  4,273.48  4,273,477  4,273.48 
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b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has one class of equity share having a par value of Rs.100 per share. Each holder of 
equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend when proposed by the Board of Directors is 
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General meeting. Repayment of capital 
on liquidation will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

c. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Name of the equity shareholder
 31 March 2021  31 March 2020 

 Number  % 
holding  Number  % 

holding 
Government of Karnataka  22,55,817 52.79%  22,55,817 52.79%
Karnataka State Industrial Infrastructure & 
Development  Coproration Limited 

 20,17,660 47.21%  20,17,660 47.21%

d. Aggregate number of bonus shares issued and shares issued for consideration other than cash 
during the year of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:
The Company has not issued any bonus shares nor there has been any buy back of shares during five 
years immediately preceding 31 March 2021.

e. Shares reserved for issue under options and contracts or commitments for the sale of shares or 
disinvestment, including the terms and amounts:	
The Company has not issued any equity shares under  ESOP (Employee Stock Option) 
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14 Other equity  As at 
 31 March 2020 

 As at 
 31 March 2019 

General reserve  23,021.54  22,096.11 

Retained earnings  33,621.97  28,929.48 
Capital Reserve  77.98  77.98 
Other comprehensive income  (616.06)  (817.32)
Share Application Money Pending Allotment  (Refer Note b)  345.74  345.74 

Total  56,451.17  50,631.99 
Non-Controlling Interest  (37.51)  (37.64)

Nature of reserves
(a) General reserve

The General reserve is created by  appropration from retained earnings. As the General reserve is 
created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive 
income, items included in the General reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit 
and loss.

(b) Wholly Owned Subsidiary - Marketing Communication and Advertising Ltd
As per the provisions of Companies Act 2013, Share application money should be allotted to the 
respective shareholders within 60 days from the date of receipt  otherwise the same should be returned 
to them within 15 days. The share application money pending allotment represents 8% of turnover for the 
years 2002-2003 & 2003-2004 aggregating to Rs.345.74 lakhs Government Order No. C18  CMI  2003  
(PUC), Bangalore dated 31-Mar-2003 & 29-Apr-2004 directs  to issue of  Equity Shares to Government 
of Karnataka (GOK)  for this amount. The Company in this regard has made a representation to the GOK 
towards paying 10% Net profit to Govt. in lieu of shares and to drop the proposal of payment of Business 
Development Cost [BDC] @ 8% turnover from 2002-03 & 2003-04. The matter is pending before GOK 
& orders in this regard is awaited. The Company has sent proposal to GOK requesting to reconsider the 
earlier orders and withdraw the orders on BDC. The response from GOK is awaited.

15 Borrowings  As at 
 31 March 2021 

 As at 
 31 March 2020 

Non-current
Secured
  Loan from Government of Karnataka  3.02  3.02 
  Interest Accrued & due on above  9.62  9.62 
 Unsecured
 Loan from Karnataka Industrial Infrastructure & Development 
Corporation Limited

 28.56  28.56 

  Loan from Government of Karnataka  9.00  9.00 
  Interest Accrued & due on above loans  124.36  124.36 

 174.56  174.56 
Current - -

Total Borrowings  174.56  174.56 
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16 Other Financial liabilities
 As at 

 31 March 2021 
 As at 

 31 March 2021 
 As at 

 31 March 2020 
 As at 

 31 March 2020 
At Amortised Cost  Non-Current  Current  Non-Current  Current 
Security Deposit (Unsecured 
considered good) 
Unsecured and Considered good  1,145.94  394.98  975.38  765.89 
Deferred income on above 
deposits 

 -    -    40.42  -   

Interest Accrued  53.88  -    53.88  -   
Lease liability  666.18  731.08  957.57  766.17 
Creditors for Capital Goods  -    2.40  -    0.33 
Other payables  978.38  17,459.13  978.38  14,316.76 

 Total  2,844.38  18,587.59  3,005.63  15,849.15 

For Subsidiary-Mysore Chrome Tanning Company Limited
The Company received a sum of Rs. 4,00,000/- in 1974-75 to set up a Raw Materials Depot and a Development 
loan of Rs. 5,00,000/- in 1975-76 from Government of Karnataka. No orders have been received from the 
government specifying the terms and conditions for the said amounts. However, interest at the rate of 12% p.a. 
has been provided in the accounts up to 31.03.1999. The Company has not set up the Raw Materials Depot.

As per the records, the company has defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions as per the details 
given below:				  

Name of the Financial Institution Amount of Default Period of Default 
Karnataka State Industrial Investment   
Development Corporation

Principal Rs 28,56,250
Interest Rs 73,35,270 Since 1981

For Subsidiary-Mysore Chrome Tanning Company Limited
The State Government in principle has permitted the Sale of land belonging to the Company to KSRTC. As a first 
step, the Company sold 2 acres and 20 guntas of land for a consideration of Rs. 2,77,78,000/- and has entered 
into an agreement for sale of 5 acres and 20 guntas of land for a consideration of Rs. 7,22,22,000/-. The sum 
paid by KSRTC, net of expenses, stands at Rs. 7,21,33,041/- as advance consideration and the same has been 
considered under other liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

Rs. 10,00,000/- received from Government of Karnataka during the year 1985- 86 under Special Component 
Plan has been shown under current liabilities, as the Government has not specified any repayment terms thereto. 
No interest provision has been made on the same.
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18 Other liabilities  As at 31 
March 2021

 As at 31 
March 2021

 As at 
 31 March 2020 

 As at 
 31 March 2020 

 Non-current  Current  Non-current  Current 
Statutory remittances  3,677.56  529.68  3,677.56  702.62 
Others  -    94.10  -    98.65 
Employee Benefits payable  -    18.96  -    90.23 
Advances from Customers  -    169.55  -    141.37 

Total  3,677.56  812.29  3,677.56  1,032.87 

Wholly Owned subsidiary- Marketing Communication and Advertising Ltd

Service Tax dues of Rs.36.72 lakhs related to the bills raised prior to 01-Apr-2011 but not received, as  the 
company has followed cash basis for discharging the service tax liability till the effective date of applicability of 
Point of taxation rules. The management estimates that interest amount for non payment of service tax is NIL 
and no further provision for interest is made to that extent.				  

The Company receives interest free deposit from vendors/business associates for getting empanelled as vendors 
and the same is refunded when the business relationship is terminated immediately due to non-performance or 
any other issues which may arise. These vendors/business associates are intended to be kept only for a period 
of less than 12 months and annually re-evaluated.

The Company receives interest free deposit from vendors for tenders and the same is refunded when the service 
is provided.  These vendors for tenders are intended to be kept only for a period of less than 12 months.

Other liabilities are intended to be settled within a period of less than 12 months.

Advance received from customers for services to be rendered within a period of less than 12 months.

17 Provisions
 As at 31 

March 2021
 As at 31 

March 2021
 As at 

 31 March 2020 
 As at 

 31 March 2020 
 Non-current  Current  Non-current  Current 

Provision for Gratuity  6.24  8.31  9.68  6.08 
Provision for Leave Encashment 
(Net)

 644.94  254.61  616.14  206.13 

Provision for Employee Death 
Relief Fund

 16.03  82.15  88.33  5.24 

Provision for Insurance Claim - 
Other payables

 363.93  -    351.09  -   

Provision - Others  550.60  -    399.70  0.25 
Total  1,581.74  345.07  1,464.94  217.70 

Movement in Provisions for the year 2020-21
Opening Balance  1,682.64 
Additions during the year  245.38 
Deletions/ Utilisation  (1.21)
Closing Balance  1,926.81 
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19 Trade payables  As at 
 31 March 2021 

 As at 
 31 March 2020 

Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  14.03  39.09 
Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

 17,072.00  20,826.32 

Total  17,086.03  20,865.41 

 Year ended 
 31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
 31 March 2020 

20 Revenue from Operations
Sales 
Liquor  2,38,613.00  1,90,744.30 
Note Books & Stationery  6,926.00  6,866.42 
Pharmaceutical  908.00  1,194.30 
Others  2,976.00  1,838.48 
Income Earned on Chit Fund Business 
Foreman’s Commission  1,297.71  1,224.01 
Dividend  138.05  116.91 
Default Interest  178.54  139.16 
Commission and service charges  23.73  4.64 
Revenue from Wholly Owned Subsidiary
Revenue from Excise Adhesive Labels  10,172.13  9,264.45 
Revenue from Services
i) Media Advertisements  5,792.75  8,717.08 
ii) Event Organising & Others  3,117.97  6,377.29 
iii) Revenue from Production  4,302.04  2,472.14 
Revenue from Other operating activities*  68.05  48.94 

 2,74,513.97  2,29,008.12 

Wholly Owned subsidiary- Marketing Communication and Advertising Ltd	
*Rebate/Discount received on volume of business done with news paper publications have been shown as 
target incentive.				 

Revenue from Production, amounting to Rs.2,472.14 lacs for the FY 2019-20, was shown as revenue from 
Media Advertisements, Event Organising and Others and Revenue from Other operating activities Rs.1,521.42 
Lacs,  Rs.890.07 Lacs and  Rs.60.66 Lacs. respectively.	
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21 Other Income  Year ended 
 31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
 31 March 2020 

Interest on :-
        Deposits & advances- Gross  105.27  68.02 
         Bank Deposits - Gross  1,280.73  1,511.23 
 Rent  (^)  663.16  426.55 
 Dividend  2.30  6.49 
 Provision for doubtful debts no longer required  577.03  262.41 
 Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment  3.79  0.66 
 Sale of Tender Forms  -    0.09 
 Foreign exchange fluctuation  -    -   
 Miscellaneous income*  811.10  254.11 
 Leave Encashment Defined Benefit Cost  -    1.57 

 3,443.38  2,531.13 
 (^) includes rent realised amounting to Rs. 249.76 lakhs. 

Wholly Owned subsidiary- Marketing Communication and Advertising Ltd
*Reversal of Provision for Bills payable which was accounted as expenditure earlier, subsequently 
reversed after taking Input under GST for the year 2017-18 and 2018-19 amounting to Rs NIL (Previous 
year 31st March 2020  Rs. 5.97 lakhs) 
*Amount payable to DIC wrongly accounted and allowed as expenditure in the financial year 2015-2016, 
now reversed and accounted as income amounting to Rs NIL (Previous year 31st March 2020  Rs. 5.50 
lakhs)

22 Cost of materials consumed
Inventories at the beginning of the year  92.31  417.74 
Purchases during the year  1,441.86  975.25 
Less: Inventories at the end of the year  303.73  92.31 

 1,230.44  1,300.68 
23 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Liquor  2,20,997.29  1,74,358.91 
Notebooks and  Stationery  4,426.79  3,815.91 
Pharmaceutical  781.90  975.48 
Others  2,824.68  1,531.60 
Cost of Excise Labels  9,029.51  7,473.04 

 2,38,060.17  1,88,154.94 
24 Cost of Services 

 -Media Advertisements  4,986.71  13,668.96 
 -Event Organising & Others  2,863.92  2,187.94 
 -Production  4,028.33  -   

 11,878.96  15,856.90 
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25 Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock-in-trade  Year ended 
 31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
 31 March 2020 

Inventories at the end of the year
     Traded goods  11,561.02  8,178.33 
     Finished goods  1,114.92  923.79 

 12,675.94  9,102.12 
Inventories at the beginning of the year
     Traded goods  8,178.33  7,168.72 
     Finished goods  923.79  1,453.25 

 9,102.12  8,621.97 
 (3,573.82)  (480.15)

26 Employee Benefits Expenses
Salaries & Wages  1,980.72  2,212.11 
Contribution to Provident & Other funds  260.02  224.45 
Compensated Absences (Refer note 36)  250.50  75.73 
Gratuity (Refer note 36)  38.88  44.92 
Staff Welfare Expenses  224.37  198.64 

 2,754.49  2,755.85 

27 Finance Costs
Interest   1.30  0.33 
Interest on lease liabilities  99.45  108.57 
Bank charges  60.34  111.17 
Guarantee Commission  1.99  8.41 
Interest on taxes   -    1.46 

 163.08  229.94 

28 Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation on Fixed Assets (Refer Note 2)  892.08  749.01 
Amortization of intangible assets (Refer note 5)  7.47  7.09 
Depreciation on Investment Properties (Refer note 4)  119.87  115.61 
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (Refer note 5A)  755.21  656.88 

 1,774.62  1,528.59 
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29 Other Expenses
 Conversion charges - Notebooks  183.64  159.21 
 Packing Material & Secondary Freight  1,177.59  1,021.76 
 Outsourcing expense  6,572.43  5,989.24 
 Rent   720.22  631.92 
 Repairs & Maintenance : 
    - Buildings  67.88  90.04 
    - Vehicle   40.34  25.38 
    - Others  283.66  348.18 
 Insurance  195.06  143.38 
 Rates and taxes  4,550.82  4,288.20 
 Advertising and sales promotion  104.77  140.46 
 Communication costs  107.85  108.38 
 Printing and stationery  183.92  147.02 
 Legal and professional fees  530.38  548.43 
 Travelling and conveyance  163.40  154.23 
 Electricity & Water  177.61  190.84 
 Security Services  80.41  85.58 
 Commission   315.57  366.49 
 CSR expenditure   92.00  240.45 
 Sales Discount  19.73  32.78 
 Business Promotion and Development Expenses   9.98  24.05 
 Donations  202.25  104.74 
 Directors Sitting fees  2.64  0.60 
 Bad & Doubtful Debts  4.40  74.34 
 Allowances for doubtful debts and advances  1,951.82  315.84 
 Impairment of DIGITAL FLEX PRINTING MACHINE  3.81  -   
Impairment losses in value of other financial assets  236.48  200.80 
 Remuneration to Chairman  3.07  -   
 Miscellaneous Expenses  225.99  180.95 

 18,207.72  15,613.29 

30. Tax expense
Tax expense comprises of:
Profit or loss section
Current tax  2,570.33  1,903.78 
Deferred tax  (979.27)  594.79 
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods  28.87  31.31 
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss  1,619.93  2,529.88 
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Deferred tax  As at 
31 March 2021

 As at 
31 March 2020

Deferred tax assets  1,991.94  828.77 
Deferred tax Liablities  (314.15)  (119.27)
Deferred tax assets,net  1,677.79  709.50 
Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which the deductible temporary differences and carried forward tax losses can be utilised.
Current tax liabilities
Provision for income tax, net of advance tax  -    0.73 

 -    0.73 

31. Discontinuing Operations  Year ended 
 31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
 31 March 2020 

A The company has  discontinued its HP operations on July 2008, which was also a separate segment 
as per AS-17, Segment Reporting. The company accounts interest income from HP operations on cash 
basis. The scheduled EMI periods terminated in 2013-14. The results of HP operations for the year are 
presented below
Other income  7.64  24.23 
Expenses  17.51  35.44 
Profit/(Loss) before tax from discontinuing operations  (9.87)  (11.21)
Tax expense on discontinuing operations  -    -   
Profit/(Loss) for the year from discontinuing operations  (9.87)  (11.21)
There are no assets and liabilities related to HP operations as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

32  Asset held for Sale
A Investment in equity shares				  

The Government of Karnataka, vide its order no AHD 172 AFT 2010 dated 5 March 2011, had advised the 
company to transfer the Investment made in M/s Food Karnataka Limied to Karnataka State Agricultural 
Produce Processing and Export Corporation (Corporation) which was also approved in the Board Meeting 
of the company held on 30 June 2011. This is classified as an FVTOCI financial asset and carried at fair 
value through OCI. The Company did not pledge the financial asset nor received any collateral for it. 
The parties to the transaction are in the process of finalising the consideration as at 31 March 2021.
Unquoted - fully paid
Associate
Food Karnataka Limited
50,000 (31 March 2020: 50,000) fully paid equity shares of INR 10 
each and Share in Reserves

 441.15  441.33 

 441.15  441.33 
Liabilities associated with the sale

B Digi Flex Printing Machine
The wholly owned subsidiary  has classified Digi Flex Printing Machine as ‘asset held for sale’ during 
the year 2020-21.	
Asset held for sale 3.55  -   

 3.55  -   
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33 Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gain/(loss) on FVTOCI financial assets  233.05  180.09 
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans  (20.81)  (64.03)

 212.24  116.06 
34 Earnings Per Share

Profit attributable to equity holders of the company
Continuing operations  5,841.76  4,049.33 
Discontinued operation  (9.87)  (11.21)
Total  5,831.89  4,038.12 

No of shares used for Basic and diluted EPS  42,73,477  42,73,477 

Earnings per share for continuing operations
Basic (Rs.)  136.70  94.75 
Diluted (Rs.)  136.70  94.75 

Earnings per share for discontinued operations
Basic (Rs.)  (0.23)  (0.26)
Diluted (Rs.)  (0.23)  (0.26)

Earnings per share for continuing and discontinued operations
Basic (Rs.)  136.47  94.49 
Diluted (Rs.)  136.47  94.49 

35 Dividend paid 
Cash dividends on equity shares paid:
Dividend  213.67  213.67 
Tax on distribution of dividend  -    54.94 
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36 Employee benefits
i. Disclosure of Employee Benefits as per Ind AS 19

 Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2021 

As at  
March 31, 2020 

 Holding Company - (net asset)   (95.57)  (91.62)
 Subsidiary Company - net liability  14.54  15.76 
 Total Gratuity Liability - (net asset) /net liability  (81.03)  (75.87)
 Non-current  6.24  9.68 
 Current  8.31  6.08 
 Total Gratuity Liability   14.55  15.76 

 Liability for Compensated Absences  899.54  822.27 
 Liability for Death Relief fund (DRF)  98.18  93.57 
 Employee benefit liabilities - Comp Absences & DRF  997.72  915.84 
 Non-current  660.96  635.14 
 Current  336.77  280.71 

 997.73  915.85 

 ii. Amount recognized in Balance Sheet 

 Particulars 
 Gratuity - Defined 

benefit plan 

Compensated 
absences- 

Defined contribution 
plan 

 Death relief 
fund - defined 

contribution plan 

 2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20 
Present Value of Obligation at the 
end of the year 

 1,354.84  1,497.18  899.54  822.27  98.18  93.57 

Fair Value of Plan Assets the end of 
the year 

 1,435.86  1,573.05  -  -  -  - 

Funded Status  (81.02)  (75.87)  899.54  822.27  -  - 
Liability recognized in Balance 
Sheet (as per actuarial valuation) 

 (81.02)  (75.87)  899.54  822.27  98.18  93.57 
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 iii. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit liability-Change in Present Value of Obligation 	

 Particulars 
 Gratuity - Defined benefit 

plan 
Compensated absences- 
Defined contribution plan 

 Death relief fund - 
defined contribution plan 

 2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20 
Present Value of Obligation at the 
beginning of the year 

 1,497.18  1,655.80  822.27  965.33  93.57  87.74 

Interest Cost  81.56  89.88  44.93  52.57  5.34  5.08 
Current service cost  44.92  46.08  101.28  91.95  7.10  6.76 
Prior service Cost  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Benefits paid  (302.81)  (375.28)  (169.82)  (213.04)  (10.03)  (8.77)
Remeasurement of obligation   -  -  110.63  (64.53)  -  - 
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligation  
recognised in the statement of 
Other Comprehensive Income 

 33.99  80.70  (9.75)  (10.01)  2.20  2.76 

Balance as at the end of the 
year 

 1,354.84  1,497.18  899.54  822.27  98.18  93.57 

iv. Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets 

 Particulars 
 Gratuity - Defined benefit 

plan 
Compensated absences- 
Defined contribution plan 

 Death relief fund - 
defined contribution plan 

 2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20 
Fair Value of Plan Assets the 
beginning of the year 

 1,573.05  1,543.63  -  -  - 

Interest Cost  9.13  8.91  -  - 
Employer Contribution  64.36  294.43  -  -  -  - 
Benefits paid  (302.82)  (375.26)  -  -  -  - 
Return on plan assets excluding 
actual return on plan assets 

 78.95  83.05  -  -  -  - 

Actuarial gain /(loss) on obligation   13.19  18.29  - 
Balance as at the end of the year  1,435.86  1,573.05  -  -  -  - 

v. Expense recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss 

 Particulars 
 Gratuity - Defined benefit 

plan 
Compensated absences- 
Defined contribution plan 

 Death relief fund - 
defined contribution plan 

 2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20 
Current service cost  44.92  46.08  101.28  91.95  7.10  6.76 
Past service cost  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Remeasurement of obligation   -  -  110.63  (74.54)  -  - 
Net Interest on Net Defined Benefit 
Obligations 

 (6.53)  (2.09)  44.93  52.57  5.34  5.08 

Expense recognised in Statement of 
Profit & Loss before tax 

 38.39  43.99  256.84  69.98  12.44  11.84 
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36 Employee benefits (contd.)
vi.   Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 

 Particulars  Gratuity - Defined 
benefit plan 

 Compensated absences-
Defined contribution plan 

 Death relief fund - 
defined contribution plan 

 2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20 
Actuarial loss/ (gain) on obligation  20.81  62.41 
Actuarial loss/ (gain) on obligation on non funded obligations are not recognised in the books of accounts. 
vii.  Assets 
The gratuity assets are managed by LIC of India. 

viii. Assumptions
 With the objective of presenting the plan assets and plan liabilities of the defined benefits plans and post 
retirement benefits at their fair value on the balance sheet, assumptions under Ind AS 19 are set by reference to 
market conditions at the valuation date. The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:
 Mysore Sales International 

 Particulars 
 Gratuity - Defined benefit 

plan 
 Compensated absences-
Defined contribution plan 

 Death relief fund - defined 
contribution plan 

 2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20  2020-21  2019-20 
Discount Rate 6.03% 6.09% 6.03% 6.09% 6.03% 6.09%
Salary Escalation Rate 5.75% 4.00% 5.75% 4.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Attrition Rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 1.00% 1.00%

 Marketing Communication & Advertising Limited  

 Particulars 
 Gratuity - Defined benefit plan 

 2020-21  2019-20 
Attrition Rate 5.00% 5.00%
Discount Rate 6.32% 6.00%
Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels 6.00% 6.00%

ix.  Sensitivity Analysis

 Particulars 
As at  

March 31, 2021
As at  

March 31, 2020
 Increase  Decrease  Increase  Decrease 

Defined Benefit Obligations - Gratuity
Discount Rate (100 bps  movement)  (27.92)  29.83  (33.31)  35.43 
Salary escalation rate (100 bps movement)  26.87  (26.49)  34.41  (33.23)
Attrition Rate (100 bps movement)  (1.11)  1.17  0.71  (0.74)
Compensated absences(Increase)/decrease in 
Defined Benefit Obligations - Leave Salary
Discount Rate (100 bps  movement)  (34.68)  37.48  (29.80)  32.14 
Salary escalation rate (100 bps movement)  35.12  (33.11)  30.65  (28.93)
Attrition Rate (100 bps movement)  (1.47)  1.55  1.01  (1.08)
Death Relief Fund (Increase)/decrease in Defined 
Benefit Obligations
Discount Rate (100 bps  movement)  (1.98)  2.11  (2.12)  2.26 
Salary escalation rate (100 bps movement)  2.33  (2.24)  2.46  (2.39)
Attrition Rate (100 bps movement)  0.39  (0.41)  0.43  (0.45)
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Description of risk exposures

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions which may vary over time. Thus, 
the Group and Associate are exposed to various risks in providing the above benefit which are as follows:

Interest rate risk The plan exposes the Group and Associate to the risk of fall in 
interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the 
ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an 
increase in the value of liability (as shown in financial statements).

Liquidity risk This is the risk that the Group and Associate are not able to meet 
the short term benefit payouts. This may arise due to non availability 
of enough cash/cash equivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of 
illiquid assets not being sold in time.

Salary escalation risk The present value of the above benefit plan is calculated with 
the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in 
future. Deviation in the rate of increase in salary in future for plan 
participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine 
the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan’s 
liability.		

Demographic risk The Group and Associate has used certain mortality and attrition 
assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Group and Associate 
is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse 
compared to the assumption.	

Regulatory risk: Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the 
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended from time to time). 
There is a risk of change in regulations requiring higher gratuity 
payouts (for example, increase in the maximum liability of gratuity 
to INR 20 lakhs).

Investment risk The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the 
expected return on any particular investment.

Asset liability mismatching or market risk The duration of the liability is longer compared to duration of assets 
exposing the Group and Associate to market risks for volatilities/fall 
in interest rate.
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37. Capital management
The Group and Associate’s capital management is intended to maximise the return to shareholders for 
meeting the long and short term objectives of the Group and Associate through the leveraging of the debt 
and equity balance
The Group and Associate’s determine the amount of capital required on the basis of annual and long-term 
operating plans and strategic investment plans. The funding requirements will be met through long and 
short term borrowings. The capital structure on the basis of debt to equity ratio and the maturity of the 
overall debt is monitored as part of Capital management strategy.
The following table summarises the net debt to capital ratio:

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Total equity  60,687.14  54,867.83 
Debt  174.56  174.56 
Cash equivalents including other bank balances  37,348.76  31,110.88 
Net debt  174.56  174.56 
Total capital (Equity + Net debt)  60,861.70  55,042.39 
Net debt to capital ratio - -
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years 
ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

38 Financial risk management
The Group and Associate’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This note 
explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the 
related impact in the financial statements. 	

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement
Credit risk Other bank balances, trade receivables, 

investment carried at amortised cost, 
loans, other financial assets and 
financial guarantees	

Ageing analysis 
and recoverability 
assessment	

Liquidity risk Other financial liabilities & collaterals 
taken as security

Rolling cash flow forecasts

Market risk – foreign 
exchange

Recognised financial assets and 
liabilities not denominated in INR

Sensitivity analysis

Market risk – security prices Investment in equity securities Sensitivity analysis

i Credit risk	 			 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss 
to the business of the Group and Associate. The Group and Associate is exposed to credit risk from its operating 
activities (predominantly trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and 
financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Credit risk management

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group and Associate’s established policy, 
procedures and control relating to the customer credit risk management. The Group and Associate uses financial 
information and past experience to evaluate credit quality of majority of its customers and individual credit limits 
are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding receivables and the credit worthiness of its counter 
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parties are periodically monitored and taken up on case to case basis.  There is no material expected credit loss 
based on the past experience. However, the Group and Associate assesses the impairment of trade receivables 
on case to case basis and has accordingly created loss allowance.				  

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited because the counter parties are banks with high credit 
ratings assigned by accredited rating agencies.				  

The credit risk of the financial assets is managed based on the following categories arrived on the basis of 
assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets.

Classification of financial assets under various stages

The financial assets are classified in three stages having the following characteristics:	

Stage 1: unimpaired and without significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition on which a 12-month 
allowance for ECL is recognised;			 

Stage 2: a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition on which a lifetime ECL is recognised; and

Stage 3: objective evidence of impairment, and are therefore considered to be in default or otherwise credit 
impaired on which a lifetime ECL is recognised.	

All financial assets are deemed to have suffered a significant increase in credit risk when they are 30 days 
past due (DPD) or one instalment is overdue on the reporting date and are accordingly transferred from stage 
1 to stage 2. For stage 1 an ECL allowance is calculated based on a 12-month point in time (PIT) probability of 
default (PD). For stage 2 and 3 assets a life time ECL is calculated based on a lifetime Probability of default.

The impairment on financial insturments under ECL approach is calculated as prescribed in Ind AS 109 ‘Financial 
instruments’. ECL uses three main components: PD, LGD (loss given default) and EAD (exposure at default) 
along with an adjustment considering forward macro economic conditions.

Financial instruments other than Loans were subjected to simplified ECL approach under Ind AS 109 ‘Financial 
instruments’.
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38 Financial risk management contd.
Credit risk exposure
Provision for expected credit losses
The expected credit loss is provided based on 12 month and lifetime expected credit loss basis for 
following financial assets:
31 March 2021

Particulars Estimated gross 
carrying amount

Expected 
credit losses

Carrying amount net of 
impairment provision

Trade receivables  16,499.15  (3,547.90)  12,951.25 
Cash and cash equivalents  11,797.91  -    11,797.91 
Other bank balance  25,550.85  -    25,550.85 
Other financial assets  22,401.66  (1,208.32)  21,193.34 
31 March 2020

Particulars Estimated gross 
carrying amount

Expected 
credit losses

Carrying amount net of 
impairment provision

Trade receivables  21,721.19  (2,625.96)  19,095.23 
Cash and cash equivalents  8,689.37  -    8,689.37 
Other bank balance  22,421.51  -    22,421.51 
Other financial assets  20,598.01  (338.01)  20,260.00 
Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables, Loans and other Financial asset

Trade 
receivables

Other financial asset

Loss allowance on 31 March 2020  (2,625.96)  (338.01)
Allowance for expected credit loss  (921.94)  -   
Reversals/ written off during the year  -    (870.31)
Loss allowance on 31 March 2021  (3,547.90)  (1,208.32)

ii. Liquidity risk 
The  liquidity risk is managed by maintaining adequate reserves and reserve borrowing facilities, by 
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial 
assets and liabilities.	
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the  liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the 
basis of expected cash flows, considering the  liquidity of the market in which the entity operates. In 
addition, the Group and Associate’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major 
currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet 
liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyze the  financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual 
maturities for all financial liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted 
cash flows.
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31 March 2021 Less than 1 year 1 year to 5 years 5 years and above Total
Non-derivatives
Trade payables  17,086.03  -    -    17,086.03 
Lease liabilities  731.08  666.18  -    1,397.26 
Other financial 
liabilities

 17,856.51  2,178.20  -    20,034.71 

Total  35,673.62  2,844.38  -    38,518.00 

31 March 2020
Non-derivatives
Trade payables  20,865.41  -    -    20,865.41 
Lease liabilities  766.17  956.31  1.26  1,723.74 
Other financial 
liabilities

 15,082.98  2,048.06  -    17,131.04 

Total  36,714.56  3,004.37  1.26  39,720.19 

38 Financial risk management contd.
iii Market risk
a. Foreign currency risk
The Group does not carry any asset or liability denominated in Foreign curreny and hence is not exposed to 
currency risk.		
b. Price risk
The price risk to equity exposure  arises from the investments held by the Group and classified in the balance 
sheet at fair value through OCI.	
Sensitivity
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower prices of instruments on the entity’s profits for the periods.

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Price increase by 5%  - FVOCI  20.54  8.91 
Price decrease by 5%  - FVOCI  (20.54)  (8.91)
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40 Related Party - Disclosure under Ind AS 24
(i) Key management personnel

For Mysore Sales International Limited
H P Prakash Managing Director (till 31-03-2021)
Vikash Kumar Vikash Managing Director (w.e.f 31-03-2021)
Sridevi B N Company Secretary
Subramanya Chief Financial Officer (till 31-07-2021)
Ramkanth Hebbali Chief Financial Officer (31-07-2021 to 13-12-2021)
A M Chandrappa Chief Financial Officer (from 14-12-2021)
For Marketing Communication & Advertising Limited 
Siddalingappa B.Pujari Managing Director
V T Venkatesh (from 31-May 2019 to 03 Sep 2020)
Entity having significant interest in Holding Company
Karnataka State Industrial & Infrastructure Development Corporation Limited

(ii) Transactions with related parties are as follows March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Managerial remuneration(*)(#)
Mysore Sales International Limited   82.94  42.79 
Marketing Communication and Advertising Limited  22.40  23.06 

(*) As the provision for liability for gratuity and vacation pay is provided on an actuarial basis for the company 
as a whole, the amount pertaining to individuals is not ascertainable and therefore not included above.

(#) Includes contribution to provident fund
Marketing Communication and Advertising Limited
Sales - M/s Karnataka State Industrial & Infrastructure 
Development Corporation Limited

 10.13  25.48 

(iii) Balances with related parties as on date are as follows March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Marketing Communication and Advertising Limited 
Trade Receivables - M/s Karnataka State Industrial & Infrastructure 
Development Corporation Limited

 0.41  4.64 

41. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
A For Mysore Sales International Limited (Holding Company)
SL.No Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020

i Guarantees / Counter Guarantees given by the Company to Banks  3,649.29  3,766.46 
ii Insurance Claim on Fire Policy –pending cases  207.73  207.73 

Insurance Claim on Fire Policy –decreed cases  488.70  488.70 
Interest on Insurance Claim   603.07  564.58 

iii Claim made by party in the business of Iron ore Export (including 
interest)

 1,663.11  1,686.58 

iv Claims made by Directorate of  Pension,  Small savings Asset 
Monitoring

 4,609.86  4,609.86 

v Claim against lease of windmill by Wes care (India) Limited  119.23  119.23 
vi Income Tax Demands  477.12  477.12 
vii Service Tax Demands  197.00  176.76 

The above amounts have not been provided as the Company has disputed the claims.
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i	 Bank Guarantees are given for the Income Tax demand relating to TCS on Arrack sales of Rs 3617.49 lakhs 
and for other business Rs 31.80 lakhs.

	 The company had made a submission to the Income Tax Department under the Vivad se Vishwas Act 2020 
in December 2021 for 9 assessment years from 1995-96 to 2003-04. which has been accepted by the 
department.			 

	 As per the scheme, the company has paid Rs 100.01 lakhs as Income Tax  and is yet to receive Rs 812.58 
lakhs as refund.			 

	 As per the provisions of the Vivad se Vishwas Act, the entire Interest of Rs 306.77 lakhs is waived apart 
from penalty.			 

	 The Bank guarantee of Rs 3617.49 lakhs was cancelled by the Bank on the directions of the Income Tax 
Department on 02 July 2021.

ii	 Certain Insurance Companies who had settled the claims of their customers on account of fire accident at 
BACC owned by company during 2001, have filed several suits against the company for recovery of claims 
settled by them under the principles of subrogation. The company had finally approached the Honourable 
Supreme Court against the order of the High Court of Karnataka. The Honourable Supreme Court had 
directed vide its order dated 6 Nov 2009 that all the parties (company, insurance companies and customs 
authorities) concerned being Government  agencies, they should discuss mutually and settle the matter 
amicably.

	 Few cases amounting to Rs 207.73 lakhs (PY: Rs 207.73 lakhs) are still sub judice.

	 Since in the past on similar matter the lower courts had decided  that the company and Dept of Customs 
are jointly and severally liable for settlement of the insurance claim, the company has provided Rs 
162.90 lakh(PY Rs 162.90 lakh) being 25% of the total decreed liability of Rs 651.60 lakhs (PY Rs 
651.60 lakhs); the unprovided portion of Rs 488.70 lakhs (PY: Rs 488.70 lakhs) is reported above. 
In the current year Compound interest  at  6% is calculated on an amount of  Rs 804.10 lakhs (PY: Rs 
752.77 lakhs). An amount of Rs 201.02 lakhs is provided in the current year (PY: Rs 188.19 lakhs) and 
the balance amount of Rs 603.07 lakhs (PY: 564.58 lakhs) is reported under Contingent liability. Share of 
settlement by the insurance companies  and the Department of Customs are not yet finalised. The Company 
has insured the cargo lying in BACC warehouse at the rate of USD 20 per KG as per trade circular issued 
by the Department of Customs.			 

iii	  The Company had entered into an agreement to export iron ore to China with Fe content of 52%. As the 
commitment was not honoured by the company the buyer went for arbitration. An arbitration committee that 
was formed as per the agreement had passed an award against the company for USD 18,80,851 apart from 
an interest payable @ 5 %. USD 67,473 is due from the overseas buyer. The claim against the company is 
Rs 1663.11 lakhs (PY:  Rs 1686.58 lakhs) including interest is reported in the table above. The Claims of 
the overseas buyer in respect of expenses incurred in China and liability under FEMA are not considered 
here

	 The arbitration award was contested by the company and it had filed a case in the High Court of Karnataka

	 In the light of irregularities reported by the Committee on Public Undertakings of the Karnataka Legislative 
Assembly in the above transactions, the company has filed criminal complaint in the jurisdictional police 
station and the police are investigating the case. In respect of these criminal complaint police have framed 
the charge sheet and filed the case before the Magistrate Court, Bangalore.			



181

iv	 “Directorate of Small Savings: A letter dated 18th  November 2020 was received from the Directorate of 
Pension, Small Savings Asset Monitoring towards short remittance of sale proceeds of lottery and interest on 
delayed remittance, amounting to Rs 4609.86 lakhs drawing reference to their earlier letters . However  the 
company vide its letter dated  10th December 2020 had communicated that it had earlier remitted a sum of Rs 
352.61 lakhs on 17 October 2016 towards full and final settlement of all dues and that no payment is due from the 
company on this subject. The letter of the company has been acknowledged by the Directorate of Small Savings. 
However, the amount demanded is reported under Contingent Liability since the claim is from a Government 
Department.”			 

v	 A claim was made by M/s Wescare (India) Limited a lessee which was disputed by the company. The matter 
was referred to an arbitration panel and an award was passed for Rs 119.23 lakhs (PY: Rs.119.23 lakhs) 
against the Company . The company has filed a case against the arbitration award in the year 2015-16 and 
the matter is subjudice in the High Court of Madras. This amount is disclosed under contingent liability.

vi	 As per the Income Tax Department’s Order, the following are the tax demands that have not been provided 
for 

	
Asst Year Amount 

(In  Rs. lakhs)
Forum where dispute is pending 

2010-11  222.27 CIT(A) for fresh consideration
2015-16  15.87 IT Department has filed an appeal against the CIT Order - allowance of 

Leave Salary
2016-17  147.82 Appeal is pending with CIT (A)
2017-18  91.16 Appeal is pending with CIT (A)
TOTAL  477.12 

		

vii	  Service Tax	 		

	 The total amount of Service tax disputed before CESTAT is Rs 290.00  lakhs for various years from 2002-
03 till  2016-17. However, the company has deposited Rs 93.00 lakhs  against these dues. The balance 
amount of Rs 197.00 lakhs is shown under “Contingent Liability”.			 

	 Contractual Commitments

	 Capital work in progress is Rs 425.86 lakhs. (PY 161.16 lakhs).

Particulars Commitment CWIP
Gulbarga Warehouse  327.14  303.04 
Software purchase  83.85  62.52 
Hardware purchase  41.31  40.30 
Mangalore Warehouse  25.00  20.00 

 477.30  425.86 

II	 Other Notes :

i	 The Company has entered into Joint Working Agreements [JWA] with HAL & CONCOR to carry out air 
cargo business. MSIL & CONCOR had withdrawn from JWA with effect from 31 March 2014 and  15 
January 2011 respectively. An amount of Rs 163.46 lakhs is due from HAL. 
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ii	 Company has also entered into a business arrangement with ESSPL for leasing solar water heaters to non-
domestic sector. The business arrangement was closed during the year and the dues of ESSPL was fully 
settled. The income earned during the current year is Rs 0.03 Lakhs (PY: 0.39 lakhs)		

iii	 The Company had entered into Hire Purchase agreement with government employees (Hirers) for supply 
of vehicles and consumer durables. The outstanding instalment dues including interest from the hirers  is  
shown under “stock with hirers”. Hire purchase business has been discontinued from July 2008. 

iv	 Balances in the accounts of sundry creditors, sundry debtors, business associates including joint working 
arrangements and advances/deposits are subject to confirmation and reconciliation. Consequential 
impact of such reconciliation and confirmation, if any, on the net profit and on the assets/liabilities is not 
ascertainable.

v	 Trade Payables include Rs. 2104.63 lakhs (Rs. 2104.63 lakhs ) of advances received from various 
Government departments in respect of contract to supply imported cement.	

vi	 Honourable Supreme Court, vide order dated 13 February 2003 had ordered for the appointment of an 
Authorised Officer to quantify the commission due to MSIL from Mysore Breweries. The decision of the 
Authorised Officer to pay Rs 2518 lakhs was disputed by Mysore Breweries and the matter is subjudice

	 The company has preferred an appeal before the City Civil Court for recovery of the commission. This case 
is also subjudice.		

vii	 Government Grants			 

	 During the current year the Company has not opened any new Jan Aushadi  outlet [PY :6 outlets] which are 
eligible for Government grants. An amount of Rs 68.98 lakhs was received towards Grant for investment in 
Fixed Assets till date,  including all the outlets opened in the previous years. 			 

viii	 GST recoverable - Beverage Division			 

	 An  amount  of   Rs .597.40   lakhs  is  included  under  Other  Assets  Note  no  8   being   the   GST paid on License  
fees by the  Liquor  Division  during  the  period  April  to  October  2018. A  refund  claim  has  been  preferred  for  this  amount. 
A refund of GST - RCM amounting to Rs 45.98 lakhs is also reported under Other Assets Note no 8.

ix	 The company had leased 2,565.4 Sq Meter from Airport Authority of India (AAI) at Bangalore Air Cargo 
Complex (BACC), Bangalore.  The lease was renewed for a period of 10 years from 01 Jan 2001 to 2010.  
AAI has demanded towards Rent of Rs. 228.89 Lakh, Damages  of Rs. 167.24 Lakh and interest of Rs. 
229.90 Lakh.  The company is in the process of negotiating a settlement and provided so far Rs. 228.89 
Lakh against the same ( PY : Rs. 142.40 lakh).  Pending settlement with AAI, the company has provided for 
the rental demand in full.

x	 “The company has entered into an agreement with M/s Poseidon FZE, Dubai (Supplier) for import of river 
sand in 2017.  Till date it has imported 1,03,872.77 MT in 2 shipments (Oct 2017 and Jan 2018) and the 
same was stored at Krishnapatnam Port in Andhra Pradesh. So far, the company has sold 14,759 MT. 

	 The Commissioner of Customs, Vijayawada had passed an order vide no: VJD-CUSTM-PRV-COM-003-20-21 
dated 03 Dec 2020, demanding Rs.599 Lakhs towards differential duty, redemption fine and penalty.  

	 The Company has filed an appeal before CESTAT, Hyderabad for setting aside the order of the Commissioner 
of Customs and the matter is sub-judice in CESTAT, Hyderabad.In this connection the bank has submitted 
Bank Guarantee of Rs. 11.80 Lakhs.”			 
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xi	 The company had entered into a lease agreement with Mrs. Nagarathna for a property near their Bangalore 
Air Cargo Complex, Bangalore. The lease was renewed for a period of 5 years from 2003 to 2008. As there 
was a delay in vacating the property, the Lessor had  approached the Court for recovery of unpaid rent  
of Rs. 43 lakhs and Interest at 18% of Rs. 16 lakhs (OS no.75/2014). The Hon’ble Additional Civil Judge, 
Bangalore had passed  an order  dated 24 June 2019, against the company for recovery of the unpaid rent 
of Rs. 59 lakhs with the Interest at 18 % from 15 Nov 2011 to 20 Dec 2013.  The Company approached 
the Hon’ble HC, Karnataka and had obtained an interim stay on 21 Oct 2019.  As per the court orders the 
company has deposited Rs. 50 lakhs with HC (RFA 1704/2019. The matter is subjudice in the High Court 
of Karnataka. 

xii	 The Company holds sand measuring 6,826 Tons belonging to the purchaser Ocean Agencies, out of the 
sale of 10000 MT 

B	 For Marketing Communication and Advertising Limited (Wholly Owned Subsidiary)

	 Commitments			 

a) 	 Bank Guarantees Rs.101.64 lakhs  (Previous year 31st March 2020, Rs.78.79 lakhs) are guarantees issued 
by bank to Prasara Bharathi,  Department of Horticulture, Karnataka Road Development Corporation,  
PWD Mysore Dasara towards business for which the Company is contingently liable. These guarantees 
are issued against the pledge of Bank Deposits worth Rs.101.64 lakhs.			 

	 Contingent Liablilies			 

b) 	 The Company has preferred a Special Leave Petition before the Hon’ble Supreme Court [Civil Appeal No 
(s). 9320/2010] against the Order of the Hon’ble High Court  of  Karnataka upholding the Labour  Court’s 
decision directing  the  reinstatement  of an erstwhile employee late Mr.H S Hanumanthaiah  with  25%  
back wages from 23-Jul-1984. During the year the Supreme Court of India vide order dated 12-Oct-2017 
has opined that there is no merit in the matter. In addition the appeal against the respondent was abated. 
Consequently, the appeal stands dismissed as abated. The Company sought opinion from the Advocate 
regarding further course of action to be taken by the Company as per the Order of the Hon’ble Supreme 
Court of India. The Advocate has opined that the special leave petition has been disposed of recording the 
fact that the respondent has died during the  pendency of the appeal. If and when any claim is made on 
his behalf, by his legal representatives or survivors, at the stage, further opinion may be sought as to the 
course of action to be pursued in the matter. Till now, Company has not received any claim from his legal 
representatives or survivors. 			 

c) 	 The Company had debited Business Development Cost at 8% of its turnover from Financial year 1997-98 
to 2003-04  against  specific Government Orders [ Govt.Order No.CI29 CMI 2000[PUC]. However from 
Finanicial  year 2004-05 to 2020-21, no specific Government Orders were received by the Company and  
hence  the  same  was not provided. In the Financial year 2016-17, the Company has requested to the 
Government of Karnataka [GOK] to consider Business Development Cost at 10% of the Net profit from 
financial year 2002-03 to 2015-16 and the order from Goverment of Karnataka in awaited.

d) 	 On 28.05.2019, Company received a Legal Notice from the Advocate V. B. Shivakumar on behalf his Client 
M/s Monuments Advertisers Pvt., Ltd., for payment of Rs.57.18 lakhs. In the said legal notice, a copy of the 
Order dated 24.04.2019 of the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka passed in Writ Petition No.478887/2018. 
The said  Writ Petition was filed by the Managing Director, M/s. Monuments Advertisers Pvt., Ltd., against 
the State of Karnataka , The Managing Director, Karnataka Udyoga Mitra and the Managing Director, 
Marketing Communications & Advertising limited  for recovery of Rs. Rs.57.18 lakhs. In the said Order, the 
court has directed the company to consider and decide the claim of the Petitioner with regard to amount 
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of Rs.57.18 lakhs by speaking order within a period of two months from the date of receipt of the certified 
copy of the order. But company did not receive the order either from the Court or the Government Advocate 
or court notice for appearance or submission of objections. It is observed from the Order of the court that 
the Court felt that it is not necessary to issue notice to respondent  Karnataka Udyoga Mitra and Marketing 
Communications & Advertising limited.The company has sent a reply to the Legal notice denying the liability 
until the payment is received from Karnataka Udyoga Mitra as company did not issued the work order for 
execution of the said work.			

e) 	 The Company has the following Income Tax demands pending for various Financial Years i.e., for Rs 14.11 
lakhs (2001-2002),Rs 0.64 lakhs(2003-2004), Rs 0.60 lakhs(2004-2005),Rs 26.38 lakhs(2005-2006), Rs 
14.18 lakhs(2007-2008), Rs 0.24 lakhs(2008-2009), Rs 1.57 lakhs(2008-2009), Rs 2.85 lakhs(2012-2013), 
Rs 0.38 lakhs(2014-2015), Rs 0.07 lakhs(2015-2016), Rs 0.15 lakhs(2016-2017),   Rs 0.86 lakhs(2017-2018), 
Rs 3.95 lakhs(2018-2019).			

f) 	 During the FY 2019-20 Service Tax Audit was conducted by department of revenue .The audit was 
conducted for the period October 2016 to June 2017. It has been determined during the course of audit by 
the audit team that the company has not paid service tax on additional trade discounts / incentives received 
from various publication houses.The total demand raised by the department in this regard is Rs.79.12 
lakhs.Out of the total demand amount 10% i.e Rs. 7.91 lakhs has been paid as deposit to the Appellate 
Authority during the FY 2020-21.

Other Notes 	 		

g)	 Charging of Business Development  Cost:

	 The Company has neither charged nor provided for Business Development Cost for the year under audit as 
there was no Government Order to that effect. The last Government Order received on 29-Apr-2004 for the 
financial year ended 31-March-2004. Hence no Business Development Cost was charged from financial 
year 2004-05 onwards. Thus for the year under Audit, the Company has not changed its earlier stand.

h)	 Vide Board meeting dated June 18, 2019, noted over due collection of Rs. Rs.39.29 lakhs by Mr.M.S.Patil, 
the branch Manager, Vijayapura from the client Public Works, Ports and Inland Water Transport Department, 
Vijayapura. Accordingly, FIR had been registered with the Jalanagar police station, Vijayapura on 30.5.2019.
During the year the said FIR has been withdrawn consequent ot the recovery of Rs 39.29 lakhs .However 
as informed the departmental enquiry intiated through public servant(Retired Judge) is yet to be disposed. 

i)	 Trade Receivables and Trade Payables confirmation 

	 Balance of trade receivables and trade payables along with the below mentioned accounts have not 
been confirmed from the counter parties. The financial impact of this non-compliance, if any, could not be 
determined. 

	 The Position of total balances, confirmed balances and percentages of unconfirmed balances are given 
below:

Particulars Amount as per 
books (Rs in lakhs.)

Amount for which 
Confirmation received 

and reconciled

% of 
Unconfirmed 

amount
Trade Receivables  11,145.72  290.13 97.40%
Trade Advances  327.75  -   100.00%
Trade Payables  6,788.42  -   100.00%
Advance from Customers  169.55  -   100.00%
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j)	 The standalone financial statements of the Company approved by the Board of Directors and Statutory 
Auditors on 26.10.2021 were revised in accordance with observations made by the Comptroller & Auditor 
General of India during Supplementary audit under section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
Company has revised the accounts to incorporate restatements and reclassifications as detailed below:

	

Particulars  2020-21  Revised 
2020-21 2019-20 Restated 

2019-20
Other Financial Assets  -  298.71  316.00 
Other Current Assets  82.22  171.94  101.99  205.23 
Other Equity  16,027.21  11,615.25  15,492.83  11,186.38 
Trade Payables  6,702.97  6,788.42  9,140.68  9,229.86 
Other Current Liabilities  738.90  774.62  954.14  -   
Revenue from operations  23,604.75  23,600.83  26,958.48  27,023.78 
Other Income  441.60  414.71  449.73  467.02 
Cost of Services  11,882.69  11,878.96  15,803.86  15,856.90 
Other Expenses 2033.14 1952.17  1,109.15  1,115.24

 				  

C	 For Mysore Chrome Tanning Company Limited (Subsidiary)

	 Contingent Liabilities

a)	 As the Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax (Assessment), Special Range -4, Bangalore has gone on 
an appeal to the Hon’ble High Court, Bangalore against the orders of Income Tax Appellate Tribunal, 
Bangalore for the assessment year 1990-1991, there is a contingent liability of Rs.0.11 lakhs towards the 
additional income tax.			 

b)	 Interest accrued on loans from MSIL, KSIIDC and Government of Karnataka has not been acknowledged 
as debt from April 1999 and therefore has not been recognized as a liability in the Balance Sheet. The 
Company has approached them for waiver. The liability understated is to the extent of Rs. 132.13 lakhs (Rs. 
126.65 lakhs).

	 Other Notes			 

c)	 Legal proceedings have been initiated for recovery of compensation amount from Bangalore Development 
Authority, Bangalore, on land for an area of 5,777 Sq. Yds acquired for road purpose.		

d)	 The Government of Karnataka in its order No. CI47 CIS 91(ii) Bangalore dated 31st October 1991 has 
ordered for closure of the Company. Modalities are being worked out by the Company in consultation with 
the Government.			 

e)	 Secured and unsecured loans under Non-current liabilities & Current Liabilities and Short-term advance 
under Current assets are subject to confirmation.
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42. 	 Segment Information

	 Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS - 108

	 The parent has determined following reporting segments based on the information reviewed by the Group 
and Associate’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM’) i.e., the Managing Director :

a) 	 Paper division deals in both Note Books and Stationery					   

b) 	 Sale of liquor is reported under Beverages Division					   

c) 	 Others include Chit operations, Consumer & Industrial Products, Pharmaceutical products, Export & Import 
operations and Tours & Travels.					   

The above business segments have been identified considering:					  

a) 	 the nature of the products and services					   

b)	 the differing risks and returns					   

c) 	 the internal organisation and management structure, and					   

d) 	 the internal financial reporting systems.					   

The management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making 
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based 
on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements. Income taxes are 
managed at an entity level and are not allocated to Operating segments.					   

The information relating to Marketing Communication and Advertising Limited and The Mysore Chrome Tanning 
Company Limited is reported in the column Subsidiaries.					  

Summary of Segment information 

For the year ended March 31, 2021
	

Particulars Paper Beverages Others/
unallocated Subsidiaries Total

Revenue
External customers  6,926.43  2,38,613.29  5,521.31  23,600.83  2,74,661.86 
Inter-segment  -    -    (147.89)  (147.89)
Total revenue  6,926.43  2,38,613.29  5,521.31  23,452.94  2,74,513.97 
Segment profit  (353.52)  8,844.53  (1,606.54)  740.29  7,624.77 
Total assets  5,365.22  19,153.66  57,077.14  24,200.34  1,05,796.36 
Total liabilities  2,903.19  2,344.71  31,255.72  8,605.60  45,109.22 
Capital expenditure  1.16  993.65  192.72  10.89  1,198.42 
Depreciation and amortization  44.00  636.90  1,044.79  48.93  1,774.62 



187

						    
For the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars Paper Beverages Others/
unallocated Subsidiaries Total

Revenue
External customers  6,866.42  1,90,744.30  4,517.50  27,023.77  2,29,151.99 
Inter-segment  -    -    (143.88)  (143.88)
Total revenue  6,866.42  1,90,744.30  4,517.50  26,879.89  2,29,008.11 
Segment profit  284.96  5,071.08  (1,037.92)  2,491.03  6,809.15 
Total assets  7,621.52  14,778.45  52,394.03  26,362.37  1,01,156.37 
Total liabilities  4,038.30  3,054.75  27,851.15  11,344.34  46,288.54 
Capital expenditure  1.66  499.10  135.44  25.86  662.06 
Depreciation and amortization  38.15  538.19  919.06  33.19  1,528.59 

Adjustments and eliminations					  

All Other Income & Finance costs, and fair value gains and losses on certain financial assets & liabilities are not 
allocated to individual segments as the underlying instruments are managed at the entity level.		

Current taxes, deferred taxes and certain financial assets and liabilities are not allocated to individual segments 
as they are also managed at the entity level.

Capital expenditure consists of additions to Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Reconciliations to amounts reflected in the financial statements

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

Reconciliation of profit
Segment profit  7,624.77  6,809.15 
Finance costs  163.08  229.96 
Profit before tax  7,461.69  6,579.19 

			 
Particulars For the year ended

March 31, 2021
For the year ended

March 31, 2020
Reconciliation of assets
Paper  5,365.22  7,621.52 
Beverages  19,153.66  14,778.45 
Un-allocated  57,077.14  52,394.03 
Subsidiaries  24,200.34  26,362.37 

Total  1,05,796.36  1,01,156.37 
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Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

Reconciliation of liabilities
Paper  2,903.19  4,038.30 
Beverages  2,344.71  3,054.75 
Un-allocated/Others  31,231.35  27,851.15 
Subsidiaries  8,629.97  11,344.34 

Total  45,109.22  46,288.54 
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44	 Impact  of COVID- 2019	 				  

	 The Group has considered the possible impact of COVID-19 on the carrying value of assets using the 
internal and external sources of information to assess the expected future performance of the Company. 
The Group expects that the carrying amount of assets reported in the balance sheet as of 31 March 2020 
are fully recoverable. The management has also estimated the future cash flows with the possible effects 
that may result from the COVID-19 pandemic and does not foresee any adverse impact on realizing its 
assets and meeting its liabilities as and when they fall due, therefore there is no impact on the going 
concern assumption. 					   

45	 Events occurring after the reporting date	 				  

	 No adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have occurred between 31 March 2021 and the date of 
authorization of these financial statements.	

46	 The previous year figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s classifications, wherever 
necessary.	

For Abarna & Ananthan  	
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm registration number: 000003S

Sd/-
(Abarna Bhaskar)

	 PARTNER	
Membership No : 025145

Place: Bengaluru	
Date: 14.12.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mysore Sales International Limited

	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	  Vikash Kumar Vikash 	  H Halappa 
	 Managing Director	  Chairman 	
	 DIN No: 08122455	 DIN No: 02321290		
	 Sd/-	 Sd/-
	  A M Chandrappa 	 Sridevi B N	
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary 
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Form No. MGT-11
Proxy Form

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014] 

CIN: U85110KA1966SGC001612

Name of the Company: Mysore Sales International Limited
Registered office: ‘MSIL House’, No.36, Cunningham Road, Bengaluru – 560 052

Name of the Member (s):

Registered address:

E-Mail ID:

Folio No/Client ID:

DP ID:

I/ We being the member of …………, holding…..shares, hereby appoint

1. Name: …………….
    Address: …………….
    E-mail Id: …………….

Signature: ……….., or failing him	

2. Name: …………….
    Address: …………….
    E-mail Id: …………….

Signature: ……….., 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 55th Annual General 
Meeting of Mysore Sales International Limited, to be held on Wednesday, the December 22, 2021 at Registered 
Office, MSIL House, No. 36, Cunningham Road, Bengaluru - 560 052  at  1.30 P.M. and at any adjournment 
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No. 1 to 3

Signed this ….. day of…… 20….

Signature of Shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office 
of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the AGM

Affix 
Revenue 

Stamp
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Mysore Sales International Limited
MSIL House, 36, Cunningham Road, Bengaluru– 560 052

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(55th General Meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday, December 22, 2021 at 1.30 P.M)

Name of the Shareholder: …………………………………………………………………………...........……….……

Regd. Folio No.: ……………………………………………………………………………………...........……………..

No. of Shares held: …………………………………………………………………………………...........…………….

Note: Shareholder / Proxy must hand over the duly signed attendance slip at the venue.

Signature of Shareholder / Proxy

55th General Meeting of the Company to be held on December  22, 2021 at 1.30 P.M. 
at the Register Office: MSIL House, 36, Cunningham Road, Bengaluru - 560 052

ROUTE MAP

By order of the Board 
For Mysore Sales International Limited

Sridevi  B.N.
Company Secretary




